//ﬁ

SPRINGLAND
2 M [l PR 452 ik 7 PR 2 ]

ternational Holdings Limited
ted e Cayman Islands with limited liability

REASFBEMAZERAE

Stock Code B2 5% © 1700

Annual Report 2 0 1 7 F |

& This Annual Report is printed on environmentally friendly paper
& A ETRERIEEY



CONTENTS
5 &F

Corporate Profile 2 & f§ /7

Financial Highlights B4 745 &

Statement from the Chairman X & R & 2
Vlanagement Discussion and Analysis & 3% /& &7 &% & 7 4T

ment, Social and Governance Report 215 « & K E AR S

&

Biographical Details of Directors = % f§

Corporate Governance Report 1 ¥ &8 HR &
Directors’ Report EE & &

Independent Auditors’ Report ¥8 37 % 81 A #i &
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss %7 & W zs &
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income %74 2 E Wz &
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position %3 & B 75 ik 3% &
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 47 & #E 25 & B K
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 4R &R &R E X
Notes to Financial Statements & 7 R & i} 7+

Five Years Summary BB/ &

Corporate Information 2 & & #+

I




CORPORATE PROFILE

/NI 1)

—



ANNUAL REPORT 2017

Springland International Holdings Limited (the “Company”
or “Springland”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to the “Group”) invests in and manages of retail chain
business which strategies focus in Greater Yangtze
River Delta region. Springland was listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) in
2010 with stock code 1700.

The Company has successfully invested in cities along
Taihu Lake and Yangtze River and developed as a dual-
format retail chain operator, which operates department
store and supermarket under three core brands named
“Yaohan”, “Springland” and “Dadonghua”. lts footprint
covers 17 cities including Wuxi, Zhenjiang, Nantong,
Ma’anshan, Changxing, Yangzhou, Jiaxing, Anging and
Wuhu in Jiangsu, Anhui and Zhejiang Provinces. At year-
end 2017, Springland operated 80 chain stores with a
gross area of approximately 1.5 million sq. meters. With
the excellent management and systematic management
capabilities, the Company became member of the top tier
domestic retail operator. This dual-format retail business
caters for a diversity of client-tail in order to well serve the
customers need and preferences from daily necessities
to valuable products and accessories. The retail business
model generates diversified revenue sources while
lowering the operational risks, creating synergies between
department store and supermarket business and enjoying
greater economic of sales.

The prime locations of the stores occupied are absolute
advantage of the success of the Group’s retail business. Most
of the shopping malls, department stores and city center
supermarkets are located in self-owned properties which
situated in prime retail space and shopping districts of the
cities with high population density. The community center
supermarkets are located in encircling communities with dense
population and convenient location. The Group obtains a
maximum exposure and direct access to customers’ attention.
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STORE NETWORK

" ZEREK
=
L
g Commencement
ﬁ Gross Floor" date of Property
2 Areas operation  ownership
= BEER B¥R WERER
o ('000 sg. m.)
g (FFAK)
o
Department Store and BEREOHRL
Shopping Mall
Jiangsu Province THEE
1 Yixing Springland HEEH 29 12/1994  Primarily owned T ZHA
2 Liyang Yaohan e INEY:S 27 09/2003  Primarily owned FZHA
3 Danyang Yaohan A& EH 58 09/2004  Owned B8R
4 Yixing (Hexin Branch) HEME 30 11/2004  Owned BA
5 Changshu Yaohan BANGH 27 12/2004  Lease BA
6 Jiangyin Springland TREN 38 09/2005  Owned BA
7 Wuxi Yaohan* NN 76 07/2006  Owned ER2)
8 Nantong Yaohan* mE\fE 58 11/2009  Owned BB
9 Zhenjiang Yaohan HINEH 86 01/2010  Owned BA
10 Jintan Yaohan 2ENERH 25 12/2011  Owned =R}
11 Zhenjiang Commercial Building® 8T 7 ¥ 4* 45 12/2011  Owned B4
12 Yangzhou Wanjiafu BMERR 25 12/2012  Owned B8
13 Yixing Yaohan Lifestyle BE\AHEERES
Shopping Mall 135 11/2015  Owned BA
14 Gaochun Yaohan =2 \EH 39 01/2016  Managed B
Anhui Province ZHE
1 Ma'anshan Yaohan S8LNGER 36 11/2009  Owned BA
2 Xuancheng Yaohan SHNGEH 35 12/2012  Owned BA
3 Anging Yaohan Lifestyle ZENBHEEES
Shopping Mall 55 12/2016  Owned BA
4 Wuhu Yaohan Lifestyle ERN\EREEES
Shopping Mall 110 12/2017  Owned BA
Zhejiang Province YI#E
1 Changxing Yaohan RENEH 36 08/2012  Owned BE
2 Jiaxing Yaohan Lifestyle RE\BEHEEES
Shopping Mall 119 01/2016  Owned BA
1,089
Supermarket by region PEHET No. of stores
EHEE
Changzhou & Liyang FMREE 74 6
Jiangyin Tk 83 9
Zhenjiang & Danyang BIRAE 55 10
Yixing H# 88 8
Wuxi 715 69 16
Jiaxing ) 23 3
Others Hit 89 8
481 60

REARKEER

Commencement date represents date of acquisition

TEEEESMEMEEN N ZEmME
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Not included gross floor areas for car parks and other supporting functions
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBEREE

TOTAL SALES PROCEEDS - GROUP (RMB MILLION)
HEMBRELE-£B8 (ARE - BET)

()
2017 Iy 11,188 2'7/0
2016 e 10,889
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TOTAL SALES PROCEEDS - DEPARTMENT STORE DIVISION (RMB MILLION)
HEMSKRERE-BEXR (ARB 88T)

2.2%

2017 e 8,216
2016 I 8,041

TOTAL SALES PROCEEDS - SUPERMARKET DIVISION (RMB MILLION)
HERSRERE-BHWER (ARK :588T)

4.3%

2017 I 2,972
2016 " 2,848

OPERATING PROFIT (RMB MILLION)

REHEMN ARE B8

0.7%
2017 I 692 2
2016 I 687

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (RMB MILLION)
FEEN (AR®: 88T

(«)
2017 —— 338 5'0 /o
2016 — 322

EARNINGS PER SHARE (in RMB: (cents))
BRERN (ARE :5)

2017 . 15 8-9%
2016 T 14
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STATEMENT FROM THE CHAIRMAN

Looking back to 2017, China’s economy as a whole
maintained steady growth. For the first time, China’s
GDP, which turned round since its fall in 2011, stabilized
and then rebounded and hit over RMBB8O0 trillion. With the
contribution of the Chinese retail industry, consumption
has become a stabilizer which stimulates the economy.
After suffering a harsh economic winter, the impact of
the internet and structural adjustment, the China retail
industry continued to adjust and innovate and it picked
up gradually. Giant Internet Company poured resources
and capital into offline businesses, therefore online and
offline retail closely merged. The “new retail” became
active and the focus of the year, with new ventures, new
technologies, new kinds of business and new playing
methods continually emerging.

Springland continues to evolve, change and transform.
The total sales proceeds, operating profit and financial
index have achieved the budget. The total sales proceeds
of the Group went up by 2.7% to approximately RMB11.2
billion as compared with previous year, while the profit
attributable to equity holders of the parent amounted
to approximately RMB340 million, an increase of 4.6%
year-on-year. The basic earnings per share was RMB15
cents. In light of the financial performance of the Group,
the boards of Directors of the Company (“the Board”)
proposes a final dividend of HK$5 cents per share for the
year ended 31 December 2017.

STRATEGY

In 2017, under the established strategic directions,
Springland continued to seek transformation actively, and
continued to meet consumer trends and customer needs.
The initial effect has been achieved through adjustments
to operations, products, services and marketing.

In department stores, Springland reshaped the operation,
development position, orientation and strategy of stores
in accordance with three store format including model
department stores, shopping malls and commercial
properties together with a “one store, one case”
strategy. In the meantime, we endeavored to maintain
Springland’s retail edge by increasing scene-oriented
consumption, comfort in experiential consumption,
shopping convenience and functional venue. We were
brands orientated. Our goods reinforced a lifestyles
concept, cost-effectiveness and suited to the Millennium
categories. We also continued to enrich products and
services such as in-store dining, children’s education and
fitness centers, to meet the improving quality of life and to
enhance the advantages of the retail of department store.
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STATEMENT FROM THE CHAIRMAN

TRBES

Supermarkets emphasised the freshness of their food and
the availability of promising supply chain enhancement.
Datonghua increased the number of nearby vegetable
bases and cooperated with well-known distributors in
Eastern China. We tried to promote the standardization of
planting and packaging in the bases and co-operated with
agency and commune of the product origin to establish
a long-term stable supply mechanism, which ensured
freshness and price competitive. The fresh and cold chain
logistic processing center will be launched soon. Being
an upgraded component in the supermarket fresh supply
chain, the center provides cold chain standardized control
to meet the Group’s regional strategic plan.

In the new retail era, the Group actively embraced the
Internet and new technologies. New media marketing
will focus on the development of service numbers,
encouraging members to bind their electronic cards for
various functions including bonus point inquiries and
exchanges, smart parking, panoramic maps, and coupons
redemption. It simplified the previous operations in stores
and optimized the consumer’s shopping experience. In
2017, consumption contributed by the Group’s members
increased to 65.0% of total sales.

In terms of store expansion, the Group continued to
focus on strategic areas, and opened new stores that
can better serve its customers with quality service and
valuable products, so as to achieve a steady increase in
the number of stores. Wuhu Yaohan Lifestyle Shopping
Mall was grand opened on 8 December, nine new
supermarkets were also opened, most of which were
community stores. As the most efficient retail format with
the closest connection with consumers, we are always
optimistic in the future value of the sustainability of
commerce property.
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STATEMENT FROM THE CHAIRMAN

PROSPECTS

According to the “Report on the Development of China’s
Consumption Market in 2018” recently released by the
Research Institute of China Council for the Promotion of
International Trade, quantity expansion of consumption,
improvement of growth quality and enhancement of the
effect of economic development may become a prominent
highlight of consumption in 2018. It is expected that the
total retail sales of social consumer goods in 2018 will
exceed RMB40 trillion, representing an increase of about
10%. Under good external conditions, the retail industry
train is running extremely fast with the development of
technology, access to capital and speeding up of new
retail. However, the future is unknown. Consumer trends
are changing rapidly. The development of the industry
has no historical experience or international experience to
learn from.

Under such circumstances, companies should maintain
a rational attitude and clearly understand their current
priority, which is to pay more attention to product
management and to build up service capabilities, and
eventually focus on the provision of products and services.
This is because practice has proved that no matter how
the environment changes, these are the fundamental
aspects of consumption. Springland will also deeply
explore local fine management by relying on branding,
data, technology and the assurance of supply chain,
as well as an open and inclusive business philosophy,
and a comprehensive and rigorous business strategy.
Efficiencies with respect to products, marketing, venues
and personnel will be improved. We believe that by doing
so, the value of quality offline retail brands will eventually
increase sharply to reflect their true valuations.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank all the
shareholders, customers and partners for their immense
confidence and support to the Group. My gratitude also
goes to the management and all staff members for their
efforts and contribution.

Chen Jiangiang
Chairman

21 March 2018
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OPERATIONS REVIEW

Department store reinventing new in-store
experience & reshape store positioning

On the basis of the three store format, including model
department stores, shopping malls and commercial
properties, the Group carried out large scale store
upgrading in Wuxi Yaohan, Nantong Yaohan, Changxing
Yaohan, Yixing Yaohan Lifestyle Shopping Mall, Jiangyin
Yaohan, Yangzhou Wanjiafu, etc. In accordance with
the modern department store model to upgrade Wuxi
Yaohan, by launching prestige stores, including unique
flagship store, lifestyle venue, high-end restaurants, the
Group further improved the product mix which drew vast
numbers of visitor traffic and improved its competitiveness
in the local market. Nantong Yaohan, Changxing Yachan
and Jiangyin Yaohan carried out store and brand
upgrading that enhanced reputation of Yaohan in the local
market. In accordance with the shopping mall model,
the Group continuously optimized its business portfolio
in Yixing Yaohan Lifestyle Shopping Mall and Jiaxing
Yaohan Lifestyle Shopping Mall. Based on the commercial
properties model, Yangzhou Wanijiafu will transform and
upgrade to a stylish family store which also resulted in an
increase in the proportion of rentable area.

T ST
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Expand experiential business, enrich product supply
& optimize product portfolio

The department store business actively responded to
consumer needs and continued to optimize in-store
merchandise mix and “new elements” were enriched.
New elements have the characteristics of lifestyle
concept, cost-effectiveness and youth. They cover the
current consumption hot spots, including fast fashion,
accessories, beauty and personal care as well as lifestyle
home products, which meet the demand from a new
consumption generation. The Group continued to add
in-store experiences, creating environments that attract
and delight consumers through features like spas, cafes,
children’s education, theatres, art exhibitions, and a host
of other amenities, along with personalized services, in-
store kiosks and more.

The Group provided products with competitive prices
and high quality which meet the customer’s demands on
health and safety. The supermarket division continuously
improved the competitiveness of products by investing
in its self-owned/cooperating with agricultural production
base and investing in fresh and cold chain logistic
processing center as well as importing high quality
imported products. We continue to set up our cooperative
agricultural model, which includes developing agricultural
base and channel and purchasing from vegetable
economic organizations, to meet the Group’s freshness
demand throughout the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MARKETING STRATEGIES

Upgrade information system & improve management
efficiency

The new CRM system will analyze a large amount of
member data and provide information on customer’s
personal attributes, user’s active attributes and product
brand and transaction attributes. An accurate analysis of
consumer behaviour will support an effective marketing
approach and enable associates to provide more
personalized service and recommendations. The system
delivers the correct incentive for the right identified
consumer and promoted store visiting frequency and
stock turnover rate. Mobile payments make shopping
more convenient and are a way to collect data.

Full range of marketing practices to meet customer
scenario of consumption

Marketing campaigns are an important means to drive
sales in the retail industry. In the year, the headquarter
strengthened its coordination on deploying 020 all-
channel marketing and cross-industry collaboration.
Departments included added shopping mall elements
and created “interactive scene experiences”, “interactive
entertainments”, ‘integration of digital media”, and “cross-
industry service experience”. We actively integrate brand,
alliance units, media and social resources, co-organised
cyber game competition and co-operated events with
banks to draw large numbers of visitor traffic.

Embrace internet & increase interactive experience
Under the new retail era, companies make use of
effective online resources which bring sales and increase
awareness of the business. On October 2017, all
department stores upgraded the WeChat subscription
number to WeChat service number and were connected to
e-member cards. This has become one of the key points
for its new media marketing of the Group that enhances
member state-of the art shopping experience and
accelerates the creation of multi-channel interactive digital
media system, both are better serving the customers. The
Group’s unique theme of marketing focused on social
networks such as the push advertisement on WeChat with
combined spread of content through social networks.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWE D

NETWORK EXPANSION

In December 2017, the Group introduced the comprehensive
lifestyle shopping mall in Wuhu City, Anhui Province. Wuhu
Yaohan Lifestyle Shopping Mall, being the Group’s fourth
store in Anhui Province has a total gross floor area* of
approximately 193,000 square meters and has introduced
various features and fashionable brands for shopping,
catering, entertainment and culture activities along with
a comprehensive range of business forms. The Group
carried through its “1+N”expansion strategy in supermarket
business to expand its network by opening 9 supermarkets,
mainly community stores. The Group further expanded its
network by providing management services to property
owners. In March 2018, the Group entered into an operation
management contract with a shopping mall at Shaoxing
City, Zhejiang Province. It has a total gross floor area of
approximately 68,000 square meters.

At year-end 2017, the Group operated 19 department stores
and comprehensive lifestyle shopping malls with a gross
floor area of 1,050,000 square meters and the managed
store, Gaochun Yaohan department store, with a gross floor
area of 39,000 square meters. The Group’s gross floor area
for department stores and shopping malls increased 8.1%
from a total of 972,000 square meters in 2016. The Group
also operated 60 supermarkets, with a gross floor area of
481,000 square meters, representing an increase of 9.0%
from 2016.

* Total gross floor area include gross floor area for car
parks and other supporting functions

e
{ :.' ‘&

014

HERER

2017F 128 ' AEBELZREAENMEL 2
BEAEBEDTRL - #EPNEHEEES AKX
EENREZBENENRES  EHLRE®
B #1938 F K 5| AL EAREMEHE
mmig SRHEY B8R RE . KEMN
XALEBR —BNREEL - TR A5HE
BEBMI+N]IHNBHETEE  ULEEB
MAX FRTABRBM AEEBREE
TREEERBE —FERAL - 201843
A AEBEETRERENIGEET —EEY
FLOMKEEEERE  HABREEELG.88
FRHK e

R2OI7TFEFE  ASBKE+TLEEERE
EEYRL  HEEEEAI0GEY K B
BIESZENAYE  BEBEBEARIIBFEHK
AEEAERBYHRONEEMBER20165F
MO7.28 F KBRS A% o AEB L Z60M
BT EREMB48AEF H K - 82016F [
HAE HN9.0% ©

* HREHERREEESMAMEED R
REEHE

VO RTINS,



ANNUAL REPORT 2017 SPRINGLAND INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED  # it BB 12 i B BR A &)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEN WK D

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Group’s TSP was RMB11,188 million for the
year ended 31 December 2017. Profit for the year
was RMB338 million. The Directors of the Company
recommended the payment of a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2017 of HK$5 cents per share.

MEEE
HE2017F12A31HLEFE  AEEMHEE
FISRRER/RARKI1188EETT FE
mAAARKIBEETT - ARREEEH
HZE2017F12A31 B L FEIR TR KB
BB -

Year ended 31 December
BEZE12A31BLEE

2017 2016 Change
—B—tE —T—KF =) 7
(RMB million) 7
(AREEBT) =
E R
Total sales proceeds (“TSP”)! HE TS B AR 11,188 10,889 2.7% oL
Department store B 5 8,216 8,041 2.2% [ERL
Supermarket B 2,972 2,848 4.3% Eﬁ;“u
Revenue A 4,444 4,193 6.0% 3
Operating profit? 7 2 692 687 0.7% o
EBITDA BT & A 8 A0 FDE 1,082 1,011 71%
Profit for the year FERF 338 322 5.0%
Earnings per share (RMB: cents) BREF (AR - 5) 15 14 8.9%
Calculated in term of TSP: K ERTE N RAE R &
Operating margin® A g ) k3
— department store —BEE 7.6% 7.5%
- supermarket —Em 2.3% 3.0%
Net profit margin* F ok I R4 3.0% 3.0%

1 Total sales proceeds (“TSP”) = revenue from direct sales + gross revenue from concessionaire sales + rental income
HEMBRBRE -—BEEHEWA + BTELHEMBIUEETE + H2 WA

2 Operating profit = operating profit of department store + operating profit of supermarket
R = B R RO + R A

3 Operating margin = operating profit/TSP

RN E =GB E P

B

4 Net profit margin = profit for the year/TSP
Fm A E - FERMNHEMERIERRE
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Revenue & TSP WARMBERMSHIBATE
Year ended 31 December 2017 Year ended 31 December 2016
HZ2017512A31ALEE HZ2016F12A31ALFE
Department Department
store Supermarket store  Supermarket
division division Total division division Total
BE¥K BmEHR &t AEEH AW A
(RMB million)
(AR%BEET)
%)
g’ Revenue KA
- ‘Zt :‘E Direct sales EEHE 400 2,550 2,950 323 2,466 2,789
Eg§ Commission income from BirEEHE
(u; ‘Zt ﬁﬁ concessionaire sales FalA 1,228 52 1,280 1,188 47 1,235
§ 5 IEI Rental income HemA 133 75 208 108 59 167
‘E’: gglﬂn Provision of food and beverage services At E KRS 6 - 6 2 S 2
]
[72]
o Total = 1,767 2,677 4,444 1,621 2,672 4,193
TSP HERSHELE
Direct sales EREE 400 2,550 2,950 323 2,466 2,789
Gross revenue of concessionaire sales BTEEHERGHE 7,683 347 8,030 7,610 323 7,933
Rental income i N 133 75 208 108 59 167
Total ARt 8,216 2,972 11,188 8,041 2,848 10,889
Same store sales change AEHER 0.4% -3.4% -5.8% -8.7%
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Department store division: BE¥K:
TSP from the department store division increased BEXEREEMSREABEINIZEARE
to RMB8,216 million (2016: RMB8,041 million), and 8,216 E B 7T (20164 : AR¥SB,0418 B
same store sales rebounded to 0.4%. Direct sales as a J0) R HEREE0.4% c 20174F + B
percentage of TSP from the department store division was HENHEEEGIHEMGRBEBABENERA
4.9% (2016: 4.0%) while gross revenue of concessionaire 4.9% (2016%F : 4.0%) * HrHEEHEHHE
sales as a percentage of TSP from the department store B IHEMSRIERENER 7293.5% (2016
division was 93.5% (2016: 94.7%) for 2017. F:04.7%) °
TSP by five largest stores B 1 A5 31 55 & AT 15 30 TR A8 B 1 = B
The Group has increased the number of its stores, and NEBPEHELN FIUTAATSEEY »
so the five largest stores aggregate contribution to TSP BEXBHEMSRIELEN R ERMKE g
decreased from 54.3% of last year to 52.5% of 2017. FH54.3%[F £2017FH#)52.5% E:ztti
SaX
In 2017, top 5 largest department stores by TSP: 20174 » IR KB BIEHE IS RIAAE C:'JE:;E
g
2017 2016 g
—B—t% A% 3
TSP TSP TSP TSP =
$HEFT8  Contribution HE TS Contribution
MBS SHEFRS RIB 4 EE HEFE
(RMB million) MIEHE  (RMB million) FIB4AEE
(AR¥BEER) BRtE (ARBBET) BRA=
Wuxi Yaohan S AN ERS 1,306 15.9% 1,299 16.2%
Zhenjiang Yaohan BT \AR 991 12.1% 1,026 12.8%
Jiangyin Springland LR EE 943 11.5% 942 11.7%
Nantong Yaohan mim A\ EH 550 6.7% 531 6.6%
Liyang Yaohan E s A 520 6.3% 518 6.4%
Others Hth 3,906 47.5% 3,725 46.3%
8,216 100% 8,041 100%
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TSP by merchandise categories

In 2017, fashion and apparel accounted for approximately
38.7% (2016: 39.1%); merchandise related to cosmetics
accounted for approximately 6.9% (2016: 6.0%);
watches, gold and jewelry accounted for approximately
23.6% (2016: 23.8%); footwear accounted for
approximately 8.2% (2016: 9.1%); athletic apparel and
casual wear accounted for approximately 11.2% (2016:
10.4%); children’s and have furnishing accounted
for approximately 7.1% (2016: 7.1%); the remaining
categories including household and electronic appliances,
rental income and others accounted for the remaining
4.3% (2016: 4.5%) of TSP of the department stores
division. The proportion of sales proceeds of department
stores from various merchandise categories are presented
in the below charts.

Department Store - 2017

Fashion and apparel BE
Ry 2 12 AR £
Watches, gold and jewelry

\ |
#E - EOUBRES P
Cosmetics / 71%
'ﬂf/ Hﬁ l‘ll:l'Il 11.2% 38.7%

Footwear 8.2%

%}E 6.9%
Athletic apparel and casual wear 23.6%
EERE RIKE R

Childern’s and home furnishing

EENKERM

Others

Hits

Commission rate from Concessionaire sales and
Comprehensive Gross Margin®

In 2017, the commission rate from concessionaire sales
was 16.0%, representing an increase of 0.4 percentage
points from 15.6% in 2016. The Comprehensive
Gross Margin of department store division was 21.9%,
representing an increase of 0.8 percentage points from
2016.

BB B E AR AR B 2
2017F B ELRMIGEEMSRIBERSE
#4)/538.7% (20164 : 39.1% ) : L AL S 1h 49
6.9% (2016%F : 6.0%) * $Ek - EEHKE K
Bic & 1l 4923.6% (20164F : 23.8% ) : EHFEE
498.2% (2016%F : 9.1%) : EB) PRI MK R
154911.2% (20165 : 10.4%) + EE MR/EH
SRR #97.1% (20164 : 7.1%) : HermmmiE R
(BRERARETFAR HeBRAREM)
HER T H94.3% (20164 : 4.5%) ° 17 @
BESDHEBEERHEENGRELENL
Blan T B AR e

Department Store — 2016
Els

i

71%
10.4%
39.1%
‘9-1 %
6.0%

23.8%

HAFELHEM T ERGEEENES

R2017F AERFTEEHERESER
16.0% * H2016F15.6% L - H04MEH
DEH -BEEBMNEZEEEMNER21.9%  H
20165 fHLL 3G 0.8 B 7 & o

5 Comprehensive Gross Margin = (gross profit of direct sales + commission income from concessionaire sales + rental
income + other income (service fee collected from concessionaire and suppliers))/TSP.
FEENEBREAEMNRUEEMGHELAENE - GEENEOREEZEHEEN  FHELEHEMA A - Ha kA

REMPA(EEREFFEEHRBEFNREE) -
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Supermarket division:

In 2017, TSP of the supermarket division reached
RMB2,972 million (2016: RMB2,848 million), increased
4.3% year-on-year. It resulted from a net drop off in same
store sales of 3.4% and sales contributed from newly
opened supermarkets.

TSP by merchandise categories

Fresh food accounted for approximately 41.8%
(2016: 41.8%), dry foods accounted for approximately
30.2% (2016: 30.3%), non-food accounted for
approximately 23.4% (2016: 23.6%) and the remaining
categories including rental income and others accounted
for the remaining 4.6% (2016: 4.3%) of the TSP of the
supermarket division. The proportion of sales proceeds of
supermarket division from various merchandise categories
are presented in the below charts.

Supermarket - 2017

B

Fresh food

TEER M

Dry food

ZERMm

Non-food merchandise
FEmE

Others

HAh

4.6%

23.4%

30.2%

Direct sales margin and Comprehensive Gross Margin
Revenue from direct sales in the supermarket division
increased from RMB2,466 million in 2016 to RMB2,550
million in 2017, representing a slight increase of 3.4%.
The direct sales margin was 12.3% (2016: 11.4%). The
Comprehensive Gross Margin was 22.9% (2016: 23.2%).
The Group intended to maintain the Comprehensive Gross
Margin stable by increasing investments in equipment and
technology to expand the contribution from fresh food and
to enhance products quality and reduce wastage as well
as cost efficiency from strengthening the supply chain and
merchandise categories.

019

41.8%

EEEN WK D

2017F MMEBHEENMBSREAEEAR
¥2 9728 BT (20165 : AR¥2848H &
L) BHiER43% c HERREHEE TR
SA%RMI AR BTHEBNERNFEME -

G B E AR AR B 2

THEMEEBMEBHEHEMSRELAED
41.8% (20164 1 41.8%) ZHBERE L
30.2% (20164 : 30.3% ) : kR MBEE B
1 #723.4% (20164 : 23.6% ) £ 4 78 m
HA (REEASBAREM) 54T H4.6%
(20164 : 4.3%) - A mmBEE» E(GEm
¥BHENSREAEMNL M TEAR -

Supermarket — 2016
il

4.3%
23.6%
41.8%

30.3%

EREEFEFERGEENE
BMEBFNEZHEKRAR06FEFHNAR
k2,466 1F & JT /MR B 1S IN8.4% E2017F /Y
ARB2550EB T EEHENERNEXA
12.3% (2016%F : 11.4% ) ' S A EF R A
22.9% (20164 : 23.2%) - EEE BB INE
BREREMIGEARBEATHERMEEFTR
EREEBAREARELNRBLBHAEI
EREAES RAGMME  REBE -
VRIFBTEBES BRI EMNET -
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Rental income

Rental income increased by 24.6% to RMB208 million
in 2017 from RMB167 million in 2016, mainly due to
increased rentable area and improved tenant mix in the
year.

Fee income from suppliers

In 2017, fee income from suppliers was RMB622 million
(2016: RMB632 million), fee income from suppliers as a
percentage of TSP dropped to approximately 5.6% for
2017 from 5.8% for 2016. Fee income from suppliers
including promotion fees, management fees paid by
suppliers for participating in promotional activities,
reimbursing electricity charge and material, etc.

Purchase of and changes in inventories

The purchase of and changes in inventories represents
the cost of sales for direct sales of goods. It increased by
4.8% to RMB2,600 million in 2017 from RMB2,481 million
in 2016.

He

AW AB016F ARKE167H & T N
24 6% ZE2017FARE2085E T TEAR
AEMA] HEAEBEEMEEERSBRNE -

REHEFHE MR A

2017  REHEFHEMBAZEARE
6228 B 7T (2016%F : AR ¥632B & L) -
HSEE TS RIAMATE R »H L #20165F #195.8%
WA E2017FE#5.6% - HEFNEMBKRA®
RHEEF2MEEEHEERME TR H
B EREBENREEAAEEEMSEAED
KE - UREREER -

BEGFERTFESD

BEFTERGFEEHTIERBEEHEENRK
R -BEFERTFEZEHH2016FEMNAR
#0 481H B L8 IN4.8% E 20174 H2,600H

e —

HIT °

Expenses EH
Year ended 31 December 2017 Year ended 31 December 2016
BENTE2ANALER BE16F12A31B LER
Department Department
store  Supermarket store  Supermarket
division division  Headquarter Total % of TSP division division  Headquarter Total % of TSP
AEER mEH &3 it HEHE [ty FELiEY) 4% h) hEE
(RMB million) e S (RMB millon) FRE
(AR¥EET) BERMM (AR%BET) BEEAM
Staff costs R 349 286 68 103 6.3% N 263 83 667 6.1%
Depreciatonend ~ FEREH
amortisation 391 91 3 485 4.3% 348 87 4 439 4.0%
Rentel expenses  HERY bl 80 5 106 09% 16 7 6 % 09%
Other expenses  EfpfX 41 157 56 624 56% 40 153 8 652 6.0%
Total At 1,172 614 132 1918 174% 1,09% 575 162 1,852 17.0%
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Expenses consisted of staff costs, depreciation and
amortisation, rental expenses and other expenses. Other
expenses mainly included utility expenses, advertising
and promotion expenses, loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment, impairment of property, plant and
equipment, impairment of other intangible assets, office
expenses, maintenance costs, travelling expenses,
entertainment expenses, property tax and government
surcharges as well as other miscellaneous expenses.

In 2017, total expenses of the Group as a percentage
of TSP was 17.1% (2016: 17.0%) and total expenses
increased by 3.6% to RMB1,918 million from RMB1,852
million in 2016. The growth was primarily attributable to
the increase in the number of stores in accordance with
the expansion of store network, which resulting the rise
in staff costs, depreciation and amortization and other
operating expenses.

Staff costs increased by 5.3% to RMB703 million in 2017
from RMB667 million in 2016, mainly due to the expansion
of the retail network which was partially offset by the
continuous efforts by management to carry our labour
cost optimization measures. Depreciation and amortization
increased by 10.5% to RMB485 million in 2017 from
RMB439 million in 2016. Other expenses decreased by
4.4% to RMB624 million in 2017 from RMB652 million in
2016. The decrease in other expenses was the combined
effect of the decrease in impairment of goodwill, exchange
losses, shut down of stores, the change in fair value of
derivative financial instruments and net off the increase in
property tax due to network expansion.
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EEEN WK D

ERBRBEINRA EREH HEMX
EREMAX HtHAXBREKERS  BS
EEER WE BERREHNEREESE
ME BELREHEEE EHETEE
HEEE BAEHX  HEREMER
ZRE EBHAGE PEW BEMNE
FRAMEAMMIRFX

R2017F  NEBERBBEHEMSNIE
BEHNE D A17.1% (20164 : 17.0%) °
B RBFEH2016F M ARKE1,8528 & T N
3.6%EARKE1,918EEIT - ZEMEEHR
TEREMNERERETIRA TEHHES
KA BRABMEHENER -

B TR A H2016F A R #6675 & Jtig in
53%ZFE2017F ARBT703EE L EMEE
HREEREERAE XHEERERE
BAMTABEBREREMEE - FTEME
4 H2016F A R #4308 & T 110.5% =
2017F AR ¥4855&E T - HMF X B2016
FE52B B LR V4.4%E2017F 6248 &
T HtRAX B EEHRTIERERESE
B EREX BEBRRALELRITES
BMTEAMEBATEZHEIAETERARER
BRMVERRLLIEMFEE BT -
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Operating profits

Operating profits for the Group (excluded interest and
unallocated gains, corporate and other unallocated
expenses and finance costs) increased to approximately
RMB692 million in 2017 from RMB687 million in 2016,
representing a year-on-year increase of 0.7%. Operating
profits for the department store division increased from
RMB602 million in 2016 to approximately RMB625
million in 2017, representing a year-on-year increase
of 3.9%. Due to improvement in operational efficiency,
the operation margin as a percentage of TSP for the
department store division was 7.6%, representing an
increase of 0.1 percentage point from 7.5% in 2016. For
the supermarket division, operating profits decreased from
RMB85 million in 2016 to approximately RMB67 million
in 2017, representing a year-on-year decrease of 21.4%.
The operating margin as a percentage of TSP for the
supermarket division was 2.3%, representing a decline
of 0.7 percentage points from 3.0% in 2016. The drop in
operating profits for supermarket business was mainly due
to higher costs and expenses for newly open stores and
keen market completion.

Net finance expenses

Net finance expenses are similar for 2016 and 2017.
These comprised finance charges on interest-bearing
debts and net interest income from surplus cash.

Finance costs decreased from RMB75 million last year
to RMB66 million for 2017. The decrease in net finance
expenses and finance costs were due to the decrease in
total interest expenses and increase in capitalized interest.
During the year, approximately RMB53 million of the
interest expenses has been capitalized as property under
development.

Income tax expenses

As a result of the increase in profit before tax, income tax
expenses for the current year increased to RMB193 million
from the previous year. The effective tax rate increased to
36.3% (2016: 35.1%).
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R R

REBBOLERER (BRFEWA - Ko B
= AR REMRIERZ RBEND) A
2016F M A R #6878 & L1 i1 £2017F
ARMBEOEEL  EFLMN0.7% - AEH
EH KL H R R2016F M A REE602H BT
HWINE2017F M AR E625F & T & 18
MN3.9% - MR ENZMIRI BEEEBLK
i FE (RIEEMBRIBREE) #2016
FHT7.5%ENMOANEE DB ET.6% B E
R LB R R2016F M ARKESSHE T
ML E2017TFNARECTEE L HFETE
21.4% o BT EFEE R TR (REEMBERK
THMRFEE) £2.3% & H2016F K93.0% Mt
FBETOTEE DS - BMEBLEBEFHT
KEFrEARTECEBERVBMBEAENE
AREREEXKERERF MBI -

FEXHFEE

FEZHFRE AT SEHRE K AR K
BRABBESHFERA - 2017F H201645F
BERFF o
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ASSETS BASE

Property, plant and equipment, prepaid land
premium and long-term prepayments

Property, plant and equipment, prepaid land premium
and long term prepayments amounted to approximately
RMB10,765 million (2016: RMB10,468 million). Those
assets were held for long-term operations used by the
Group.

Capital expenditure of the Group during 2017 amounted
to approximately RMB833 million (2016: RMB1,053
million). Capital expenditure consists of additions
to property, plant and equipment and prepaid land
premiums.

Capital commitments at year-end 2017 amounted to
RMB400 million (2016: RMB757 million), representing
mainly construction items which contracted but not
provided for of Xishan project.

Cash and cash equivalents and time deposits

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Time deposits are made for
varying periods of between one month and five years
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
Group and earn interest at the respective time deposit
rates. The carrying amounts of the cash and cash
equivalents and time deposits approximate to their fair
values.

Cash and cash equivalents and time deposits decreased
from RMB580 million at year-end 2016 to RMB511 million
at year-end 2017 mainly resulting from payment for new
stores and ongoing projects. About 80% cash and cash
equivalents were denominated as RMB.
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Restricted cash

Pursuant to the relevant rules and regulations issued
by the Ministry of Commerce of the PRC, the Group
was required to deposit bank balances in the Group’s
designated accounts or through issuing a letter of bank
guarantee, the total amount of which shall not be less
than 30% of the balance of advances from customers for
sales of prepaid cards. At year-end 2017, the Group has
deposited cash in the amount of RMB113 million (2016:
RMB109 million) in the Group’s designated accounts.

TREASURY POLICY

Capital structure management

The total interest bearing debts of the Group increased
to RMB2,991 million (2016: RMB2,863 million) at year-
end 2017, after debt repayment of RMB1,466 million and
a new drawdown of RMB1,665 million for general funding
purposes, and exchange rate flux during the year. All the
outstanding debts are on an unsecured basis.

The Group always strives to lower foreign exchange
risk and also strives to lower the borrowing margin, to
diversify the funding sources and to maintain a suitable
maturity profile relative to the overall use of funds. The
Group continued to maintain long-term relationships with
a number of PRC and overseas banks in order to diversify
the funding sources. At year-end 2017, five local and
overseas banks, including PRC banks provided banking
facilities to the Group as funding alternatives.

On 25 March 2016, the Group issued the first tranche
of medium-term financing notes at par value of RMB300
million with the nominal interest rate of 4.78% per annum
and the effective interest rate of 5.13% per annum. On
21 June 2016, the Group also issued the first tranche of
its corporate bonds at par value of RMB800 million with a
term of 3 years from the date of issuance with the nominal
interest rate of 4.87% per annum and the effective interest
rate of 5.22% per annum.
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The following graph shows the percentages of total TERRBE=ZFRERTMEBEARTS
outstanding gross debts sourced from banks and the debt MEEOREREHREENADL -
capital markets in the past three years.

Sources of Financing at Year-end

REEBRERR
REEER
soop o 2,863 2921
83.0% 60.7% 62.3%
2000 - MW Captial Market Issuances
) Bonds and Notes
BAMISRERER
1000 | . 2}
o m Bilateral Bank Loans g
B 39.3% 1,127/ ERIRITER &l
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As part of the Group’s capital management strategy, the SERNTEREERRE  RFEANBBRE A Eg
Group repurchased 106.8 million (2016: 103.3 million) fE[1106.88 B R k17 (20164 : 103.38 8 2
shares through the Stock Exchange in the year, which will ) - BEFE—-PRAREEE - o

further enhance shareholders’ value.

The Group has been careful and prudent in using debt AEBEFAERNESABERERMAOE
gearing to expand its business in accordance with its B-EBRREFEARRIRESLE R FTEN
business strategy. The Group’s gearing ratio, as measured BEEXER2017F FIK B54.5% (20164 :
by Net Debt to Equity ratio', stayed at 54.5% at year- 54.4%) - HREBHIRESMARERY - &
end 2017 (2016: 54.4%). The Group’s Interest Coverage? B R BB RP201 7FRIFEI. 115 (2016
was 9.1 times for 2017 (2016: 8.1 times) as cash inflow F:811F) EABXRBRAOZIHERE
from the business remained strong. The stable gearing 7 REBEE S -

and strong ability to meet interest payments reflected the
Group’s resilience.

1 Net Debt to Equity is defined as borrowings, trade 1 FEBEERERLXEER/EE BN
payables, and other payable and accruals less cash and B - R ENRIE R EERRE
bank balances, time deposits and restricted cash divided SRBRITHET EHEFANIREEES
by equity plus net debt of the Group BB AR R A == I (E 5 F 58

2 Interest Coverage is defined as earnings before interest, 2 MEERNEERERERINEIREN BRI
taxes, depreciation and amortization divided by finance A& B ATE MRS

costs plus capitalized interest
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The graph below shows the level of leverage and our
ability to meet interest payment obligations in the past
three years.

TERRASEBE =ZFOERKERET
MBENEENESD -

Net Debt to Equity and Interest Coverage at Year-end

FENFEBERREREERASMLER

times f&

oy 10.6x 12
90 .

- X —10
80 8.1x I Net Debt to Equity
oy s S 1 B S M b R
s 51.2% 54.4% 54.5% - Interest Coverage (times)
%0 e FB SRR
40
30 14
20 4,
10

, , o
2015 2016 2017
Liquidity management RBESER

As year-end 2017, the Group had cash and cash
equivalents, time deposits and restricted cash totaling
RMB624 million (2016: RMB689 million). All the deposits
are placed with banks with strong credit ratings and the
counterparty risk is monitored on a regular basis.

Liquidity is available from the undrawn committed facilities
offered by the Group’s relationship banks. These facilities,
amounted to RMB1,137 million and the Group can obtain
additional loans of up to RMB4,900 million pursuant to the
official approval from the Inter-bank Dealers Association
and the China Securities Regulatory Commission, at
year-end 2017, essentially allowing the Group to obtain
additional liquidity as the need arises.
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Interest rate management

Appropriate hedging strategies, if necessary, are adopted
to manage exposure to projected movements in the
interest rate. The fixed debt ratio increased to 59.4% at
year-end 2017 from 50.1% at year-end 2016 following
new borrowing of RMB339 million fixed rate bank loans
and repayment of RMB214 million foreign currencies
floating rate bank loans during 2017.

As the U.S. has entered the interest rate normalisation
cycle, the Group believes that interest rates will rise in
coming few years. We expect the current fixed debt ratio
allows the Group to weather the risk of an interest rate
hike cycle.

The diagram below shows the fixed rate debt and floating
rate debt portions in the past three years.

EEEN WK D

FRER
REEERFERMEBEROE MR NER
B EREBHMBERNEAR - RIR20174F
g ARMEG30BE BT E BIRITERIR LD
ARB2I4EETLMZBINERITER - B
B ER2016F FEA50.1%_EFA E2017
FFEHS9.4% °

HREEDEANKERCEAR  KAEEH
EMNERARBERNG LA - ZBANESR
EFLE  RMABHAKRERENEENE
FEHR Rk -

TERTASEBE="FHNERBBERLTR
BRI -

Fixed Rate Debt and Floating Rate Debt Portions

EEERRZEEHRNLLA
RMB million
ARHEET
2,976
3,000 2,863 2991
56.1% 49.9% 40.6%
2,000 M Fixed rate debt
ELBER
1,000 |- )
o 59.4% I Floating rate debt
43.9% Gk B
5 : : ,
2015 2016 2017
. =
Foreign exchange management SHEEE

The Group’s financing and treasury activities are centrally
managed and controlled at the corporate level. The Group
conducted its business operations in the PRC and its
revenues and expenses were denominated in RMB. The
Group relies principally on cash flows generated from
its operating activities as its primary source of liquidity.
Certain of the Group’s bank borrowings and bank
balances were denominated in HK$, SGD or US$ which
exposed the Group to foreign exchange risks attributable
to fluctuations in exchange rates between HK$, SGD or
US$ and RMB.
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The Group manages its foreign exchange risk and interest
rate exposure by performing regular reviews of the
Group’s interest rate and net foreign exchange exposures.
The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates related primarily to the Group’s bank loans
with floating interest rates.

Use of derivatives

At year-end 2017, all outstanding derivatives were related
to the hedging of foreign exchange and interest rate
exposures. Strict internal guidelines have been established
to ensure derivatives are used to manage volatilities or
adjust the appropriate risk profile of the Group’s treasury
assets and liabilities.

Contingent liabilities
As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, the
Group had no material contingent liabilities.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group’s operations are carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries in the mainland China thus the Group’s
business activities are regulated by competent authorities,
laws and regulations of the Chinese government. The
Group has complied with the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the business of the
Group. They included laws and regulations on health and
safety, employment, ambient air quality and noise control
as well as fire prevention.

The Group has registered its own domain name and
applied for or registered a number of trademarks of
multiple categories in mainland China and Hong Kong to
safeguard the intellectual property rights.
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PERFORMANCE INDICATORS EWIEED T
ANALYSIS
The following is the key financial ratios used to interpret A0 A BRA AN 2 B B 7 3R 4B R AR Y A 5 B
the financial performance and position of the Company. &K o
Return on equity FEENEE
RMB'M . ,
(AR#% : BBT) Profit for the year attributable to
6,000 owners of the parent
o 5,006 5,000 5,028 Retun on equity NG N
' FEENEE  The average value attributable to o)
4,000 owners of the parent equity 4
BRRBAARGERTHE 3
3,000 Z3 R
=9k
2,000 S A é‘zt;'-:’“:
oo I Zole
<o &
=0 i
0 =}
2015 2016 2017 8
o
— ¢ — Average Shareholders’ Equity mm Return on Equity
IR T I9E FEEREE
Operating profit & operating margins (in term of TSP) REGFIRGFFE (S EEHBREHNE)
RMB'M . . ‘
(AR% : BBT) Operating margin Operating profit
L (ntemof TSP) BeEH
788 EERRN= TSP
750 687 692 (EHERGHIELR) HEMBRELSE
500
250  Kem--______WN i
0
2015 2016 2017

— ¢ — Operating Profit for the Group mm  Operating Margin (in term of TSP)
Fedeingl "ERMNE (RHEMSTIALR)
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Net asset per share FRFEE
RMB
AR 7T Equity attributable to
3 N owners of the parent
SRREE AEEER
2 per share =
2.08 213 o Number of issued shares
2 = at year-end
FEEETROE
:
0
2015 2016 2017
Dividend yield and Dividend payout R 2 U 27 F F] IR B % FE
% y
Ak Dividend per share
8 . iidend y SHHRE
P 51% 4o D|>/L|dend lleld ; . .
° RE X Closing share price at year-end
6 ERRENER
4
Yearly dividends per share
2 Dividend payout EESRKE
REREX Earnings per share
0 shdEn
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The Group actively adheres to environmental and social
responsibilities. The Board is ultimately responsible for
leading the environmental, social and governance (“ESG”)
works by establishing dedicated teams to manage ESG
issues within each business division. Designated staff are
assigned to enforce and supervise the implementation of
relevant policies.

Being a professional retail chain operator, the Group has
always been committed to the mission of “An organizer of
quality life” in China modernization and “Beauty without
limited, wisdom forever” honoring the principals of social
responsibility and sustainable development, combining its
competitive advantages and business network to realize
the corporate social value. This ESG report covers the
significant environmental, economic and social aspects of
the Group’s department store and supermarket business
in the PRC. For corporate government section, please
refer to pages 49 to 72 of this report. The reporting period
covered the year-end 2017 and the report has been
reviewed and approved by the Board.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY

The Group incorporates the policy and practice of
environmental management and energy conservation
into business development. By implementing sustainable
development that reduce the impact from business
operations imposed on the environment, as well as
organizing and supporting various environmental
protection activities, the Group promotes awareness of
environmental protection and strives to balance enriching
lifestyles with environmental conservation by providing
safe and comfortable shopping environment, products
and services to our customers. The Group complies with
environmental laws and ordinances in the PRC during the
daily operation.

This section primarily disclosed the policies and practices

on the emissions, use of resources and environmental and
natural resources of the Group during 2017.
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AA. BER

A.1. Emissions

The Group strictly adheres to relevant laws
and regulations including but not limited to the
Environmental Protection Law of the PRC, the
Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution of
the PRC, the Water Pollution Prevention and Control
Law of the PRC, Law of the PRC on the Prevention
and Control of Ambient Noise Pollution, Law of the
PRC on the Prevention and Control of Environmental
Pollution by Solid Wastes, the Waste Disposal
Ordinance and the Product Eco-responsibility
Ordinance.

Although the daily operation of Springland has
not directly caused any significant impacts to the
environment and natural resources, the products
and services that the Group provides to customers
may indirectly affect the environment and the society.
We commit to reduce the greenhouse gas (GHG)
emission intensity of each area to the greatest extent
possible.

Much of our water consumption is for basis cleaning
and sanitation, as well as certain catering services
in our stores. We are actively working to raise water
consumption efficiently by improving facility design
and operational practices. We has implemented a
diversion system for rain and sewage generated
during its operation. The fire wastewater of the stores
and the sewage produced by air-conditioners will
be discharged by rainwater pipes, while sanitary
wastewater will be discharged by municipal sewage
pipes network together with kitchen wastewater that
has been processed by oil separator.

The Group also adopts energy-saving and
environmental-protection building materials to
reduce unnecessary waste generation and energy
consumption on construction of new project and
renovation of stores.
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Emission for the Group’s store network: AREBZTERPLZHNRE -
2017 2016

Issue B8 20174 20164

GHG Emission @ Total (tCO,e)

BERBHNES BE(RAM_E/LES 205,264 192,898

Purchased Electricity Total (MWh)

BEES BE OKRE) 259,828 244,175
%_ Gas Consumptions Total (m?)
258 =g Ppes WE(IHK) 638,771 443,313
Qgg Water Consumptions Total (million m8)
zZa AkE BB (FEITK) 2.1 1.8
sz B \ \
(Zbéggg (@) The emission associated with the electricity purchased (a) EBREEHEABHEINE  2BREBBE
EO% based on emission factors provided by Hongkong K201 7FIRHA R EH M B B
EG Electric in 2017
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A.2. Use of Resources A2. BEREH
Our stores consume a large volume of energy, mainly BMMERELSRE  BRURLSRKE
in air-conditioning and lighting as well as freezer and KEFEERERKERIR %ﬂ?’:‘iiﬁﬁ%

refrigeration cabinets. Understanding that the GHGs
emission is positively correlated to the electricity
consumption, the Group commits to continually
improve our energy performance and reduce our
water consumption. Resources used by the Group
mainly include electricity, gas, water, packing material
and construction raw material.

The Group has conducted the following practices to
reduce the electricity, gas, water and other resources
consumption:-

e Hold regular education on saving electricity,
water and other resources among the
employees;

o Incorporate energy and water efficiency into
existing equipment and facilities, as well as in
the selection and purchase of new equipment

e Install and operate of building automation
systems to control our refrigeration, air-
conditioning, and lighting systems in new
opening stores since the opening of Yixing
Yaohan Lifestyle Shopping Mall in 2015

e  Carry out LED retrofits of our existing lighting
systems and require LED in all new store
design, with the goal of 100% LED by 2022, and
currently 55% of our stores are equipped with
LED.

e  Educate and encourage our customer to bring
their own shopping bags to reduce shopping
bags consumption. During 2017, the Group
distributed plastic shopping bags and packing
material of 873 tonnes (2016: 762 tonnes) to the
customers.
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A.3. The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group is in strict compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations including Law of the PRC on
Circular Economy Promotion, Environmental Impact
Assessment Law of the PRC and Regulations on
Environmental Protection of Construction Projects.
The Group closely links the concept of green building
to the construction projects and carefully designs and
adopts landscaping in the property scope to build an
eco-friendly shopping mall.

SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY

Employment and Labour Practices

The Group believes that talent is the wealth and engine for
the sustainable development of enterprises. We treasure
our employee as well as encouraged the development of
talented and motivated individuals on an ongoing basis
in order to support the development and growth of our
operations. Springland’s compensation and benefits
mechanism focuses on establishing a high performance
working environment, which takes into account life work
balance, inspires colleagues to achieve our common
goals, and to share in the company’s success through
profit sharing programs. Thus, we strive to establish a
positive, diversified and inclusive working environment
for offering employees the adequate training and growth
opportunities.
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Employment

The human resources policies strictly adhere to the
applicable employment laws and regulations in Hong
Kong, PRC and Singapore, including the Employment
Ordinance, Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, Employees’ Compensation Ordinance,
Minimum Wage Ordinance, Labour Law of the PRC
and Labour Contract Law of the PRC. The Group
also complies with the employees’ social security
schemes that are enforced by the local government
to provide employee benefits. The Group’s employee
benefits include performance bonus, medical
scheme, mandatory provident fund for Hong Kong
employees, social insurance packages for the PRC
employees and education subsidy to encourage
continuous professional development of staff.

At year-end 2017, we employed a total of 8,833
staff, including 3,715 serving the department store
division and 4,962 serving the supermarket division
(2016: a total of 9,086 staff, including 3,988 serving
the department store division and 4,933 serving the
supermarket division).

6,096 of our staff members, including 364 out of 708
managers or above, are women.

Age group of staff § T FEA/k :

Head office & others

Under 30 years old HWEEHAM
30 AT

7.6% o
30 - 39 years old "y
30 - 395%
40 - 49 years old o Number of staff:
40 - 495% ' e

50 years old and above
50Bx A £

46.2%
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&) o

AEBE B T H6,096 A © 77088 £
B A LB E T - 3642 B -

Department stores & supermarket
AERBWER

15.4% 12.2%

Number of staff:
BT AZ: 26.7%
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Attracting and retaining talent RS RIEEAT

Springland is a stable organisation with a good staff EME—HBENAR ETEBBXIE
retention rate. The Group has proactive strategies ER=IRNYN 7%IJEF$TE|’]% B BiE&
in place to try and retain employee through various BEEEMAEIN ITERER  IEa8

programs to enhance job satisfaction and improve
staff retention. In 2017, the turnover rate were
18.5% for our head office staff and 9.6% and 2.3%
for the department store and supermarket divisions
respectively.

We strongly believe that talent acquisition is vital to
our business future development. In order to retain
talent, the Group constantly reviews its compensation
package and performs probationary and regular
evaluations according to the performance of an
employee, salary structure, market movement and
profitability of the Group to determine the staff
salary adjustment. Meanwhile, any termination of
employment contract would be based on reasonable
and lawful grounds. The Group strictly prohibits any
kinds of unfair or unreasonable dismissals.

Business partners mechanism

The introduction of business partners mechanism
which effective integration of corporate strategy and
personal strategy, operational management and
achieve the goal, to develop the Company’s future.
Interests of management and the Company closely tie
together and motivate the initiative to better revitalize
the business and future development.

Staff care

The Group launches various staff care measures to
benefit the staff, to offer immediate assistance to
employees who encountered financial difficulties of
sickness, building up a solidarity of corporate culture.
Besides, the Group also actively promotes staff’'s
mental and physical health, including body check
and regularly organized different staff activities, to
reinforce the care of the staff health, as well as stress
relief.
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Health and safety

The Group conducts various approaches to ensure
a risk and hazards free environment for our staff,
customer and member of the public. This include
conduct regular workplace inspection of all parts
of the Group’s premises, conduct fire drill for staff
members to practice how the store would be
evacuated in the event of a fire or other emergency,
provide staff members with advisory service on health
and safety matters and provide information and
training to enhance staff members’ awareness on
health and safety.

We actively set up internal policies and standards for
specific business units, including the fire prevention
management standard. The Group has prepared
the Safety Manual for the employees, in order
to provide an understandable reference of work
safety. We establishes a fire safety committee and
fire safety teams stationed at stores. The stores
organize the drills from time to time, including
emergency evacuation and practical operation of
fire extinguishers, etc., in order to raise the safety
awareness and the capability of emergency response
of the staff.

Development and Training

The Group offers different training and development
opportunities to staff in order to strengthen work-
related skills and knowledge and improving
operational efficiency.

For new hired employees, the Group provides on-
the-job training to understand corporate history
and culture, Group’s internal policies and business
development. For experienced staff, the Group
provides relevant training with regard to their roles
and positions. The Group aims to foster a learning
culture that could strengthen employees’ professional
knowledge, and meanwhile, benefiting the Group as
employees expected to achieve desired results after
receiving appropriate training.
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The Group places emphasis on the career
development of its staff and designs personal
development plans that match the career
development stages of its staff. We also provide
relevant career counseling, training resources and
job rotation practices to promote employee career
development and ability enhancement. Besides, the
Group also encourages employees to attend external
training for enhancing their competitiveness and
expanding their capacity through continuous learning.
The Group may provides financial support to eligible
employees for attending external seminars, programs
or courses in order to enhance and update their
knowledge directly related to their present job.

In 2017, Springland provided an average of 12 (2016:
11) hours of training per head office staff, and 35
(2016: 29) hours of training per department store and
supermarket divisions employee.

Labour Standards

The Group strictly abides by the Employment
Ordinance of Hong Kong, Labour Law of the PRC,
Labour Contract Law of the PRC and other related
labour laws and regulations in operating regions to
prohibit any child and forced labour employment. The
Group determines working hours and rest period for
employees in line with local employment laws and
employment contracts with employees.
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As an equal opportunity employer, the Group is
commits to create a fair, respectful and diverse
working environment by promoting anti-discrimination
and equal opportunity in all human resources and
employment decisions, for instance, training and
promotion opportunities, dismissals and retirement
policies irrespective of their age, sex, marital status,
pregnancy, family status, disability, race, colour,
descent, national or ethnic origins, nationality, religion
or any other non-job related factors in all business
units.

The Group formulates internal policies such as
“Prohibition of child labour policy and remedial
procedures”. The Human Resources Department is
responsible to monitor and ensure compliance of
latest and relevant laws and regulations that prohibits
child labour and forced labour.

OPERATING PRACTICES
B.5. Supply Chain Management

Springland recognizes that maintain and manage
a sustainable and reliable supply chain play an
important role to maintain brand reputation, ensuring
business sustainability and managing operating
costs. Each business unit monitors the quality of
suppliers and supply chain practice on a strict and
continuous basis to ensure the product quality.

The Group places strong emphasis on the
cooperation with suppliers and contractors and treats
them as the indispensable business partners. The
Group has developed long-standing relationships
with a number of our supplier and took great care
to ensure that they share the view for upholding our
value together with customer services, specifically
focusing on attracting and retaining customers.
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The supermarket division conducts continuous
assessments of the operating processes of the
suppliers, evaluates and renews the supplier list
every year to ensure their service qualities. By
means of assessments, evaluations and tenders, the
supermarket division selects strategic suppliers and
continues to optimize the supply chain for central
procurement.

Product Responsibility

The Group treasures the increasing public demand
for food safety and product quality. We maintain high
quality standards and devotes continuous dedication
to provide high-quality products and services, as part
of the efforts to maintain the Group’s reputation.

Qur supplier who sell their merchandise in our
department stores and supermarkets are required
to assume full responsible for their products’
compliance with the relevant rules and regulations
governing food and product safety, including
but not limited to product safety, labeling and
packaging. We also carry out direct sourcing, to
ensure the freshness of food products. Datonghua
tested and analyzed more than 50 items of daily
consumed vegetables, fruits, cereals and other
foods for residues of pesticide, veterinary drug, food
additives and heavy metals and biological safety. We
implement centralized quality inspection to ensure the
food offered fulfil all safety standards. When there is
doubt regarding potential safety or trust of a product,
with the source of information either from related
government authorities or supplier, we work with our
business partners to promptly ascertain the nature of
the concern and resolve the issue.
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The Group commits in abiding by the PRC’s
Consumer Protection Law and Hong Kong’s Personal
Data (Privacy) Ordinance to ensure customers’ rights
are strictly protected. Information collected from
customers would only be used for the purpose for
which it has been collected. The Group has issued
internal guideline to ensure our marketing department
are providing accurate and precise descriptions
and information to customers who comply with the
relevant laws and regulations for local operations
such as Advertising Law of the PRC. The Group
is not aware of any material non-compliance with
relevant laws and regulations on health and safety
advertising and privacy matters related to products
provided during the year. So there was no any
redress action undertaken.

. Anti-corruption

To maintain a fair, ethical and efficient business and
working environment, the Group strictly adheres
to the local laws and regulations relating to anti-
corruption and bribery of Hong Kong and PRC such
as Law of the PRC on Anti-money Laundering and
Hong Kong’s Prevention of Bribery Ordinance.

The Group has strictly enforced the code of conduct
to maintain a high standard of business ethics in staff
handbook. All employees are expected to discharge
their duties with integrity and self-disciplined, and
they are required to abstain from engaging bribery,
or any activities which might exploit their positions
against the Group’s interests. Employees trainings
and setting up reporting mechanism strength the
honestly and integrity in the workplace. We require
our business partners to strictly comply with anti-
corruption practices.
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During the year, the Group consistently and actively
participate in different community services and social
welfare activities, such as education and culture
development promotions to promote community
development and care community spirit. We also
encourage our consumers, staff and suppliers to
actively participate and give back to our society.

During the year, the Group made donations of
RMB1.7 million to charitable organization.

Springland launched among its community services
and education programs:

e  Provide food heating service, free borrowing of
rain gear, copy & fax and many other convenient
services to the community.

e Organize parent-child charity program -
“Smart Kids Club” to provide free early child
development classes for 0-6 years old kids in the
community.

e Cooperate with community organizations to
launch various types of traditional cultural
activities including wrap dumplings in Dragon
Boat Festival, sachet workshop in Changyang
Festival and shadow puppet play shows
during Chinese New Year. We aim not only to
promoting the Chinese transitional festival but
at the same time to create more excitement
to our customers and enriching their shopping
experiences at our stores.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Chen Jiangiang

aged 60 (appointed on 23 June 2006)

Mr. Chen, the founder and Chairman of the Group
and has been appointed as the Chief Executive
Officer in March 2018, is responsible for the overall
corporate strategy planning, business development,
investment and day-to-day business and management
of the Group. Since the Group’s incorporation in
1996, Mr. Chen has been engaging in retail business
and actively participating in the management and
development of the Group’s business. He holds an
executive master’s degree in business administration
from China Europe International Business School.
Mr. Chen is the chairman of honors of the World
Chinese Traders General Association (Hong Kong) Ltd.
(ESERHAZE HLE). Mr. Chen is also the sole director
and shareholder of Octopus Holdings Foundation, the
controlling shareholder and an associated corporation of
the Company.

Tao Qingrong

aged 57 (appointed on 2 September 2006)

Mr. Tao has been the vice Chairman and vice president of
the Group since March 2018 and is primarily responsible
for the day-to-day management of business and operation
of the Group. Mr. Tao joined the Group in October 2002
as general manager of Shanghai Springland Enterprise
Investment Co., Ltd (E/BZEM T XK EBR A F) and
later was appointed as general manager of the department
store business of the Group. Mr. Tao is also a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Tao worked for Shanghai Soap Co., Ltd. (&£
FHIEHBRAF) as sales and marketing director from
1997 to 2000, and Shanghai Soap (Group) Product Sales
Co., Lid. (E/BHIE (5E) EREEBRAT) as general
manager from 2000 to 2002. Mr. Tao holds a master’s
degree in system engineering from the Shanghai Institute
of Mechanical Technology (/8 ##% 2 [5%) (later known as
University of Shanghai for Science and Technology) and
an executive master’s degree in business administration
from China Europe International Business School. Mr. Tao
is interested in approximately 38.46% of the shareholding
of Celestial Spring Limited, being a shareholder holding
approximately 1.06% of the Company.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Fung Hiu Chuen, John

aged 50 (appointed on 19 July 2010)

Mr. Fung is a member of the nomination committee and
remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Fung is
currently the Managing Director of Global Link (CHINA)
Company Limited, a company engaged in the supply of TV
media programmes. He had previously worked as a senior
manager of the North Asia division of ESPN ASIA Limited,
a diversified sports, entertainment and media company
from 1995 to 1997. Mr. Fung holds a Bachelor of Science
degree from Cornell University in Ithaca, New York.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Lin Zhijun (& E)

aged 63 (appointed on 17 February 2008)

Dr. Lin is the chairman of the audit committee and a
member of the nomination committee and remuneration
committee of the Company. Dr. Lin is now the dean and
professor of School of Business in Macau University
of Science and Technology. Dr. Lin holds a Master
of Science degree in accounting from University of
Saskatchewan in Canada and a Ph.D degree in economics
(accounting) from Xiamen University. Since 1983, Dr. Lin
worked for various facilities in many academic institutes,
including Xiamen University, and was a visiting professor
in the University of Hong Kong, tenured professor in the
Faculty of Management of the University of Lethbridge
in Canada and head and professor of the Department of
Accountancy and Law in Hong Kong Baptist University.
He worked for an international accounting firm, Touche
Ross & Co. Canada (now known as “Deloitte”) in Toronto
from 1982 to 1983. Dr. Lin is also a member of the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA),
the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(CICPA) and the Australian Institute of Certified
Management Accountants (CMA). He is a member of
various educational accounting associations including
the American Accounting Association, the International
Association for Accounting Education and Research and
the Hong Kong Association for Accounting Education.
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Dr. Lin is currently an independent non-executive director
of China Everbright Limited (stock code: 0165), Sinotruk
(Hong Kong) Limited (stock code: 3808), Dali Foods Group
Company Limited (stock code: 3799) and CITIC Dameng
Holding Limited (stock code: 1091), all of them are
companies listed on the Stock Exchange. From 2012 to
April 2014, Dr. Lin served as independent non-executive
director of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group
Company Limited (stock code: 0564), a company listed on
the Stock Exchange.

Zhang Weijiong (3& 4 4i7)

aged 65 (appointed on 17 February 2008)

Dr. Zhang is the chairmen of the nomination committee
and remuneration committee and a member of the audit
committee of the Company. Dr. Zhang joined China
Europe International Business School (“CEIBS”) in 1997.
Dr. Zhang is currently serves as professor of strategy,
vice president and co-dean, member of the academic
council at CEIBS and co-director of CEIBS-Harvard
Business School — IESE Business School Global CEO
Programme for China. He holds a bachelor’s degree in
power mechanical engineering from Shanghai Jiaotong
University and a MSc in marketing and a Ph.D in strategy
from the faculty of commerce and business administration
of the University of British Columbia, Canada. Dr.
Zhang was associate dean and associate professor
at the Management School of Shanghai Jiaotong
University. He is currently an external director of HUAYU
Automotive Systems Co., Ltd (stock code: 600741), a
company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange. From
2010 to June 2016, Dr. Zhang served as independent
non-executive director of Shanghai Fosun Pharmaceutical
(Group) Co., Ltd (stock codes: 600196 and 2196), a
company dual listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange and
the Stock Exchange.
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Cheung Yat Ming (R —18)

aged 49 (appointed on 11 March 2014)

Mr. Cheung is a member of the audit committee,
nomination committee and remuneration committee of the
Company. Mr. Cheung is currently an executive director,
chief executive officer and responsible officer of New
Century Asset Management Limited, a REIT manager of
New Century Real Estate Investment Trust (stock code:
1275), a REIT listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Cheung
holds a bachelor degree in accountancy from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University. He is a certified public
accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (HKICPA) and a fellow (FCA) of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales (ICAEW).

Mr. Cheung has extensive experience in the fields of
investment, real estate and property market research,
corporate finance and auditing. Mr. Cheung worked for
Arthur Andersen & Co. in Hong Kong and China from
1991 to 1994. In September 1994, Mr. Cheung joined
Citibank (now named Citigroup) as an accountant and
administration manager and held the position of assistant
vice president from September 1996. In October 1997,
he started working in Salomon Smith Barney (now named
Citigroup) as an equity research analyst. Since May 1999,
Mr. Cheung worked for Donaldson, Lufkin & Jenrette.
He joined HSBC Securities (Asia) Limited as the head of
Hong Kong and China property research department from
November 2000 to April 2005. Mr. Cheung joined Cohen &
Steers Asia Limited in 2005 as a senior vice president and
executive director, supervising its Asia Pacific real estate
investment and research functions. Mr. Cheung worked as
the head of research of DBS Vickers (Hong Kong) Limited
from June 2009 to 2011. From August 2011 to 2013, Mr.
Cheung has been acting as the chief investment officer
of Neutron INV Partners Limited and has been involved in
work such as setting up the Neutron Greater China Equity
Fund and marketing to local and overseas institutional
investors, consultants, distribution intermediaries. He
currently is an independent non-executive director of Best
Pacific International Holdings Limited (stock code: 2111),
a company listed on the Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed, the Directors do not hold any

directorships in other listed public companies currently
and in the last three years.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE
Throughout the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Company complied with all the code provisions (the “Code
Provision”) set out in the Code on Corporate Governance
Practice (the “Corporate Governance Code”) under
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange.
No incident of non-compliance by Directors was noted by
the Company in 2017.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Board and management are committed to compliance
with statutory and regulatory corporate governance
standards and adherence to the principles of corporate
governance emphasizing transparency, independence,
accountability, responsibility and fairness. The Board
reviewed the corporate governance practices from time
to time to ensure alignment of interests and expectations
from our shareholders, the public investors and the other
stakeholders.

THE MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules on
the Stock Exchange as its code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions. Directors are reminded
of their obligations under the Model Code on a regular
basis. Specific confirmation has been obtained from
each Director to confirm compliance with the required
standards set out in the Model Code for the year ended
31 December 2017.
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RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear
and understandable assessment in respect of annual and
interim reports, announcements of inside information and
other disclosures required under the Listing Rules and
other regulatory requirements.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for
preparing the financial statements for each financial
period, which give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group at the end of the financial year and
profit or loss for the financial year. The Directors have
prepared the financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and the Listing Rules.

The Directors consider that in preparing the financial
statements, the Company has used appropriate
accounting policies, consistently applied and supported
by reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates,
and that all applicable accounting standards have been
followed.

The Directors are not aware that any material or significant
exposures exist, other than as reflected in this report.
The Directors therefore have a reasonable expectation
that the Company has adequate resources to continue
in operational existence for the foreseeable future. The
financial statements are continually prepared on a going
concern basis.

050

HPBHERNER

EXCRENEFRTHIRE  ABEEN
RNEARRE B AR R R E AL BB AR E M1
H AR B M E A B R R X P B M N 5
iSSEY AR R

EENBREHRUES M BRAR AT B RE
WEME ROEEMAQ T RERNETEFEE
ST B E) R AR I B B R R s B L RO B
BHRE - BECRRERMBEREER - U
KB BCRRMED) B 78R B 2 35 5B 4R E R
R -

EERRARARNREVBRRIBEIRABE
HEREFBRE ERERIKEAEMEE
B HET A  WEEBRABERBN G
R

BRARE IR BRI BEFAETHEE
THERRERRAREFLE Bt EFFE
MEHARFABRMERER RS R E
RERBERY - WHBMRDEERFELE
REEES -



ANNUAL REPORT 2017

OUR GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

SPRINGLAND INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED  # i BB 12 iR B BR 2 &)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

THE BOARD
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BEFPNERRSE

Leadership; Strategy Planning; Corporate Governance

Remuneration Committee

¥FMEES

Sets remuneration policy for
Executive Directors
RBITE ST H R
Determines Executive
Directors’ remuneration and
incentives

BEATEFTOFNLER

BERKRE ARERE

Nomination Committee

REZEES

Recommends Board
appointments
HREFZARNEFTSRLER
Reviews Board structure and
composition

MW EFEAEBRANX
Assesses independence of
Independent Non-Executive
Director

BREECMVE S Eey-E -0k vl

Audit Committee

EREES

Reviews risk management
and internal controls systems
et B B IR R N EBESIE R4
Monitors internal and
external auditors
BN EB Az B P R AN B A%
4]

Monitors overall financial
reporting process
EEHMBKERER

The Board

The Board is responsible for the Group’s system of
corporate governance and is ultimately accountable
for the Group’s activities, strategies and financial
performance. The Board has established three committees
to manage and oversee the specified affairs of the
Group. Certain important matters involving finance and
shareholders’ interest are reserved for approval by the
Board, including annual budget, annual and interim results
announcements, dividends, major investment, equity-
related capital market operations, major mergers and
acquisition and disposal, major connected transactions,
annual risk management and internal control evaluation
as well as appointment of Director(s) following the
recommendation(s) by the Remuneration and Nomination
Committees. The Board has to make decision objectively
in the best interest of the Company and its shareholders
as a whole.
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All operational decisions are delegated to the Executive
Directors. Day-to-day management, administration and
operation of the Group are the responsibilities of senior
management and their functions and work tasks are
periodically reviewed.

Board and Committee Meetings

The Board meets at least four times each year and more
frequently as the needs of the business demand. Apart
from the Board meetings, the Board would from time to
time devote separate sessions to consider and review the
Group’s strategy and business activities.

The Directors can attend meetings in person or through
electronic means of communication. Throughout the
year, four Board meetings were held, including a strategy
meeting with in-depth presentation and discussion of
the Group’s strategy and planning, and other meetings
discussed matters relating to the re-election of Directors,
also reviewed and monitored the financial and operation
performance of the Group and approved the annual
budget for the Group. Notice and board papers were
given to all Directors prior to the meetings in accordance
with the Listing Rules and the Corporate Governance
Code.

According to the current Board practice, any material
transaction involving a conflict of interest with a substantial
shareholder or a Director will be considered and dealt
with by the Board at a duly convened Board meeting. The
Company’s Articles and Association contain provisions
requiring the Directors to abstain from voting and not
to be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving
transactions in which such Directors or any of their
associates have a material interest.
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Chairman and Chief Executive

During 2017, the role of the Chairman is separate
from that of the Chief Executive Officer to enhance
their respective independence, accountability and
responsibility. Chen Jiangiang acting as the Chairman
is responsible for providing leadership in the Board
to set strategies to achieve the Group’s long-term
strategic development and goals. Tao Qingrong, the
Chief Executive Officer, is responsible for managing the
business of the Group and leading the management team
to implement strategies and objectives adopted by the
Board.

Board size, composition and appointment

There are currently 6 Directors on the Board including:
2 Executive Directors and 4 Non-Executive Directors
(including 3 Independent Non-Executive Directors).

The Company followed a formal, considered and
transparent procedure for the appointment of new
directors. Appointments are first considered by the
Nomination Committee. The recommendations of the
Nomination Committee are then put to the full Board
for decision. Thereafter, all Directors are subject to
election by shareholders at the AGM in their first year of
appointment.

Each Non-executive Director of the Company has entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company, for a
specific term of not more than three years subject to
re-election. Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the
Company, any Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy
or as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office
until the next following general meeting or the next AGM
of the Company respectively and shall then be eligible for
re-election at the meeting. In addition, all Directors are
subject to retirement by rotation at least every three years
and one-third (or the number nearest to but not less than
one-third) of Directors shall retire from office every year at
the Company’s AGM.
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Directors’ attendance of meeting EEHFELR

The attendance record of each Director for the meetings BESFHE07TFEMERNSZBRAT
held during the year 2017 is set out as follows:

Attendance/Number of meetings during the year

EREERE/ SRR
Remuneration ~ Nomination Audit
Board Committee Committee ~ Committee
Name of Director meetings meetings meeting meetings AGM
¥MzEEe REZEEE ENRZEEE
BEpg Ezees EE ] ] 2% KRREEAE
Executive Directors BTES
Chen Jiangiang R 3/4 - - - 1
Tao Qingrong BEX 474 - - - 1
Yu Yaoming DL
(resigned on 21 March 2018) (F2018%3521 A8 ) 4/4 - - - 1
Non-executive Director FYTES
Fung Hiu Chuen, John HES 4/4 1 1/1 - 1
o Independent Non-executive BUFHTES
<zt Directors
& Lin Zhijun HAE 48 111 111 33 0
3 Zhang Weijiong i3 30 4/4 17 17 3/3 0
3 Cheung Yat Ming - 4/4 11 1 3/3 1
g
§ Representatives of the external auditor participated in NEZERMORE2NGEEFZESSE
g every Audit Committee meeting and the Company’s 2017 MEEARR0I7TFERERAF A o
= AGM.
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Induction, training and continuing development

Each newly appointed Director receives a comprehensive
induction on the first occasion of his appointment so as
to ensure that he has appropriate understanding of the
business and operations of the Group and that he is fully
aware of his responsibilities and obligations under the
Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.

The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills for the purpose of discharging their
duties and responsibilities as Directors of the Company.
All Directors are required to provide the Company with
the records of the training they received annually. For the
year 2017, all Directors have confirmed that they have
attended training sessions by reading regulatory updates
or attending briefings/seminars/conferences relevant to
the business or their directors’ duties.

The Board is provided with monthly management updates
which contain the latest financials and highlights of key
matters of the Group. The management updates give a
balanced and understandable assessment in sufficient
detail to assess the performance, position and prospects
of the Group.

Directors’ commitments

Each Director confirmed that he has given sufficient time
and attention to the affairs of the Company for the year
2017. All Directors have disclosed to the Company the
number and nature of offices held in public companies or
organizations and other significant commitments, with the
identity of the public companies or organizations. Each
Director is also requested to provide a confirmation to the
Company semi-annually and notify the Company Secretary
in a timely manner of any change of such information.

Directors’ insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover
for the Directors in connection with the discharge of their
responsibleness.
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Balance, diversity and skills

The composition, structure and size of the Board are
reviewed at least annually by the Nomination Committee
to ensure that it has a balance of appropriate skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives to meet the
needs of the business of the Group.

Members of the Board have brought a wide spectrum
of valuable business experience, knowledge and
professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective
delivery of the Board functions. Details of the Directors
and relevant relationships amongst each other are set out
in “Biographical Details of Directors” section in this report.

Balance of Non-executive
Directors and Executive Director
31 December 2017
FHTESRETES DM
2017%12H31H

\

Independent non-executive Director

" BuknES

Non-Executive Director

FRITES

Executive Director

HITER
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R2017F R - AR BN ERTES &
AfAER  AJEBEZLEH:

During the year 2017, there were 4 Non-executive Director
drawn from diverse and complementary background:

Experience/Expertise

Name of Directors

BH/ER EEpR

General Management

REERE

Broad business experience through a senior level position in another Fung Hiu Chuen, John

company. S B2 R

RE—RAIEAZBMIEREZHEELR - Cheung Yat Ming
K—I5

Financial Services and Investment

SRBRBERIRE

Experience in the financial services industry or experience in overseeing
financial transactions an investment management.

BRECRREXAEBY BRI RNETENER

Marco-environment affecting the Group
HEKENRERR
Expertise in the economic, political or social environment affecting the Group

Cheung Yat Ming
w—IS

Zhang Weijiong

and its operation, with a focus in China. IR 4E W

HYB2EEREEBNLCE  BUASH 8RR - LEEHTBEBRBRNRHE

“Audit Committee” Accounting Expertise c:>

[ERERR|BHER S

Expertise based on the definition of “Audit Committee accounting expertise” Lin Zhijun =

under the Listing Rules. MEE 3

A LELMBAEZZEGEHERIMAEZER - Cheung Yat Ming o
I8 =

o

Risk Management 2

Rk EE 5

An understanding of the Board’s role in overseeing of risk management Lin Zhijun )

principles and practices, including an understanding of current risk MEE

management principles and practices, which may have been gained through ~ Zhang Weijiong

current or previous experience on another public company board committee. & 4 A7

RREEGHERE ﬁkéfii}? AREENAR  BREEBRITHERKREER Cheung Yat Ming

AIRER SFENRBAIEREEARXZAIEES —ETRARESFENE KB

fif °

057



REPORT
EERES

w
3]
z
<
Z
i
i
>
o
5]
=
<
o
o
o
4
[}
o

SPRINGLAND INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED  ZE3th Bl 45 iR B R A 7

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 F

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

S EERRE

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the following three committees
(all chaired by Independent Non-executive Director)
with defined terms of reference in compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code of the Listing Rules:

. Remuneration Committee
° Nomination Committee
. Audit Committee

All committees were set up with a written terms of
reference, which are in line with the relevant Corporate
Governance Code and available to shareholders on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company,
to deal clearly with its authority and duties. Each
Committee has accessed to independent advice and
counsel as required and each is supported by the
Company Secretary. To further reinforce independence
and effectiveness, all Audit Committee members are
Independent Non-executive Directors, and the Nomination
and Remuneration Committees have been structured with
a majority of Independent Non-executive Directors as
members.

Remuneration Committee
The members of the Remuneration Committee during the
year and up to the date of this report were shown below:

Zhang Weijiong (Chairman)
Lin Zhijun

Cheung Yat Ming

Fung Hiu Chuen, John

With the exception of Fung Hiu Chuen, John who
is a Non-executive Director of the Company, all the
other members of the Remuneration Committee are
Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company.
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Roles and duties

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least
once a year. The Remuneration Committee makes
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure of all Directors’ and senior
management’s remuneration and reviews the special
remuneration packages of all executive Directors.
The Human Resources Department of the Group is
responsible for collection and administration of the
human resources data and makes recommendations
to the Remuneration Committee for consideration. The
Remuneration Committee consults with the Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company about these
recommendations on remuneration policy, structure and
remuneration packages.

Summary of work done
During the year, the Remuneration Committee:

o reviewed and determined the amount of bonuses
awarded to the Executive Directors based on
personal and company performances for the year
2016; and

e approved and reviewed senior management’s
remuneration, including annual incentive payment for
2016 and 2017 and annual pay review for 2017 and
2018.

Nomination Committee
The members of the Nomination Committee during the
year and up to the date of this report were shown below:

Zhang Weijiong (Chairman)
Lin Zhijun

Cheung Yat Ming

Fung Hiu Chuen, John

With the exception of Fung Hiu Chuen, John who is a
Non-executive Director of the Company, all the other
members of the Nomination Committee are Independent
Non-executive Directors of the Company.
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Roles and duties

The Nomination Committee shall meet at least once a
year. The Nomination Committee is responsible for the
review of Board structure and composition, identification
and recommendation to the Board of possible appointees
as Directors, making recommendations to the Board
on matters relating to appointment or reappointment of
Directors, succession planning for Directors and assessing
the independence of the Independent Non-executive
Directors.

Board diversity policy

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits
of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its
performance. All Board appointments will be based on
merit, and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria (including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service), having due regard
for the benefits of diversity. The ultimate decision will be
based on merit and the contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.

Summary of work done
During the year, the Nomination Committee:

e reviewed the structure, size and composition of
the Board, including the independence of the three
Independent Non-executive Directors;

e considered the nomination of three retiring Directors
for the Board’'s recommendation to stand for
re-election by shareholders at the 2017 AGM of the
Company.
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The Nomination Committee considered that the existing
members of the Board have a diverse range of business,
financial and professional expertise in light of the business
of the Company. While the Nomination Committee did
not think setting specific requirements for such criteria
as gender and age for the Board composition are
appropriate, it believed that these are important elements
which will bring a diversity of perspectives into the Board
and, along with a diverse mix of skills, experience and
knowledge that the Board should have in view of the
prevailing business strategy of the Company, should be
taken into consideration for all Board appointments in the
future.

Pursuant to the Listing Rules, the Company has received a
written confirmation from each Independent Non-executive
Director of his independence to the Group. The Company
considers all of the Independent Non-executive Directors
to be independent with respect to the Group.

Audit Committee
The members of the Audit Committee during the year and
up to the date of this report were shown below:

Lin Zhijun (Chairman)
Zhang Weijiong
Cheung Yat Ming

All the members are Independent Non-executive Directors
of the Company.
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Role and duties

The Audit Committee meets regularly, at least twice a
year, and gives its full attention to the matters submitted.
The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee
include the review of both the Group’s consolidated
financial statements and the effectiveness of its risk
management and internal control systems. The Audit
Committee also oversees the engagement of the external
auditor of the Group and reviews its independence as
well as the effectiveness of the audit process. The Board
expects the Audit Committee members to exercise
independent judgment in conducting the business of the
Audit Committee. A high level review of the effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems of
the Group is performed at each year end.

Summary of work done
The work performed by the Audit Committee during 2017
included:

o reviewed the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year 2016 and
the related final results announcement, with a
recommendation to the Board for approval;

. reviewed the disclosures in the Corporate
Governance Report included in the 2016 Annual
Report of the Company, with a recommendation to
the Board for approval;

e reviewed the unaudited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the six months ended
30 June 2017 and the related interim results
announcement, with a recommendation to the Board
for approval;

e reviewed and approval of Ernst & Young’s
confirmation of independence, its reports for the
Audit Committee and management representation
letters for the year 2016, with a recommendation to
the Board for the re-appointment of Ernst & Young at
the 2017 AGM;
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e considered and endorsed the proposed connected
transactions, with a recommendation to the Board for
approval;

e reviewed and considered the scope of work and fee
proposals of the external auditor for the 2017; and

e conducted a high level review of the effectiveness of
the internal control and risk management systems
of the Group (covering financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions)
by considering the work of the management,
including a review of the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, and training
programmes and budget of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function.

Subsequent to the year end, the Audit Committee
has reviewed the Group’s audited consolidated
financial statements for the year 2017, including the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group, in conjunction with the external auditor, with a
recommendation to the Board for approval.

The Audit Committee satisfied with the external auditor’s
work, its independence and objectivity, and therefore
recommended the Board that Ernst & Young be
re-appointed as the Company’s external auditor for 2018
subject to shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming AGM
of the Company.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

Responsibility

The Board has the overall responsibility to ensure that
sound and effective risk management and internal control
systems are maintained, while management is responsible
for designing and implementing risk management and
internal control systems to manage risks. Sound and
effective systems of risk management and internal control
are designed to identify and manage the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives. The Audit Committee
assisted the Board in fulfilling its oversight and corporate
governance roles in the Group’s financial, operational,
compliance, risk management and internal controls, and
the resourcing of the finance and internal audit functions.

Our Risk Management and Internal Control
Framework

The Board is responsible for the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems and for reviewing their
effectiveness.

The Company has established an organizational structure
with defined levels of responsibility and reporting
procedures. The Internal Audit Department and Internal
Control Management Team assisted the Board and the
Audit Committee in the review of the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems on
an ongoing basis.

The Group’s internal control and risk management system
including a defined management structure with limits of
authority is designed to help the achievement of business
objectives, safeguard assets against unauthorised use or
disposal, ensure the maintenance of proper accounting
records for the provision of reliable financial information
for internal use or for publication, and ensure compliance
with relevant legislation and regulations. Those systems
are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance against material misstatement or loss and to
manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in operational
systems and achievement of the Group’s objectives.
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Risk Governance Structure
u Facilitates risk identification and escalation whilst
providing assurance to the Board.

m  Assigns clear roles and responsibilities and
facilitates implementation with guidelines and tools.

m  Consists of multiple layers of roles and
responsibilities as explained below.

Board oversight
EEEEE
Audit Committee
EREER

PNETY 2N
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n BERREA R LR ARRNEETR

HERE -

n DIKBEMEOABMEE  XERTHIHE
REESIFNTA -

n BETIZEIRAEENAEMESL:

Risk Reporting Independent
and Communication assurance
RBRER R WIS
CEO & Internal control Internal Audit
management team AIBETED
TBHRR M A ZNE

Risk and control ownership

REEREH functions
Each BU & management RBE R B TR  AE
AREBBHES - Departments with functions on Risk and
EMBARNEEE Control Oversight Role

Risk and control oversight

BERBEERENBAEERN

Board oversight
EEeEE

Audit Committee, acting on behalf of the Board
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. Evaluate and determine the nature and extent of the risks
associated with pursuing the delivery of the Group’s strategic
objectives.

e HITHHABMETAERRBEEMEAENRR -

o Ensure that an appropriate andeffective risk management
framework is established and maintained by the Group.
s WBREBEERILLAR—EASENERNEREIERE -

e QOversee management in the design, implementation and monitoring
of the risk management framework.
o EEEREERAREREBONGH ATREEFEMIE-
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Risk Reporting and Communication CEO & Internal Control Management Team
[ B B SR BESE A THRARMAEEENE

Lead the day-to-day operation of the company’s risk
management system according the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems.
RRBRAFRNAREEBRANAIZES RS  a8REAFER
ERRBANBTET-

Ensure that a review of the effectiveness of the risk management
framework has been conducted at least annually and provide such
conformation to the Board through the Audit Committee.
BRELGF R —RERETE R ARG R R EHTT
MBEME  WEBBREZEENESTSIFHAMER -

CEO is primary responsible for risk management and internal
control.
NATHRAEZZAAERER R ABIEFZENE -—FEA -

Independent assurance Internal Audit Department
B ARE:

Capitalise on the audit processes and plans of Internal Audit
Department to review the effectiveness of risk management
framework.

ERNBESFINESELER R AREERBAMRK -

Risk and control ownership Each business unit and their management
ERREEES DNABREXY BHBAREEE

The operating units of the Group, as risk owner, identify,
evaluate mitigate and monitor their own risks and report such
risk management activities in a timely manner; ensure that a
review of the effectiveness of the risk management framework
for their areas of responsibility has been conducted at least
annually and provide such information to CEO.
AEEEESEEN (ERAERRER) FA - & BIER
EREZENER  URFRAEEEREARERERL 8FF
DR ET — IR PR B AL Y [ B R 2R 4 ) B RU[R] B ) T R AR L
TR

Head of business unit or subsidiaries is the primary responsible
person for the risk management and internal control of the unit.
BEEEBREWMBEBRARIAE AR EMLRRE R KA EBZES
WE—FEA-

066



ANNUAL REPORT 2017

SPRINGLAND INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED  # i BB 12 iR B BR 2 &)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Risk and control
oversight functions

o B % BE 4R R RE

PNETY- 2N
TRERAWE

Department with functions on Risk Control Oversight Role
(Finance, Legal, Human Resource and Administration, Asset
Management, Information Technology)

ERRAREERMENRERN (MBH EZHBH - ASTHRIH - EE

EER - EAE)

U Establish and monitor relevant group-wide policies, procedures.
e HIEASEEEEBAERBOANTZERRIELRE  EERTE

Lo

U Oversee business units and the control activities relevant to
respective functions.

o HWEXIAERRERBMEE -

Risk Management Process

®  |ntegrated into business and decision-making
processes including strategy formulation, business
development, business planning, capital allocation,
investment decisions, internal control and day-to-
day operations management.

u Involved establishing the context, identifying risks,
assessing their consequences and likelihood,
evaluating risk level, control gaps and priorities, and
developing control and mitigation plans. This is a
continuous process with periodic monitoring and
review in place. It is also an interactive process with
stakeholder communication and consultation.

The Company has embedded its risk management
systems into the core operating practices of the business.
The respective business units of the Company review and
assess the status of potential risks which may impact on
their ability to achieve their business objectives and those
of the Company on an ongoing basis. This review process
includes assessment as to whether the existing system of
internal controls continues to remain relevant, adequately
addresses potential risks, and should be supplemented.
We aim to build risk awareness and control responsibility
into our culture and regard them as the foundation of our
risk management and internal control systems.
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The Company has established and oversees a whistle
blower policy whereby employees, customers and
suppliers can report any suspected occurrence of
improper conduct involving the Company.

Internal Audit Department adopted a risk-and-control-
based audit approach. The annual work plan of Internal
Audit Department covered major activities and processes
of the Group’s operations, business and back office.
Special reviews are also performed at management’s
request. The results of these audit activities are
communicated to the Audit Committee and key members
of executive and senior management of the Group.

Internal Audit Department provides independent
assurance to the Board, the Audit Committee and the
executive management of the Group on the adequacy and
effectiveness of internal controls for the Group. The Head
of Internal Audit reports directly to the Chairman of the
Audit Committee and CEO of the Group.

During 2017, the Board through the Audit Committee,
have conducted a review of the effectiveness of the
internal control and risk management systems of the
Group. In respect of the year 2017, the Board considered
the Group’s internal control and risk management systems
are effective and adequate. No significant areas of
concern which might affect shareholders were identified.
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR

Ernst & Young were reappointed independent auditor
of the Company at the 2017 AGM. Ernst & Young has
written to the Audit Committee confirming that they are
independent and that there is no relationship between
Ernst & Young and the Company which may reasonably
be thought to bear on their independence. In order to
maintain their independence, Ernst & Young will not be
employed for any non-audit work by the Company unless
the non-audit work meets the criteria suggested in the
Listing Rules and has been pre-approved by the Audit
Committee.

In addition, there must be clear efficiencies and value-
added benefits to the Group from that work being
undertaken by the external auditor, with no adverse effect
on the independence of their audit work, or the perception
of such independence.

During the year, the external auditor (which for these
purposes includes any entity under common control,
ownership or management with the external auditor or
any entity that a reasonable and informed third party
having knowledge of all relevant information would
reasonably conclude as part of the audit firm nationally
or internationally) provided the following audit and
permissible audit related and non-audit services to the
Group:
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2017 2016

20174 20164

RMB million RMB million

AR¥BEER AREBET

Audit FEat RS 2.7 2.7
Tax advisory services 750 75 B8 ) AR 75 - 0.2
Total R 2.7 2.9

The responsibilities of the external auditor with respect
of the Financial Statements for the year 2017 are set out
in the section of “Independent Auditor’s Report” of this
report.
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COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has adopted a Shareholders
Communication Policy of the Company which aims to set
out the provisions with the objective of ensuring that the
shareholders of the Company and potential investors are
provided with ready, equal and timely access to balanced
and understandable information about the Company,
in order to enable shareholders of the Company to
exercise their rights in an informed manner, and to allow
shareholders of the Company and potential investors to
engage actively with the Company.

Disclosure of information on Company’s website
The Company endeavoured to disclose all material
information about the Group to all interested parties
as widely and as timely as possible. The Company
maintained a corporate website at www.springlandgroup.
com.cn where important and updated information about
the Group’s activities and corporate matters such as
annual and interim reports, announcements, business
development and operations, corporate governance
practices and other information are available for
review by shareholders and other stakeholders. When
announcements are made through the Stock Exchange,
the same information is made available on the Company’s
website.

AGM

The AGM provided an important opportunity for
constructive communication between the Board and the
Shareholders. The Board maintained an on-going dialogue
with the shareholders and answered all questions raised
by the shareholders throughout the last AGM held on 26
May 2017.

Investor relations

During the year, the Company strived to improve
transparency and communications with shareholders and
investors. Meetings and conference calls with investors
and analysts were held, in order for the Company to
understand their views and to keep them abreast on the
latest developments.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for convening a special general meeting
by shareholders and putting forward proposals at
shareholders’ meetings

Any one or more shareholders holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company (the “Eligible
Shareholder(s)”) shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the company secretary of the
Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to
be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition, including making proposals
or moving a resolution at an extraordinary general
meeting.

The Board shall convene such meeting within 21
days from the date the requisition deposited and the
extraordinary general meeting shall be held within two
months after the deposit of the requisition. The written
requisition may be sent to the Board or the Company
Secretary to the Company’s head office or principal place
of business in Hong Kong.

If a shareholder wishes to propose a person other than
a retiring Director for election as a Director at a general
meeting, the shareholder should deposit a written notice
of nomination which shall be given to the Company within
the seven days period commencing the day after the
dispatch of the notice of the meeting (or such other period
as may be determined and announced by the Directors
from time to time) and in no event ending no later than
seven days prior to the date appointed for such meeting.
The procedures for proposing a person for election as a
Director, please refer to the procedures made available
under the Investor Relations (Corporate Governance
subsection) of the Company’s website.
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Making enquiry to the Board

Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings to the Company’s Hong Kong Share
Registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited.

Shareholders and the investment community may at any
time make a request for the Company’s information to the
extent such information is publicly available.

Shareholders may make enquiries to the Board in writing
to the Company Secretary at the office of the Company
at Suite 1508, 15/F, Cityplaza Four, 12 Taikoo Wan Road,
Taikoo Shing, Hong Kong.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at
the general meeting.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Memorandum and Articles of Association of the
Company is published on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company. There was no change to the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company
during the year 2017.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is an employee of the Company
and is appointed by the Board. The Company Secretary
is responsible for facilitating the procedure/activities
of the Board and the Board Committees and good
communication flow among the Board members,
shareholders and senior management. The appointment
and removal of the Company Secretary is subject to Board
approval. The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer and is accountable to the
Board for matters relating to the duties of the Directors,
such as by giving advice on corporate governance
developments. All members of the Board have access to
the advice and service of the Company Secretary.

The Company Secretary also plays an essential role in the
relationship between the Company and its shareholders,
including assisting the Board in discharging its obligations
to shareholders pursuant to the Listing Rules. During the
year, the Company Secretary confirmed that she has
complied with all the required qualifications, experience
and training requirements of the Listing Rules.
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The Directors presented their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability
on 21 June 2006. The Group is principally engaged in
the operation of department stores and supermarkets in
the PRC. There were no significant changes in the nature
of the Group’s principal activities during the year. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries were set out in note 1
to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The profit of the Group for the year 2017 and the state of
affairs of the Company and the Group at year-end 2017
were set out on pages 99 to 209 of this report.

During the year 2017, an interim dividend of HK3 cents
per ordinary share was paid. The Board recommended the
payment of a final dividend for the year 2017 of HK$5 cents
in cash per ordinary share to the shareholders appeared
on the register of members of the Company as at 11 June
2018. This recommendation has been incorporated in the
financial statements as a separate allocation within the
equity section of the statement of financial position.

OUR RISK PROFILE

Our approach for managing risk is underpinned by our
understanding of our current risk exposures, and how our
risks are changing over time. The following illustrates the
nature of our major risks.

The Group’s businesses, financial condition, results
of operations or growth prospects may be affected
by risks and uncertainties pertaining to the Group’s
businesses. The factors set out below were those that
the Group believes could affect the Group’s businesses,
financial condition, results of operations or growth
prospects. These factors were by no means exhaustive or
comprehensive, and there may be other factors in addition
to those shown below which are not known to the Group
or which may not be material now but could turn out to be
material in the future.
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Risk associated with the Group business

Our new shopping malls or department stores may not
achieve our expected level of profitability within our
desired time frame

We plan to further enhance our position in the region
by opening new shopping malls and department stores.
Opening self-owned new shopping malls requires
significant capital outlay up front, including the cost of
land and building and decorating the premises. However,
the new shopping mall that we open may not achieve
our expected level of profitability for a prolonged period
of time. Whether or not the operation of new shopping
mall or department store will be successfully depends on
a number of factors, including: our ability to successfully
integrate the new store with our existing operations and
achieve related synergies; our ability to introduce an
optimal mix of merchandise which successfully meets local
consumer preferences; our ability to negotiate and obtain
favorable terms from our concessionaires and suppliers;
the competition that we face from incumbent and new
players in the region and any government development
plans or construction, which could have an impact
on the external traffic flow to our store and the timely
implementation of such changes.

We may fail to anticipate and prove the appropriate mix of
merchandise to satisfy customer tastes and demands

We maintain a comprehensive selection of merchandise
for customers. The success of our business depends
on our ability to maintain a comprehensive product
selection and, at the same time, anticipate and respond
in a timely manner to changing customer demands and
preferences. Consumer demands in the PRC are changing
at a rapid pace. Customer demands are changing at a
rapid pace and become complicated. The consumption
needs having emphasis on individuality and experience.
As the consumption market becomes more complicated,
retailers, facing bigger challenges in fund attraction,
operation and innovation, are also driven to invest more to
satisfy customers’ expectation for experience.
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Technology is playing an increasingly important part in the
survivability of the retail sector. New retail technologies
introduced may substantially be categorized into two
aspects. The first one involves technologies that improve
service convenience and consumption experience, such
as mobile payment, artificial intelligence, augmented
reality/virtual reality experience, etc. The lack or delayed
implementation of those technologies would impair
consumer experience. The second category is applied
to lift the operation and management efficiency at the
corporate level, to facilitate upgrading of the supply chain,
and to streamline management including mobile office,
information-based application, big data, etc. Without
such technologies, corporations would find it very difficult
to adapt to and compete in the new landscape. The
traditional retailers must thoroughly consider the premise
of cost effectiveness when they adopt new technologies
to meet market demands and to protect themselves from
rapid market elimination.

Reliance on key management personnel

The success of the Group in expanding its growth in
operations and maintaining growth in its profitability relies
on the strategy and vision of its key management, efforts
of key members of the management and their experience
in the PRC retail market. The unanticipated resignation or
departure of any of these key management members of
the Group could have a material adverse impact on the
operations of the Group.
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Risks relating to the industry in the PRC

Consumer spending patterns in China can be influenced
by the state of China’s economy.

Consumer spending patterns and consumer confidence
in China are influenced by the state of China’s economy,
which in turn affects our sales volume, turnover,
profitability and our growth. Consumer confidence is
affected by, China general business conditions and
economy as well as current and expected future global
or regional macroeconomic conditions. We believe that
Chinese consumers tend to increase their expenditures
when the Chinese economy is experiencing strong growth
and when they have more disposable income available
for personal consumption. Conversely, a recession in
the Chinese economy, or uncertainties regarding future
economic prospects may result in a reduction in consumer
spending. In the past years, the year-on-year growth rate
of GDP is below 7%, being the lowest since 1991, which
showed the macro-economic growth slows down. That
indicates the China economy has entered the new norm
of maintaining steady growth against economic slowdown.
Due to a relatively well-developed retail market in China, a
single-digit growth rate will continue in the next few years.

Changes in foreign exchange regulations and fluctuation of
RMB

All of the revenues and a substantial proportion of our
expenditure are denominated in Renminbi, which is
currently not a freely convertible currency. We will require
foreign currencies for dividend payment (if any) to our
Shareholders. We will therefore be exposed to foreign
currency fluctuations. If there be significant changes in
the exchange rates of US dollars or Hong Kong dollars
against Renminbi, our Company’s ability to make dividend
payments in foreign currencies may be materially and
adversely affected as well as materially and adversely
affect the value of our Company’s dividends, which would
be funded by Renminbi but paid in Hong Kong dollars.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year were set out in note 37(a) to the financial
statements.
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RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group
and of the Company during the year were set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity of this report
and note 44 to the financial statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under Cayman lIslands Companies Law, the Company
may pay dividends out of profit or its share premium
account in accordance with the provisions of the Articles
of Association of the Company and provided that
immediately following the date on which the dividend is
proposed to be distributed, the Company will be able to
pay its debts as and when they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

At year-end 2017, the Company’s share premium
available for distribution amounted to RMB430 million,
of which RMB89 million has been proposed as a final
dividend for the year. Details of which are set out in note
44 in the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group were set out in note 17 to the financial
statements.

BANK BORROWINGS AND FINANCING
NOTES

Bank borrowings, medium-term notes and corporate
bonds of the Group at year-end 2017 amounted to
RMB2,991 million, details of which were set out in notes
28 to 30 to the financial statements.

COMMITMENTS

Details of the commitments of the Group were set out in
note 36 to the financial statements.

DONATIONS

Donations made by the Group during the year amounted
to RMB1.7 million.
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published financial results and financial
position of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the audited financial statements, is set out
on page 210. This summary does not form part of the
audited financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during 2017 and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Chen Jiangiang (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Tao Qingrong

Yu Yaoming (resigned on 21 March 2018)

Non-executive Director
Fung Hiu Chuen, John

Independent Non-executive Directors
Lin Zhijun

Zhang Weijiong

Cheung Yat Ming

Pursuant to Article 84 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, two of the Directors, namely, Tao Qingrong and
Cheung Yat Ming shall retire by rotation and being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM.

On 21 March 2018, Chen Jiangiang has been appointed
as the chief executive officer of the Group and Tao
Qingrong has re-designated as a vice chairman and vice
president of the Group. The Director’s remuneration
payable to Chen Jiangiang will currently remain the same,
will be subject to annual review by the Remuneration
Committee. Tao Qingrong confirmed that there is no
disagreement with the Board and there is no other matter
in relation to his re-designation that needs to be brought
to the attention of the shareholder of the Company.

There are no other matters that need to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

078

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 F

MBEERE
REEBERFCHMG0H S EERMBR
RBRAFRE0E - ZEHBALTHAE
BB BRRO—HLD

25
RRABR2017TFRARERIECESHT ¢

HITES

PRIESE (EEHRITHAAH)

B B &8

B2 (R201843H21 HBE(T)

HHITES
%5 B 9F

BAFHITES
MEE
S A A
w—15

BEBARREBERSES4MF HPMUES
FERMEKR ISR RITHRRBE RS
t®wERE YN EERBEEREL -

R20185F3H21H - RERZEAAREETT
BARE - MEREFEERARBEEFR
Blias - BATMREBREEFHMRT T2 -
VERFHEZESETFERS - HERE

ROREEFEIETRTG NEEH
HECHEMEEARBARABRRET -

RIE ETRBIE13.51B(1) K - WEE M E R
FRELRE -



ANNUAL REPORT 2017

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company were
set out in the section headed “Biographical Details of
Directors” in this report. The senior management of the
Group is also executive Directors of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM has a service contract with the Company or any
of its subsidiaries which shall not be terminated within
one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

Details of the Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
remuneration are set out in note 11 of the financial
statements.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year 2017 were rights to acquire
benefits by means of acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any Directors or
their respective spouses or minor children, or were any
such rights exercised by them; or was the Company
or its holding company or subsidiary or a subsidiary of
the Company’s holding company was a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights
through any other corporate entities.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed under “Connected transactions and
continuing connected transactions” below, no contract
of significance to the business of the Group to which
the Company, its holding company or subsidiary or a
subsidiary of the Company’s holding company was a party
and in which a Director or controlling shareholder or any
of its subsidiaries or any company controlled by a director
or controlling shareholder had a material interest, either
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year 2017.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

At year-end 2017, the interests of each Director and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”), as recorded
in the register maintained by the Company under Section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules were as follows:

Long position in the Shares of the Company

Number of ordinary
Shares interested

Name of director Nature of Interest

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 F

EERFTETHRAERRSG M
ARORES2EERKXA

R2017FFE - RRABREZE 7 K BE &P
(TRHFEBMEHED) E352(6MEFE 2 ERL
fit Prac s iR 1B E AR RIB & +-Pr# 2 £
REAEFENTEF X FNRETR ([1RET
Al ZTTHERRARNERFT AAREE
B RITHARRN AR B R EARRAE (% 5E 55
KB RPIEXVER 2 %) 2 xtn - MR
REFZEEHIINT

ERARROHNEFR

Percentage
of the Company’s
issued share capital

HARQTE

ERITRAN

EERS ERME BENEEREAR Batk
Chen Jiangiang Interest in controlled 1,442,500,000 (Note) (#7 i) 65.06%

corporation

PRE 5 REZEGEE MR

Note: These shares were held by Octopus (China) Holdings
Limited, in which is wholly owned by Octopus Holdings
Foundation. Mr. Chen as the sole shareholder of Octopus
Holdings Foundation is deemed to be interested in the
Shares held by Octopus (China) Holdings Limited. Both
Octopus Holdings Foundation and Octopus (China)
Holdings Limited are holding companies of the Company,
each of them is an associated corporation of the
Company under the SFO.
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Long position in the Shares and underlying shares of AATBEBEENROREERANERS
associated corporations of the Company

Number and Percentage
class of shares of interest
Name of of the associated in the associated
Name of director associated corporation Nature of interest corporation held corporation
BERELERS EE L EER
EENZE BHIEEE BRtE HEE FMER HWEA
Chen Jiangiang Octopus Holdings Beneficial interest 1 ordinary share 100%
Foundation (Note) (1)
Y=g Octopus Holdings ExEAA TREER
Foundation
Chen Jiangiang Octopus (China) Holdings Interest in controlled 100 ordinary shares 100%
Limited corporation corporation (Note) (f7#t)
BRiog Octopus (China) Holdings MREHEE 1008 & 18 [ 1 1 22
Limited
Note: 1,442,500,000 Shares were held by Octopus (China) Biat - 1,442,500,0008% 13 FHOctopus (China)
Holdings Limited, in which is wholly-owned by Octopus Holdings Limited# & + Octopus (China)
Holdings Foundation. Mr. Chen as the sole shareholder of Holdings LimitedfiOctopus Holdings
Octopus Holdings Foundation is deemed to be interested Foundation® & # & ° FR 5t 4 E AOctopus .
in the Shares held by Octopus (China) Holdings Limited. Holdings Foundationfy M — %3 - MR @, 4
As each of Octopus Holdings Foundation and Octopus Z%%ﬁOth)pus (China)\Holdings Limited# 48 ggﬁ
(China) Holdings Limited all are holding companies of the Rk HEB #EEE - R & Octopus Holdings &I)&m
Company, each of them is an associated corporation of Foundation#Octopus (China) Holdings En:m
the Company under the SFO. Limited?d A A R Bl#E R A & - BIESFO - a
b M BB A AN A R K B EBAE -
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none B X ES  R2017F12A31BARAE
of the Directors and chief executive of the Company had ER&ERITEA BB ER AR &) o {7 78 5
or was deemed to have any interest or short position EERG  BEROIBESFTIFEXIER A
in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the BHRIESFOFEIS2EAAARNRITFEMNES
Company or any of its associated corporations which were fit A8, - BB EREFA BN AR A A
required to be recorded in the register kept under Section R PR R EOR A -

352 of the SFO, or otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN
SHARE

As at 31 December 2017, so far as is known to any
Directors and chief executive of the Company, the
following persons (other than Directors or chief executive
of the Company) had, or were deemed to have, interests
of 5% or more in the shares of the Company notified to
the Company under the provisions of the Divisions 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO, or as recorded in the register kept
by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO:
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R

Long position in the shares of the Company EATROGHEFE
Approximate percentage
of the Company’s
Number of issued share capital
Name of shareholders Capacity ordinary shares ERATE BT
REAM 5% EBERYA RANE
Octopus Holdings Foundation Interest of controlled corporation 1,442,500,000 65.06%
Rt EEER (Note) (#7:2)
International Value Advisers, LLC Investment manager 262,644,000 11.85%
REKE
FIL Limited Investment manager 117,756,000 5.31%

RERE

Note: Octopus (China) Holdings Limited is wholly-owned by
Octopus Holdings Foundation. Mr. Chen as the sole
shareholder of Octopus Holdings Foundation is deemed
to be interested in Shares held by Octopus (China)
Holdings Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, the
Company had not been notified by any persons, other
than the Directors and chief executive of the Company, of
other interest or short position in the Shares, underlying
Shares or debentures of the Company that was required
to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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INTERESTS OF ANY OTHER PERSONS

As at 31 December 2017, the Company had not been
notified of any persons other than the substantial
shareholders who had interests or short positions in
the Shares of the Company, which are required to be
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section
336 of Part XV of the SFO.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year 2017, pursuant to the general mandate
given to the Directors of the Company, the Company
repurchased a total of 106,823,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each of the Company on the Stock Exchange at
an aggregate consideration of HK$164.9 million. During
the year, 100,588,000 shares were repurchased and
12,987,000 treasury shares were cancelled. The number
of issued shares of the Company as of 31 December 2017
was 2,217,185,000 shares.

Subsequent to 31 December 2017 and up to the date
of the report, the Company repurchased a total of
10,950,000 shares at an aggregate consideration of
HK$20.4 million. 17,185,000 shares were repurchased
and all treasury shares were cancelled in March 2018. The
number of issued shares of the company as at the date of
this report was 2,200,000,000 shares.

Particulars of the shares repurchased during the year are
as follows:

No. of shares at
HK$0.01 each
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AR MEEBLRBEZESMBEKAE
XVEBE 336158 EHF R E LM -

BE - HELBEAAT LD
&5

2017 RERETFARFTES 2 — KK
#oARRIUNARELI640B BB TRER
Ffr 8% 2 & $£106,823,0000% & A 7 & K H &
0.0 Tz LRGN - £/ + 100,588,000
A% B [3 AR 1D A112,987,000/E 17 B4 5 8 - 7
20179 12A31H * ARAIZBEETRMHER
/2,217,185,0004% °

R2017F12A31ABEAFRERAT - AAQF
B8 [0 & £10,950,0008% J& 15 - R (& 520.4
BEBIT 17,185,000 i [@ I 15 71 5 17 AR
DR2018F3 AW - AR RBEAFRA
B2 BT IR1DE B A2,200,000,000% °

FRACERRN ZFBOT

Price per share

BREE BRRE Aggregate

0.01& T Highest Lowest consideration

Month of repurchase RO EE BE 1K HmRE
BOAG Thousands HKS HKS HK$'000
TR BT BT FHET

March 2017 20174 3A 2,750 1.43 1.35 3,858
April 2017 2017%4 A 3,000 1.44 1.40 4,257
May 2017 201745A 8,123 1.87 1.41 13,301
June 2017 201746 A 3,900 1.88 1.84 7,324
August 2017 201748 A 10,168 1.50 1.41 15,176
September 2017 20179 9A 24,892 1.50 1.36 35,923
October 2017 2017410 A 12,410 1.46 1.40 17,725
November 2017 2017411 A 22,450 1.64 1.45 34,817
December 2017 2017512 19,130 1.90 1.60 32,623
106,823 164,904
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The Directors consider that the repurchases were made
for the benefit of the Company and its shareholders as
a whole with a view to enhancing the earnings per share
and net asset value per share of the Company. Save
as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities during the period.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the Company’s listed securities during the year.

COMPETING INTEREST

At year-end 2017, none of the Directors or directors of
the Company’s subsidiaries, or their respective associates
had any interests in the businesses, other than being
a director of the Company and/or its subsidiaries and
their respective associates, that compete or are likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business
of the Group as required to be disclosed pursuant to the
Listing Rules.

SHARE OPTION

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) pursuant to the resolutions of
the Company passed on 30 September 2010. The Share
Option Scheme will remain in force until 29 September
2020.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract,
retain and motivate talented participants, to strive for
future developments and expansion of the Group. The
Share Option Scheme shall be an incentive to encourage
the participants to perform their best in achieving the
goals of the Group and allow the participants to enjoy the
results of the Company attained through their efforts and
contributions. The Board may, at its absolute discretion,
offer any employee, management member or Director of
the Company, or any member of the Group, and third
party service providers options to subscribe for shares
on the terms set out in the Share Option Scheme. The
amount payable on acceptance of an option is HK$1.00.
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The maximum number of shares which options may
be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company shall not
in aggregate exceed the number of shares that shall
represent 10% of issued share capital of the Company
(i.e. 250,000,000 shares) as at the Listing Date. The
limit on the number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other
schemes of the Company must not exceed such number
of shares as shall represent 30% of the shares issued by
the Company from time to time.

Unless approved by the Company’s shareholders in
general meeting, the Board shall not grant options to any
person if the acceptance of those options would result
in the total number of shares issued and to be issued to
that person on exercise of his/her options including both
exercised and outstanding options during any 12-month
period exceeding 1% of the total shares then in issue.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the
terms of the Share Option Scheme at any time during the
period to be notified by the Board to the grantee save
that such period shall not be more than 10 years from the
business day on which the option is deemed to have been
granted in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme. There is no minimum period for which an option
must be held before it can be exercised.

The price per share at which a grantee may subscribe
for shares upon exercise of an option shall, be a price
determined by the Board but in any event shall be at
least the highest of: (i) the closing price of the shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on
the offer date; (ii) the average of the closing prices of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding
the offer date; and (i) the nominal value of the shares.

Since the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme

and up to the date of this Report, no options have been
granted under the Share Option Scheme by the Company.
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REMUNERATION POLICY

The Directors’ and Chief Executive’s emoluments are
determined by the Remuneration Committee, with
reference to their duties, responsibilities and performance
and the results of the Group and comparable market
statistics, including the prevailing market rate for
executives of similar position.

The Group’s remuneration policy is primarily based
on duties, performance and length of service of each
individual employee with reference to the prevailing market
conditions.

RETIREMENT FUND SCHEMES

The Group’s employees in the PRC participate in defined
contribution retirement schemes administered and
operated by the relevant PRC municipal governments.
The Group’s relevant PRC subsidiaries contributed funds
to the retirement schemes which are calculated based
on certain percentage of the average employee salary
as stipulated by the local municipal government. Such
retirement schemes were responsible for the entire post-
retirement benefit obligations payable to the retired
employees. The Group had no further obligations for the
actual payment of post-retirement benefits beyond the
aforesaid contributions.

The Group made contributions to defined contribution
retirement schemes under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance and the Occupational Retirement
Scheme Ordinance in Hong Kong for all employees
in Hong Kong. The assets of the scheme are held in
separate trustee administered funds. The pension plans
are generally funded by payments from employees and
by the Group. The Group’s contributions to the defined
contribution retirement schemes are expensed as
incurred.

The Group’s contributions to retirement benefit schemes
were charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss for the year 2017 were RMB73 million. Details of the
contribution retirement schemes are set out in note 10 of
the financial statements.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group entered into the following
transactions which constituted connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions of the Company as
set out in Chapter 14A to the Listing Rules on the Stock
Exchange.

Continuing connected transaction - loan for the
outstanding consideration for the disposal of
Deposits & Financial Products

On 30 April 2014, indirectly wholly owned subsidiaries of
the Company, Jiangsu Springland International Holding
(Group) Ltd. (“Jiangsu Springland”) and Wuxi Xishan
Yaohan Lifestyle Center Co., Ltd. (“Xishan Yaohan”)
as sellers entered into an agreement (the “Disposal
Agreement”) with Mr. Chen Jiangiang (the “Purchaser”),
whereby Jiangsu Springland disposed the Financial
Product and Xishan Yaohan disposed the Deposit for
the considerations in the amount of RMB180 million
and RMB100 million respectively to the Purchaser. The
considerations in the amount of RMB280 million were
agreed to be paid on/before 31 December 2014 in cash
by the Purchaser.

On 16 December 2014, Jiangsu Springland, Xishan
Yaohan and the Purchaser entered into the supplemental
agreement and extended the payment date for the
outstanding consideration under the Disposal Agreement
in the amount of RMB182 million to 31 December 2016.
On 1 December 2016, Jiangsu Springland, Xishan Yaohan
and the Purchaser entered into the another supplemental
agreement and further extended the payment date for
the outstanding consideration of RMB118,000,000 to 31
December 2019. Starting from 1 January 2015, interest
is charged on the amount due from the Purchaser under
the Disposal Agreement with an interest rate of 3.5% per
annum. During the year 2017, the Purchaser has paid
RMB18 million to the Group as principal and fully settled
the interest of the outstanding consideration under the
Disposal Agreement.
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The Purchaser, Mr. Chen, the Chairman and the
controlling shareholder of the Company, is a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules.
Accordingly, loan for the outstanding consideration under
the Disposal Agreement and its supplemental agreements
constituted continuing connected transactions of the
Company under the Listing Rules. Details of the entering
into of the Disposal Agreement by Jiangsu Springland
and Xishan Yaohan and Mr. Chen for the disposal of
the Financial Product and the Deposit and extension of
payment date of outstanding consideration arrangement
have been set out in the announcements dated 2 May
2014, 16 December 2014 and 1 December 2016 issued
by the Company.

Views of the auditors and independent non-executive
Directors

The auditors of the Company have provided a letter to
the Board pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules
confirming that, for the year ended 31 December 2017,
the connected transaction and continuing connected
transaction (i) has received the approval of the Board;
(i) has been entered into in accordance with the terms
of the agreements governing the transactions; and (iii)
has not exceeded the cap disclosed in the relevant
announcements made by the Company in relation in the
continuing connected transaction.

Independent non-executive Directors have confirmed
that the above connected transactions and continuing
connected transaction has been entered into by the Group
in the ordinary and usual course of its business, either on
normal commercial terms or on terms no less favorable
to the Company than terms available to or from (as
appropriate) independent third parties, and in accordance
with the terms of the relevant agreements governing the
above connected transactions and continuing connected
transaction that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Group was entered into or existed during
the year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance through its continuous effort in
improving its corporate governance practices. Information
on the corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report
on pages 49 to 72.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year 2017, none of the Group’s customers or
suppliers accounted for more than 5% of the Group’s
revenue or purchases. None of the Directors or any
of their associates or any shareholders (which, to the
best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of
the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial
interest in the five largest customers or five largest
suppliers of the Group.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There were no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles of Association of the Company, or the laws of
the Cayman Islands pursuant to which the Company shall
be obliged to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to the
existing shareholders.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, at
least 25% of the Company’s total issued share capital is
held by the public at the date of this report.

TAX RELIEF

The Company was not aware of any relief from taxation
available to shareholders by reason of their holding of the
shares.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Details of the significant events after the reporting period
of the Group were set out in note 43 to the financial
statements.
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AUDITORS BB B

The financial statements have been audited by MR ELKETMBETER - K
Ernst & Young. Ernst & Young will retire as the Company’s S ESAESERNRNBZEE - WERN
auditor and a resolution for their re-appointment as the BRITHORERAFAE FBIRERERER
Company’s auditor will be proposed at the Company’s BT o

forthcoming AGM.

By order of the Board REEG®

Springland International Holdings Limited EiERIEREBER A A
Chen Jiangiang BRZE®R

Chairman 5

Hong Kong, 21 March 2018 HA - 20183 H21H
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Ernst & Young

EY =x

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SPRINGLAND INTERNATIONAL
HOLDINGS LIMITED

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Springland International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 99
to 209, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2017, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2017, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”)
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(“IASB”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit
of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For each matter below, our description of
how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that
context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report, including in
relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included
the performance of procedures designed to respond to
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements. The results of our
audit procedures, including the procedures performed
to address the matters below, provide the basis for our
audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.
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Impairment test of goodwill

The Group had goodwill of RMB250 million as at
31 December 2017. According to IFRSs, the Group
is required to perform annual impairment test of
goodwill. Impairment is determined by assessing
the value in use of the cash-generating units
(“CGU”) to which the goodwill is allocated. Where
value in use is less than the carrying amount of
goodwill, an impairment should be recognized. The
Group assessed the value in use by performing
profit forecasts and estimating future cash flows
of the respective CGUs, which involved a number
of significant judgements and estimates such
as revenue growth rates, the gross margins,
expenses rates and discount rate. Changes in these
assumptions might lead to a change in the value in
use of goodwill.

Key assumptions on which management has
based its present value of cash flow projections
to undertake impairment testing of goodwill are
included in note 20 Goodwill of financial statements.
Estimation uncertainty is included in note 3 Significant
accounting judgement and estimates of financial
statements.

Our audit procedures included evaluating the
methodologies and main assumptions used in the
goodwill impairment testing model. We paid specific
attention to the revenues growth rates, the gross
margins, expenses rates and discount rates. To
assess the main assumptions, we compared them
to the respective CGUs’ historical financial data
and also considered the business plan and external
market’s conditions. Our valuation specialists were
involved to assist us in reviewing the impairment test
model, in particular, the discount rates and long term
growth rates. We checked the relevant disclosures of
goodwill impairment testing.
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Estimation and disclosure with respect to
deferred tax assets

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had deferred tax
assets amounting to RMB111 million. The deferred
tax assets were mainly recognized for tax-deductible
losses, salary payables, accrued rental expenses,
loss on disposal of assets and bonus point liabilities
to the extent that it was likely that sufficient taxable
profit will be available in the future. The process
of estimating the future taxable profits is complex,
and required significant management estimates and
judgements which are mainly affected by future
actual operation, tax regulations, market or economic
conditions.

Please refer to note 23 deferred tax of financial
statements for movements of deferred tax assets and
management’s estimation for tax losses that cannot
be utilized. Estimation concertainty is included in note
3 significant accounting judgement and estimates of
financial statements.

We evaluated and tested the management
assessment on available taxable profits by, among
others, comparing to the Group’s business plans,
expected future profit forecasts and historical
financial performance. We paid attention to the main
assumptions including revenue growth rates, gross
margin as well as the estimated applicable tax rate
in future. We checked the relevant disclosures of
deferred tax assets and management’s estimation for
tax losses that cannot be utilized.

Observation of inventory count

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s inventories
amounted to RMB351 million as disclosed in the
consolidated financial statements. During the year,
the Group provided a wide variety and a large
quantity of inventories, all of which were easily
liguidated and were scattered in some department
stores and supermarkets of the Group. There existed
significant misstatement risk in regarding inventories
assertions of existence and completeness.
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The balance of inventory was disclosed in note 24
Inventories of financial statements.

At the year end, we attended stock taking on a sample
basis. We observed the process of stock taking and
checked the quantities on a sample basis. As the
inventory counting date was before 31 December, we
also performed audit procedures to obtain audit evidence
for changes in inventories between the count date and
31 December 2017. We understood and tested the
Group’s internal control system of inventory management,
including the process of purchase, warehouse
management and sales. Our IT specialists were also
involved to test the electronical system used for inventory
management.

Other information included in the Annual Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual Report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs issued
by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors of the Company either intend to liquidate
the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the
Audit Committee in discharging their responsibilities for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we ERBEEBRTENETENNBREFR  H
exercise professional judgement and maintain professional PER TEHEHE  RIFTHEERREE -
scepticism throughout the audit. We also: B IR :

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

e FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

e FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.
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e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion
on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit
Committee, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Lai Chee Kong.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

21 March 2018
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REVENUE
Other income and gains

Purchase of and changes in inventories

Staff costs

Depreciation and amortisation
Rental expenses

Other expenses

Finance costs

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Income tax expense

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interests

EARNINGS PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE PARENT

Basic and diluted (RMB)

SPRINGLAND INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED  #th BB 12 i B BR A &

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

Year ended 31 December 2017
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HZE20175F12 A31HIEFE

2017 2016

—E—+fF —T—RF

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
k3 AR T ARETT
4,444,039 4,192,723

7 671,601 711,317

(2,600,439) (2,480,538)

(702,988) (667,339)

(485,287) (438,871)

(106,292) (94,076)

8 (623,621) (651,506)

9 (65,751) (75,282)

10 531,262 496,428

13 (192,767) (174,041)
338,495 322,387

340,019 325,058

(1,524) (2,671)

338,495 322,387
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

SEZEHRER

Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017F12A31HILFE

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

Other comprehensive income to
be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods:

Exchange differences:
Exchange differences on
translation of foreign operations

Net other comprehensive income to
be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME FOR THE YEAR,
NET OF TAX

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interests
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2017 2016

—E-tE  —TAF

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
k23 AR® TR ARET T
338,495 322,387

73,069 (74,285)

73,069 (74,285)

73,069 (74,285)

411,564 (248,102)

413,088 250,773

(1,524) (2,671)

411,564 248,102
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment

Prepaid land premiums

Other intangible assets

Goodwill

Available-for-sale investments

Long-term prepayments

Deferred tax assets

Restricted cash

Long-term time deposits at banks

Due from the controlling
shareholder

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Trade receivables

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Derivative financial instruments

Cash and cash equivalents

Assets of a disposal group
classified as held for sale

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Interest-bearing bank borrowings
Trade payables

Other payables and accruals
Derivative financial instruments
Tax payable

Liabilities directly associated
with the assets classified
as held for sale

Total current liabilities

NET CURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL ASSETS LESS
CURRENT LIABILITIES
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Notes

it

17
18
19
20
21
22
23
27
27

39(b)

24
25

26
33
27

38

28
31
32
33

38

e AR R &

31 December 2017

20174128318

2017 2016
—B—tF ZEREF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARBETT
9,124,065 8,772,195
1,627,588 1,676,148
26,955 29,199
250,384 250,384
5,188 2,550
12,942 19,371
111,151 111,290
113,158 108,908
- 177,979

99,984 117,974
11,371,415 11,265,998
351,108 417,646
6,412 10,663
430,792 316,945
- 11,487
511,198 401,592
1,299,510 1,158,333
- 26,400
1,299,510 1,184,733
1,467,948 1,789,204
1,278,855 1,290,133
2,449,601 2,471,663
13,270 -
50,875 56,547
5,260,549 5,567,547
- 4,769
5,260,549 5,562,316
(3,961,039) (4,377,583)
7,410,376 6,888,415

FREMBRR R

=
F=
so
mi=
37
34
-
e
[>X¥)
¥4
e
o
17}
zl.l.
o©
o




|—
=
SO
GiE
7
<
3
-
s
O
<
oz
3z
o
7]
zl.l.
oo
(&

SREMBMRRE

SPRINGLAND INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED  ZE3h B B2 A 5 BR A &

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e B R IR R 3R

31 December 2017
2017912 A31H

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Interest-bearing bank borrowings
Medium term financing notes
Corporate bonds

Long-term payables

Deferred tax liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

Net assets

EQUITY

Equity attributable to owners of
the parent

Issued capital

Treasury shares

Reserves

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Chen Jiangiang
PR 22 38
Director

EF

FRBEE
st RRITER
b
DA EFF
REERFR
EIEHIAERE

FRBREEE
BEEFE

i
BRARERA
FE 1 2
EBITRA
JEE 17 B
fré

Notes

it

28
29
30
34
23

37(a)
37(a)

Tao Qingrong
B BB
Director

EF
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2017 2016
—E—+F —E—REF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
396,000 -
309,974 309,074
817,070 814,670
77,107 62,614
559,733 561,625
2,159,884 1,747,983
5,250,492 5,140,432
19,146 20,127

(54) (112)
5,066,312 4,951,352
5,085,404 4,971,367
165,088 169,065
5,250,492 5,140,432
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

At 1 January 2016
Proft for the year

Other comprehensive income fo the year:

Exchange differences on translaton of

foreign operations

Total comprehensive income for year

Acguistfon of non-controling inferests

Cancelation of a subsidiary

Appropriaton to statutory surplus reserve

Dividends paid to non-controling
shareholders

Final 2015 dvidend declared

Interim 2016 dividend

Repurchase of shares

Repurchase and canceation of shares

At 31 December 2016

R01651 418
EfmE|
EnEfaag:
BzEnEL2E

EmEEAREE
Wi ERES
il il Y%
EATEELES

KHRETHARRR

B
=

BIRENGERERS
D6FRERS
EORZE
REEERHS

HO016E12831R

Notes

i3

37
37
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GEERBER

Year ended 31 December 2017

EZE2017F12A31BLEFE
Atrioutable to owners of the parent
BRTEEARR
Exchange
Statutory fluctuation Non-

Issued Treasury Share Contrbuted suplus— Discrefionary 6S1Ve Refained controling Total
capita shares premium surplus 6S1Ve 6S61Ve ES gamings Total Inferests equity
k:ditie Bk RRMEE  EHRE  iedhe  BRBE  BBRE  REER g FARER  EaEE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RVB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RVB'000 RVB'000
ARET  ARETT  ARBTr  ARETR  ARBTn  ARETR  ARETr ARETn  ARETR ARETn ARETR

Note 378) ~ Note 373 Note37b) ~ Note 7€) Note 37()

K K Ky mamy Ky
2007 - 1030 (1,512) 813,926 3110 (87230 3163813 5007818 189800 517,708
- - - - - - - 325,058 325,058 2671) 30387
- - - - - - (74,285) - (74,288 - (74,285)
- - - - - - (74,285) 325,088 %0713 2671) 28102
- - - - - - - (219 (219 2,364) (2,643
- - - - - - - - - (601) 601)
- - - - 87,838 - - (87839) - - -
- - - - - - - - - (15,189) (15,189)
- - (142:33) - - - - - (142,332) - (142,33
- - 61,239) - - - - - (61,238) - 61,238)
- (892) (102,483 - - - - - (103,375) - (103,375)
(780) 780 - - - - - - - - -
0,127 (112) 728,151 (1512 901,764 R0 (515 400784 497167 169065 5140432
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REREZBER

Year ended 31 December 2017

BZE2017F12A31HIEFE
Atributable to owners of the parent
BATERARE
Exchange
Statutory fluctuation Non-
Issued Treasury Share  Contributed surplus  Discretionary reserve Retained controlling Total
capital shares premium surplus reserve reserve Ej eamings Total interests equity
BRITRA EFR  REEE  REEH  fENEE  BEEE  REEE  RERR it RERER  EnSE
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
f# ARBTR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARMTT  ARMTZ  ARBTn  ARRTR  ARMTR  ARMTZ  ARBTz  ARETR
Note 37(a) ~ Note 37a) Note 37(b) ~ Noted7(c)  Note 37d)
Kiste Ko ks K K
A1 Javay 2017 R0TEIFIR 017 My 8 (510 OB R0 (155 074 ASHT 169085 54042
Proft for the year ERET b = o - - - - 340,019 340,019 (1,524) 338,495
Other comprehensive income for the year: £/ MG 48
Exchange diferences on trangaion of EzhoEazE
foreign operations - - - - - - 73,069 - 73,069 - 73,069
Totel comprefensiv income or year EmEENREE - - - - - - 3060 M09 413088 (1520 41564
Appropraton to satutory suplus resene  EREEEARE - - - - 98,885 - - (98,865) - - -
Dividends paidto non-contrling KHkaFHERRR
shereholers - - - - - - 2 = = (24%8) (2:4%8)
Final 2016 dividend declared BREIERERE 1 - - (100,220 - - - - - (100,220) - (100,220)
ern 201 diidend WIERERS 1 . - (e ] ; - - - ) T
Capttal njecton from non-contraling FERRRTAFEE
shargholders of a subsidiary - - - - - - - - - 4 4
Repurchase of hares B3 37 - (023 (130,269 - - - - - (Moo - (M09
Repurchase and cancelation of shares REEER S 37 (981) 9% - - - - - - - - -
At 31 December 2017 VEVERIEE 19,146 (54) 430,028 (1512 1,000,649* B0t (38446 3,641,888 5,085,404 165,088 5,260,492
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves Y ZEREERPAKGSVBMRARANLEGS
of RMB5,066,312,000 (2016: RMB4,951,352,000) in the fek 5 /3 A R #55,066,312,0007T (2016%F = A

consolidated statement of financial position. K 4,951,352,00078)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERERER

Year ended 31 December 2017

Cash flows from operating
activities

Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation
Amortisation of prepaid
land premiums
Amortisation of other intangible
assets
Loss on disposal of items of
property, plant and equipment
Loss on disposal of items of
other intangible assets
Foreign exchange differences, net
Fair value gains, net:

Derivative instruments —
transactions not qualifying
as hedges

Loss on write-off unlisted equity
investments at cost
Finance costs
Impairment of goodwill
Impairment of property,
plant and equipment
Impairment of other intangible assets
Interest income
Loss on disposal of investments
at fair value through profit or loss

Provision for slow-moving
inventories

Decrease/(increase) in inventories
Increase in trade receivables,
prepayments, deposits and
other receivables
Decrease in long-term prepayments
Increase in trade payables,
other payables and accruals
Increase/(Decrease) in long-term
payables

Cash generated from operations
Income tax paid

Net cash flows from operating
activities

REXKMBRERE
BR Bt A A1
BTSSR AR -
e
T 13 o B 5
Hfth B & B 5

Jﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ/QFEﬁE

EXEE
AT EMEFE -

fTELRMIA-THE

HhzR5
B R AFHER

FEMREREER

BAKA
BEREEE

W mERRE
HEERE

A B R (E

FlB A

REZLTEIE

E’J&éﬁ?‘a%
HEEERE

5/ (1)
e s T A
EERAMBRIA
n
£ 578 (1 SR A
BAESHE - Xl
A R A 2

REVEMFOEE N, OB D)

ReEmBaSE
BENEHR

REXBRAESRAFE
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HZE20175F12 A31HIEFE

2017 2016

—E—+tE —E—RF

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
H et ARETR ARETTT
531,262 496,428

17 451,382 409,934
18 31,221 25,874
19 2,684 3,063
10 16,374 19,310
10 - 3,024
(90) 10,408
78&10 24,757 (11,487)
10 - 110
9 65,751 75,282
20 - 54,056
17 8,146 3
19 2,838 .
7 (20,766) (30,815)
10 4,924 i
10 (1,083) 135
1,117,400 1,055,322

67,621 (94,812)
(74,264) (31,411)

6,429 5,381

63,634 252,167

14,493 (10,756)

1,195,313 1,175,891

(200,192) (213,463)

995,121 962,428
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SPRINGLAND INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED  #ith BB 12 i B fR A &)

= A =B
%R::iﬁifﬁznbsaﬁﬁ
Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017F12A31HILFE

Cash flows from investing
activities

Interest received

Purchases of items of property,
plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of items of
property, plant and equipment

Purchase of items of intangible assets

Purchase of available-for-sale
unlisted investments

Losses on disposal of investments
at fair value through profit or loss

Decrease in an amounts due from
the controlling shareholder

Decrease in restricted cash

Decrease in time deposits

Net cash flows used in
investing activities

REZBFBRERE

B KA B
BEWE BERR

HEME  BFER&K
PTS5R

BEEVEE
BEAHEMEFLMRE

BRELZANFEAEALE
2HFABENREBRR

B W B BRI

R EBE 2R D
JE Hi7F 3R

REZHHMA
ReREFE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE-RF

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Hat AR¥ETR ARET T
9,153 31,597

(833,699) (694,960)

2,034 -

(3,278) =

(2,638) (2,550)

(4,924) -

18,000 64,000

- 120,000

4,520 80,030

(810,832) (401,883)
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SPRINGLAND INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 3

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from financing activities

Repayment of bank borrowings
Repayment of short-term financing notes
New bank borrowings
Proceeds from issue of corporate bonds
Proceeds from issue of medium
term financing notes
Acquisition of non-controlling interests
Repurchase of the Company’s shares
Capital injection from non-controlling
shareholders
Dividends paid
Dividends paid to non-controlling
shareholders
Interest paid

Net cash flows used in financing
activities

Net decrease in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year

Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes, net

Cash and cash equivalents
at end of year

Analysis of balances of cash
and cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances

Non-pledged time deposits with
original maturity of less than
three months when acquired

Cash and cash equivalents as
stated in the statement of
cash flows

RMEZHFERERE
EERITER
BENRE 5

G RITIE K
FODREZFMGRE
BRITTHEBEMETR
W SR i
FHEPNGIES
FERRRIE

ENBRE
B FEERRRE S
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REZDIAREREFR

RERRESENHD
FPNRERAEEEY

NEEXEBHHOFTE 2
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GEHETRER

Year ended 31 December 2017

HZE20175F12 A31HIEFE

2017 2016

—E—+tE —E—RF

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
H et ARETR ARETTT
(1,466,417) (4,161,7083)

- (500,000)

1,665,284 3,324,667

- 792,800

- 297,300
- (73,774)

(140,191) (103,375)

45 -

(158,860) (203,570)

(2,498) (6,887)

(115,346) (79,382)

(217,983) (713,924)

(33,694) (153,379)

389,422 536,861

(2,180) 5,940

353,548 389,422

27 275,731 337,394
77,817 52,028

353,548 389,422
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SPRINGLAND INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED  ZE3h B B2 A 5 BR A & ANNUAL REPORT 2017 F 5

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 i a MY =

Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017F12A31HILFE

CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION

Springland International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated as an exempted
company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands
on 21 June 2006 under the Companies Law, Cap.22
(Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the
Cayman Islands. The registered office address of the
Company is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman lIslands.
The Company was listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange on 21 October 2010.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) are principally engaged in
the operation of department stores and supermarkets
in Mainland China. In the opinion of the directors
of the Company (the “Directors”), the ultimate
holding company of the Group is Octopus Holdings
Foundation, a company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands.

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries
are as follows:

RAREEEHR

EWMEEERERAA ([AAR] R
200656 H21BRIEMEBHERAES
22F (1961F A PI3 « &2 A& RIEFT)
EFREREAMKZAEREERA
A) o A" A 7] 7% it #% =5 BE i HE ACricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681,
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands ° A~ 81742010410 A 21 B 7 B
RAETERLE™ o

AR REMBAR (6B IAEE])
FERFREANMEEAEERBM °
ARBER([EX])RR F~5E
B & #% 1% J& 2 3] AOctopus Holdings
Foundation + —FHIRF & &Mz
BAF] e

o) N
ARREEMBARFBET :
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Percentage
Place and date of  Nominal value of of equity
incorporation/  issued ordinary/ attributable
registration registered to the
and operations share capital Company Principal
Name HEMARL/RILR BRT/ER KEBELR activities
DAER BERHERAN EERRAEE ERAI N TEER
17
= Springland International Group British Virgin Island ("BVI") USS$1 100% Investment holding
S " Company Limited @ 12 June 2006 S RAZK
EE% ZEREEBR AR RERLES
N = 200664120
.
= §§ Springland (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 100% Investment holding
< 25 January 2006 1B REAZK
o BE
200651 A25H
Novel Vanguard Investment Limited®® BVI US$1 100% Investment holding
MBREFR A A 21 November 2011 1% REER
RERAES
2011511 A21H



SPRINGLAND INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED  #th BB 12 i B BR A &

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %% 2 MY =

Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017F12A31HILFE

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 3R

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP 1.
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

RAREEEHR (&)

MELRER (&)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries AAREZHMERRFEOT : (&)

are as follows: (continued)

Percentage
Place and date of  Nominal value of of equity
incorporation/  issued ordinary/ attributable
registration registered to the
and operations share capital Company Principal
Name HEMAR /R LR BRT/ER KEBES activities
AR SEHER AN ERRRAHE BEEIH TEER
Springland International Enterprises Hong Kong HK$38,000,000 100% Investment holding
Limited © 17 June 1993 38,000,000% 70 REZK
BEERECEERAR BE
199346H17H
QOctopus (Singapore) PTE Limited Singapore SGD900,000 100% Investment holding
28 August 2014 900,000%7 A3 7 REZKR
Gl
20148 H28H
Jiangsu Springland International People’s Republic of China US$360,000,000 100% Investment holding
Holdings (Group) Ltd. (the "PRC")/Mainland China  360,000,000% 7T REARR
IEENEREREEER AR 12 February 1996
L/ B A
1996%62H 121
Shanghai Springland Enterprise PRC/Mainland China  RMB850,000,000 Investment holding
Investment Co., Ltd. @ 6 November 1996 ARE 100% RAZK
LTEENERRERRARC B/ E A 850,000,0007C
1996F11A6H
Changshu Yaohan Commerce & Trade PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 100% Operation of
Co., Ltd. 29 July 2004 ARE department stores
BR\AHBEEERAAY B/ E A 20,000,000 K2RERE
2004F7H29R
Danyang Yaohan Commerce & Trade PRC/Mainland China  RMB260,000,000 100% Operation of
Co., Ltd. @ 17 March 2004 ARE department stores
AENBHEEERRA R B/ E A 260,000,0007T BERERE
2004%3R17H
Jiangsu Datonghua Shopping Center PRC/Mainland China RMB35,000,000 100% Operation of
Co., Ltd. ® 14 March 2001 ARE supermarkets
IHEAGERNTLBERATFC Hh /R B 35,000,0007T gemm
20013 A 14H
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 i a MY =

Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017F12A31HILFE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP 1.
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

RAREEEFR (F)

MEARER (&)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries AAREZHMBARAFBEET : (8)

are as follows: (continued)

110

Percentage
Place and date of  Nominal value of of equity
incorporation/  issued ordinary/ attributable
registration registered to the
and operations share capital Company Principal
Name HEMARL/RLR BRT/ER KEBELR activities
ARER SEWER AN ERRRAHE EEEA TEER
Jiangyin Springland Department Store PRC/Mainland China ~ RMB130,000,000 100% Operation of
Co., Ltd.® 5 June 2003 ARE department stores
IREMEEERAFC Hh /A B 130,000,0007C and supermarkets
2003%6 50 BERRERET
Jiangsu Jintan Datonghua Shopping PRC/Mainland China ~ RMB215,000,000 100% Operation of
Center Co., Ltd. @ 17 April 2003 ARE department stores
IHREARERNTOLER AR L/ B A 215,000,0007C and supermarkets
2003F4A17H KRERRERET
Liyang Datonghua Shopping Center PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 100% Operation of
Co., Ltd. ¥ 28 June 2002 ARE supermarkets
EGAGERNTLBRAF HR /A B 10,000,0007C geBm
20026 H28H
Liyang Yaohan Commerce & Trade PRC/Mainland China  RMB110,000,000 100% Operation of
Center Co., Ltd. @ 29 April 2002 ARE department stores
EE\BHEZERLERARY B/ E A 110,000,0007T B2RERE
20024 H29R
2
= Liyang No.1 Department Store PRC/Mainland China RMB1,225,000 100% Property holding
omil Co., Ltd. @ 22 May 2001 ARE BENE
S BT E - EARAF B/ B 1,225,000
E‘gﬁ 2001F5H22R
28
(2>§ Wuxi Springland Investment PRC/Mainland China  RMB490,000,000 100% Investment holding
2 Management Co., Ltd. © 15 April 1980 ARE REZRK
= EREMREERARATY /R E R 490,000,007
1980F4 150
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SPRINGLAND INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED  #th BB 12 i B BR A &

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries

are as follows: (continued)

B 75 ¥R 2R Y &

Year ended 31 December 2017

HZE20175F12 A31HIEFE

1. 2AREEER (F)

MELRER (&)
ARREZEMBARFRET : (8)

Percentage
Place and date of  Nominal value of of equity
incorporation/  issued ordinary/ attributable
registration registered to the
and operations share capital Company Principal
Name SR L/ R ERT/ETL KEEES activities
AR ER KEwBRAM EERRAEE EREA TEER
Wuxi Angexin Technology Co., Ltd. @ PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 100% Provision of
BHZRENEERARY 27 July 2006 ARE technology service
o B/ Bl it 5,000,0007C R R AR 75
2006%7A27H
Wuxi Datonghua Shopping Co., Ltd. ¢ PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 100% Operation of
BERGERENERARY 25 September 2006 ARE supermarkets
o B/ Bl i 20,000,0007C il
20069 A25H
Wuxi Huiquan Logistics Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 100% Provision of
EHERDRBRARY 26 March 2007 ARE logistics service
B/ E A 10,000,0007C REWIR RS
200743 A 26H
Wuxi Yachan Commerce & Trade PRC/Mainland China RmMB301,911,000 100% Operation of
Center Co., Ltd. ¥ 25 March 1994 AR department stores
EHN\BHBERLBRAR F /e B 301,911,0007C and supermarkets
1994634250 REBREERET
Yixing Springland Department Store PRC/Mainland China  RMB580,000,000 100% Operation of
Co., Ltd. ® 24 May 2000 ARE department stores
HREEHMBEEAERAA o B/ Bl i 580,000,000 KERERE
2000%5 A 24H
Yixing Housa Plaza Co., Ltd. © PRC/Mainland China RMB30,000,000 100% Operation of
BEEMNERESERARY 13 February 2004 ARE department stores
B/ E A 30,000,0007C REBEE
200452 A13H
Zhenjiang Yaohan Commerce & Trade PRC/Mainland China  RMB350,000,000 100% Operation of
Co., Ltd. @ 28 August 2006 ARE department stores
BIm\EREEERARY o /e B 350,000,000 and supermarkets
20068 A28H KEREERET
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 i a MY =

Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017F12A31HILFE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP 1.
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

RAREEEFR (F)

MEARER (&)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries AAREZHMBARAFBEET : (8)

are as follows: (continued)

112

Percentage
Place and date of  Nominal value of of equity
incorporation/  issued ordinary/ attributable
registration registered to the
and operations share capital Company Principal
Name HEMARL/RLR BRT/ER KEBELR activities
DNAER BewERAN EERRAEE BRAI N TEXH
Ma’anshan Yaohan Trading PRC/Mainland China ~ RMB141,000,000 Operation of
Co., Ltd. @ 22 August 2008 ARE 100% department stores
SEL\BHEEERAFY B/ Bl i 141,000,0007T K2RERE
2008F8H22R
Nantong Yaohan Commerce & Trade PRC/Mainland China RMB31,938,786 Operation of
Joint Stock Company Limited ¥ 16 September 1993 ARE 98.93% department stores
mA\EHEERNER DAY o Bl Bl A 31,938,7867C K2RERE
19934 9H16H
Changxing Yaohan Commerce & Trade PRC/Mainland China RMB75,000,000 Operation of
Co., Ltd. @ 17 November 2009 AR 100% department stores
RENBHBEERAAY o /e B 75,000,0007C and supermarkets
2009F11A17H RERGERED
Taixing Datonghua Shopping Center PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 Operation of
Co., Ltd. @ 2 December 2010 ARE 100% supermarkets
FENAREENDLERAA R Bl Bl A 10,000,000 ‘EBm
201012 A2H
2
= Changzhou Yaohan Department Store PRC/Mainland China RMB25,000,000 100% Operation of
o EE Co., Ltd. ® 17 September 2010 ARE department stores
;EE EMNERBEEBRARY o /e B 25,000,0007T and supermarkets
H o 2010%9A17H REREERAT
28
12:§ Anging Yaohan Commerce & Trade PRC/Mainland China  RMB130,000,000 100% Operation of
Z Co., Ltd. @4 8 February 2007 ARE department stores
= ZENBHREHEBRA A o /e B 130,000,0007 and supermarkets
20074218H KREREERET
Xuancheng Yaohan Commerce & Trade PRC/Mainland China ~ RMB153,000,000 100% Operation of
Co., Ltd. 1 September 2011 ARE department stores
EMNEHBEERAFY o /e B 153,000,0007C and supermarkets
201149A18 KEREERET
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SPRINGLAND INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED  #th BB 12 i B BR A &

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries

are as follows: (continued)

B 75 ¥R 2R Y &

Year ended 31 December 2017

HZE20175F12 A31HIEFE

1. 2AREEER (F)

MELRER (&)
ARREZEMBARFRET : (8)

Percentage
Place and date of  Nominal value of of equity
incorporation/  issued ordinary/ attributable
registration registered to the
and operations share capital Company Principal
Name FEM AR/ LR ERT/ETL KEEES activities
AR ER KEwBRAM EERRAEE BREI N TEXH
Jiangsu Green Land Agriculture PRC/Mainland China RMB5,100,000 100%  Supply of vegetables
Technology Development Co., Ltd. 23 August 2011 ARE HERE
IEHLRENBERBR AR o B/ Bl i 5,100,0007T
2011%8H 23R
Yangzhou Fengxiang Commerce PRC/Mainland China US$10,000,000 55% Operation of
Co., Ltd. @ 28 June 1993 10,000,000 T department stores
BNEHEEERARY F /e B BEREE
19934 6H28H
Wuxi Beitang Datonghua Shopping PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 100% Operation of
Co., Ltd. 21 June 2013 ARE supermarkets
EBHARAGERNBR LAY o B/ Bl A 10,000,000 RE#m
2013F6H217
Wuxi Xishan Yaohan Lifestyle Center PRC/Mainland China US$102,040,000 100% Operation of
Co., Ltd.@ 14 August 2013 102,040,000% T department stores
BEHHLN\EREEESERAF0 hE/HEA KEREE
2013F8A14R
Jiaxing Yaohan Commerce & Trade PRC/Mainland China ~ RMB624,000,000 100% Operation of
Co., Ltd.® 11 September 2012 ARE department stores
REN\BHBEERAA o /e B 624,000,0007T and supermarkets
201299A118 REBEERET
Wuhu Yaohan Lifestyle PRC/Mainland China  RMB500,000,000 100% Operation of
Co., Ltd.® 10 December 2014 ARE department stores and
ERNEHEEESERLRR o /e B 500,000,000 supermarkets
20145124108 REBEERET
Zhenjiang Baisheng Commercial PRC/Mainland China US$45,000,000 100% Operation of
Co., Ltd. @2 o B/ B i 45,000,000% 70 department stores
BIBRBHERR T 24 December 1993 BERSEE
1993F 124241
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017F12A31HILFE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP 1.
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

RAREEEFR (F)

MEARER (&)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries ARABEZHMBAAFBEET : (B)

are as follows: (continued)

114

Percentage
Place and date of  Nominal value of of equity
incorporation/  issued ordinary/ attributable
registration registered to the
and operations share capital Company Principal
Name SRR AL/ R ERT/ETL KEEES activities
DNEER BEHERAH EERRAEE EREA TEER
Yixing Rongtong Trade & Commerce PRC/Mainland China ~ RMB129,046,200 100% Operation of
Co., Ltd.® o /e B ARE supermarkets
HEERRBEARAA 16 December 2013 129,046,2007T mEBm
201312 A16H
Wuxi Tangtangguozhi Catering PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 85% Leisure drinks
Management Co., Ltd. @4 B/ B A i ARE industry
EHZERCELERBRAGF 15 July 2015 1,000,0007T KB E
201557150
Wuxi Tianmaixianfang Food PRC/Mainland China RMB3,000,000 100% Food processing
Co., Ltd.® o B/ Bl it ARE RaMI
EHHEBYRMARRAY 16 July 2015 3,000,0007C
2015%7 A 16H
Yinian Shanghai Investment PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 100% Trading
Management Co., Ltd. R/ R ARE =
BE(LBREEBARRAY 9 December 2015 20,000,0007C
201512 A9H
2
= Shanghai Yunnian Catering PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 100% Catering
o E 1.@ Management Co., Ltd. ¢ 3 May 2016 ARE management
;Eﬁf FERFERERERAY B/ E A 5,000,0007C ERER
= ‘:I’ -3 20165 H3H
28
<2>§ Shanghai Zhaonian Enterprise PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 100% Investment
2 Management Co., Ltd. ¢ 29 April 2016 ARE management
= PEkELEERAERARY o B/ B At 10,000,0007 REEE
20164 F29H
Jiangyin Yaohan Lifestyle PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 100% Operation of
Center Co., Ltd. @ 28 April 2016 ARE department stores
TRNEHEEESERA R o B/ Bl it 20,000,0007C KERERE
201654 F28H
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SPRINGLAND INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED  #th BB 12 i B BR A &

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries

are as follows: (continued)

B 75 ¥R 2R Y &

Year ended 31 December 2017

HZE20175F12 A31HIEFE

1. 2AREEER (&)

MEARER (&)
ARABETEMBARFBOT - (&)

Percentage
Place and date of  Nominal value of of equity
incorporation/  issued ordinary/ attributable
registration registered to the
and operations share capital Company Principal
Name HEMAR /R LR BRT/ER KEBES activities
AR SEHER AN ERRRAHE BEEIH TEER
Nantong Datonghua PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 100% Operation of
Shopping Co., Ltd.® 12 August 2016 ARE supermarkets
HBARERNERDTY B/ E A 10,000,0007C REmm
2016F8H12R
Nantong Boda Tengfei Advertising PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000 89.04% Provision of
Co., Ltd.0 19 January 2006 ARE advertising service
BRABAERESERAFM HR /AR B 500,0007T B S R
20061 H19R
Nanjing Yaohan Commerce & PRC/Mainland China RMB49,000,000 100% Operation of
Trade Co., Ltd. 5 November 2007 AR department stores
AR\BEHBEZAERLAY B/ E A 49,000,0007 K2RERE
2007411 A5H
Wuxi Kuichong Roast Meat PRC/Mainland China RMB600,000 100% Catering
Catering Management Co., Ltd. 4l 31 October 2017 AR 600,000 management
EHEREEENERERRA hE/AERL ZEHER
2017F10A31R
Wausxi Yiping Catering Management PRC/Mainland China RMBB800,000 100% Catering
Co., Ltd. @0 31 October 2017 AR #800,0007T management
B mEEZRERAF /R B R ERER
2017410A31H
Wuxi Qianjianshan Catering PRC/Mainland China RMB1,500,000 100% Catering
Management Co., Ltd., 40 31 October 2017~ AK%1,500,0007T management
BHERILERERERAA b B/ B A EHRER
2017%10A31H
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 i a MY =

Year ended 31 December 2017

HE2017F12A31HILFE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP 1. ARIREEEHR (&)
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) B A RER (8)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries AAREZHMBARAFBEET : (8)

are as follows: (continued)

Percentage
Place and date of  Nominal value of of equity
incorporation/  issued ordinary/ attributable
registration registered to the
and operations share capital Company Principal
Name HEMARL/RLR BRT/ER KEBELR activities
DNAER BewERAN EERRAEE BRAI N TEXH
Wuxi Yueyuan Catering PRC/Mainland China RMB2,000,000 100% Catering
Management Co., Ltd. ¥ 31 October 2017 AR %2,000,0007T management
EHERERERARAR HE/AEA EHER
20174107318
Wuxi Haigangting Catering PRC/Mainland China RMB800,000 100% Catering
Management Co., Ltd. 0 7 November 2017 AR #800,0007 management
EHSEEEHERARRA HE/FENN BRER EHER
2017511 A7H
Wuxi Yijiatian Catering PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000 100% Catering
Management Co., Ltd. (4)(m) 24 November 2017 AR%500,0007¢ management
BY-FHERERERAA HE/E R ZRER EHRER
2017811 A24R
(@) Except for Springland International Group Company () MREWEEEEFRARMEEET

RARIAARREEERIN - LiifrE

Limited and Novel Vanguard Investment Limited which ¢
9 AR EEARMEREGHHBAR -

are directly owned by the Company, all of the above
companies are indirectly owned subsidiaries of the
Company.

(b) On 6 April 2017, the company’s nominal value of (b) ﬁﬁggﬂﬂéa_jégiggézﬁg
issued ordinary/registered share capital was changed g 1,0008LE % R 2,500
from RMB10,000,000 to RMB25,000,000. 7E

() M2017%12H298 - ZAFHZENE

AR ZEFEHERBEAREEARERR
ZENBHBEEERRAF -
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()  On 29 December 2017, the company’s name changed
from Anqging Yuexin Xinglida Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd. to Anging Yaohan Commerce & Trade Co.,
Ltd.

(d) M20175F9H198 » A A M &A%

d) On 19 September 2017, the company’s nominal b e —
“ 0 . ARMAETEE AARESET -

value of issued ordinary/registered share capital was
changed from RMB400,000,000 to RMB500,000,000.
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

©

On 31 August 2017, the company’s nominal value of
issued ordinary/registered share capital was changed
from USD10,000,000 to USD45,000,000.

The subsidiary was liquidated by the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2017.

On 28 February 2017, the company’s name changed
from Wuxi Tangtangguozhi Investment Management
Co., Ltd. to Wuxi Tangtangguozhi Catering
Management Co., Ltd.

On 31 October 2017, Wuxi Yaohan Commerce &
Trade Center Co., Ltd. established a wholly-owned
subsidiary named Wuxi Kuichong Roast Meat Catering
Management Co., Ltd.

On 31 October 2017, Wuxi Yaohan Commerce &
Trade Center Co., Ltd. established a wholly-owned
subsidiary named Wuxi Yiping Catering Management
Co., Ltd.

On 31 October 2017, Wuxi Yaohan Commerce &
Trade Center Co., Ltd. established a wholly-owned
subsidiary named Wuxi Qianjianshan Catering
Management Co., Ltd.

On 31 October 2017, Wuxi Yaohan Commerce &
Trade Center Co., Ltd. established a wholly-owned
subsidiary named Wuxi Yueyuan Catering Management
Co., Ltd.

On 7 November 2017, Wuxi Yaohan Commerce
& Trade Center Co., Ltd. established a wholly-
owned subsidiary named Wuxi Haigangting Catering
Management Co., Ltd.

On 24 November 2017, Wuxi Yaohan Commerce &
Trade Center Co., Ltd. established a wholly-owned
subsidiary named Wuxi Yijiatian Catering Management
Co., Ltd.

Types of legal entities:

M Wholly-foreign-owned enterprise

@ Sino-foreign equity joint venture

® Limited liability company invested by a foreign
invested enterprise

@ Limited liability company
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RAREEEHR (&)

MELRER (&)

©

R20174E8A31H » A Al ME AR
1,0008 XL # ¥ 54,5008 X T °

HZE20175F12A318 © ZMBRRIHE
E5E -

R201752H28H » Z AR B HE A EH
EFRZREEEARADUNASEHE
ERZEREEBR QA -

MR20179F10A318 » EH )\ EHEEEH
DERABIKY T 2E T AR EHEF
BEEERERAER AT -

R2017410A318 » EH/\BEHFEEF
DERARIKIYL T 2EFARES @
FIEERBRAA o

R2017510A318 » EHN\BHEFEF
DERARRIYT 2EFAGEHEM
IWEREEBRAF °

MR2017410A31H » EHN\EHEEF
DERARKY TE2ETAREHER
EREBEBRAF -

R2017F11 A7  EHN\AFEEF
LERARNILT 2B FRAESEH
EEREEARAR -

R20179F11 A248 - EH )\ EHEEEH
DBRRABIKY TEEFRARES R
HEREEREMRAA] ©
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Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017F12A31HILFE

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION 21 RBEAE
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B 75 3R 3% B =

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) (which include all International
Financial Reporting Standards, International
Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations)
issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (the “IASB”), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for derivative
financial instruments which have been measured at
fair value. Disposal groups held for sale are stated
at the lower of their carrying amounts and fair values
less costs to sell as further explained in note 2.4.
These financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”) and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2017. A
subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company.
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the investee
(i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less
than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

(CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members
of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of
any non-controlling interest and (i) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (ii) the fair value of any investment retained
and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or
loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained earnings, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required
if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities.
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21 RBEXE (F)

B O EE ()

MEBARMBHREAZGEREARMEAR
B BwKRAR - LRA —BH SR
R-MBRAICKENEAKENGE
HiEZBETUGREHE  YHRERS
A EREFREFELERRLE -

B BB R IR R s B A At A
B ARBFAEANFERBRRERS &
DEAKERSIABERTHEEMLE
E o AEBARRIFER WK
BEEREARRIMEENMAG  #am - K
A AXERERELZBREAKRER

fisl %5 LA BTt 2 = THiE h 4 E —THsk
ZHEHRARBZEZERBERT A&H
EFFEREEEURRET HEBES
BN BREEGEZBRT - WEB
NEFMBERERESHIRIERER FR
I8 o

WAEBAREHMBAG Z G K&
ERIEERONBARZEE (BER
) REE s (i) E IR R R 2 R
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B REROEWRBAREZRAEE (i)
MR 2 B QN FE - R (i) ERE
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Year ended 31 December 2017

HZE2017F12A31HLEFE

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING 228 BEREENE B
POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
The Group has adopted the following new and AREBERAFEZHBEHERFPEAT
revised IFRSs for the first time for the current year’s PATT $E T &) BB B 75 3R 45 2 )| o
financial statements.
Amendments to 1AS 7 Disclosure Iniiative AREERIZ TS (1£:]4) #&i1d
Amendments to IAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Bl e st iERE 105 (B2 A) ﬁgfgﬁ%ggﬁéﬁj

Losses
Amendments to IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities ARHRAEENZ10% (BHIA) ZANLEYERYRE
Included in Annual Improvements BREE2014F 22016584
2014-2016 Cycle FEAE

The adoption of the new and revised IFRSs has TR ST RSB 5T B BE B 75 3R &5 2
had no significant financial effect on these financial B RR T BEERNTE -
statements.
Disclosure has been made in note 35 to the financial B etERE 79 (BRI AN) BET R
statements upon the adoption of amendments to BIWBBER  ZUMBHRERE LG
IAS 7, which require an entity to provide disclosures RMEETEELABENES - BIEREIR
that enable users of financial statements to evaluate CRERIRCEHMEENELE @
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, N A B IREL A 2 (& 5] 2N 1% 7 B 75 3R 2= Bt
including both changes arising from cash flows and 35 fEHIREE -
non-cash changes.

2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 2.3 B JE #1814 & 4 X i B PR B 78
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL ] & % 8
REPORTING STANDARDS
The Group has not applied the following new and RNEBRZETHBRRILAER T2
revised IFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet FEARE 18 K A M E T 5] RS 7] B BR B
effective, in these financial statements. FEIREZER] o

=
=]
iy
2l
T
R
&

Amendments to IFRS 2 Classfication and Measurement of il Mﬂxf BERNARAN
Share-hased Payment Transactions' (BT%) AERiE
Amendments to [FRS 4 Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments B Sh e B W@Wﬁﬁﬁﬁ/ﬂﬁfﬁ il
with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts' (BiI%) H—HEA AR s E
\ R EEAE T A
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments ARTBRSENZ0E ZATA
Amendments to [FRS 9 Prepayment Features wnhNegative Compensation® RRBRASER 205 (BIR) ApBEEHETES N
Amendments to IFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution of Assets between an BRUEREESI0RRER KEFHIEEAREE
1AS 28 (2011) Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture? 512 E085: (E3T8) A%Z/s 7#5 EAEAAE
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers' RRH SRR 5155
o Amendments to IFRS 15 Claifations to IFRS 15 Revenue ARG RSN 5155 #’%ﬁﬁﬁiﬁ%/ﬁf@ﬁ
= from Contracts with Customers' HEY BNz 2R
o] IFRS 16 Leases” ART BRSNS 16% #e
° =4 Amendments to AS 40 Transfers of Investment Property’ ARE s ERBA0R (J\%AM) RENZER
FEE IFRIC - Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and BEmkRLARRES NERSRERKE
B Advance Consideration’ 2005 ) ,
E S [FRIC-Int 23 Unoertainty over Income Tex Treatments? ARGIAASRREREENS  FRAREHTEEL
ok Annual Improvements 2014-2016  Amendments to IFRS 1 and IAS 28" DHEEI6EEGTE ARURASERZ 1S RARe
oR Cycle i SHE| 2085 (BFT )
Z IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?® BRuBRE LR E175% rEAA
Z Armendments to IAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and il =R (f% T%) M‘}é‘ REELENRTE
5 Joint Ventures? 2
Annual Improvements Amendments to IFRS 3, IFRS 11, Amendments to IAS 15E 20017 EEGEEL# V‘ BRRL RS - ARe
2015-2017 Cycle 19, 1AS 12 and 1AS 23 BatEiSng BRey
ENZ0F REREENS
AL HE YK
; I1Ef5ective f§61%nnual periods beginning on or after 1 #2018&1 A1B s 2 ZFABHFEM
anuar
2 EfBectivenyO(r;Ka)nnual periods beginning on or after 2 5/\2019¢1 A1BEs 2 B HIBNFEM
1 Janua
3 Effectivéyfor annual periods beginning on or after 3 E’\2021 FIAIB 2 BEHENFEER
1 January 2021 £
= No mandatory effective date yet determined but is 4 ]I?E SIERSIMERBE - 2 AT E

available for adoption
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2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

Further information about those IFRSs that are
expected to be applicable to the Group is as follows:

The IASB issued amendments to IFRS 2 in June
2016 that address three main areas: the effects of
vesting conditions on the measurement of a cash-
settled share-based payment transaction; the
classification of a share-based payment transaction
with net settlement features for withholding a certain
amount in order to meet an employee’s tax obligation
associated with the share-based payment; and
accounting where a modification to the terms and
conditions of a share-based payment transaction
changes its classification from cash-settled to equity-
settled. The amendments clarify that the approach
used to account for vesting conditions when
measuring equity-settled share-based payments
also applies to cash-settled share-based payments.
The amendments introduce an exception so that
a share-based payment transaction with net share
settlement features for withholding a certain amount
in order to meet an employee’s tax obligation is
classified in its entirety as an equity-settled share-
based payment transaction when certain conditions
are met. Furthermore, the amendments clarify that
if the terms and conditions of a cash-settled share-
based payment transaction are modified, with the
result that it becomes an equity-settled share-based
payment transaction, the transaction is accounted
for as an equity-settled transaction from the date of
the modification. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments from 1 January 2018. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on
the Group’s financial statements.
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Year ended 31 December 2017
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INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

In July 2014, the IASB issued the final version of
IFRS 9, bringing together all phases of the financial
instruments project to replace IAS 39 and all previous
versions of IFRS 9. The standard introduces new
requirements for classification and measurement,
impairment and hedge accounting. The Group will
adopt IFRS 9 from 1 January 2018. The Group
will not restate comparative information and will
recognise any transition adjustments against the
opening balance of equity at 1 January 2018.
During 2017, the Group has performed a detailed
assessment of the impact of the adoption of IFRS 9.
The expected impacts relate to the classification and
measurement and the impairment requirements are
summarised as follows:

(a) Classification and measurement

The Group does not expect that the adoption of
HKFRS 9 will have a significant impact on the
classification and measurement of its financial
assets. It expects to continue measuring at
fair value all financial assets currently held at
fair value. Equity investments currently held as
available for sale will be measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income as the
investments are intended to be held for the
foreseeable future and the Group expects to
apply the option to present fair value changes in
other comprehensive income. Gains and losses
recorded in other comprehensive income for the
equity investments cannot be recycled to profit
or loss when the investments are derecognised.
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2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Impairment

IFRS 9 requires an impairment on debt
instruments recorded at amortised cost or
at fair value through other comprehensive
income, lease receivables, loan commitments
and financial guarantee contracts that are not
accounted for at fair value through profit or
loss under IFRS 9, to be recorded based on an
expected credit loss model either on a twelve-
month basis or a lifetime basis. The Group will
apply the simplified approach and record lifetime
expected losses that are estimated based on
the present values of all cash shortfalls over
the remaining life of all of its trade receivables.
Furthermore, the Group will apply the general
approach and record twelve-month expected
credit losses that are estimated based on the
possible default events on its other receivables
within the next twelve months. The Group has
determined that no provision for impairment will
increase or decrease upon the initial adoption of
the standard.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 (2011) address
an inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS
10 and in IAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. The amendments require
a full recognition of a gain or loss when the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For
a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a
business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction
is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in that
associate or joint venture. The amendments are to
be applied prospectively. The previous mandatory
effective date of amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS
28 (2011) was removed by the IASB in December
2015 and a new mandatory effective date will be
determined after the completion of a broader review
of accounting for associates and joint ventures.
However, the amendments are available for adoption
now.
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INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

IFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model to
account for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised
at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for transferring goods or services to a customer.
The principles in IFRS 15 provide a more structured
approach for measuring and recognising revenue.
The standard also introduces extensive qualitative
and quantitative disclosure requirements, including
disaggregation of total revenue, information about
performance obligations, changes in contract asset
and liability account balances between periods
and key judgements and estimates. The standard
will supersede all current revenue recognition
requirements under IFRSs. Either a full retrospective
application or a modified retrospective adoption is
required on the initial application of the standard. In
April 2016, the IASB issued amendments to IFRS 15
to address the implementation issues on identifying
performance obligations, application guidance on
principal versus agent and licences of intellectual
property, and transition. The amendments are also
intended to help ensure a more consistent application
when entities adopt IFRS 15 and decrease the cost
and complexity of applying the standard. The Group
expects to adopt IFRS 15 on 1 January 2018 and
plans to adopt the full retrospective approach. During
the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
has performed a preliminary detailed assessment
on the impact of the adoption of IFRS 15. The
Group’s principal activities consist of the operation
of department stores and supermarkets in Mainland
China. The expected impacts arising from the
adoption of IFRS 15 on the Group are as follows:
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2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

The suppliers goods are displayed physically in
department stores and supermarkets of the Group
and the suppliers are charged slotting fees, for
which the Group do not provide a distinct good
or service to the suppliers. The slotting fees were
recognized as other income. Upon the adoption of
IFRS 15, to determine the appropriate accounting
treatment, the Group must first determine whether
the consideration paid or payable by the suppliers is:
a payment for a distinct good or service; a reduction
in the transaction price; or a combination of both. For
a payment by the suppliers to be treated as income
other than a reduction of the transaction price, the
good or service provided by the Group must be
distinct. Thus, the Group has estimated that an
adjustment of reduce other income for slotting fees
and related adjustment to reduce purchase of and
changes in inventories and to reduce the carrying
amount of inventories will be required.
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INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

IFRS 16 replaces IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, SIC
15 Operating Leases - Incentives and SIC 27
Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving
the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets out
the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of leases and requires
lessees to recognise assets and liabilities for most
leases. The standard includes two recognition
exemptions for lessees — leases of low-value assets
and short-term leases. At the commencement date
of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make
lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset
representing the right to use the underlying asset
during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset).
The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured
at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses unless the right-of-use asset
meets the definition of investment property in IAS
40. The lease liability is subsequently increased to
reflect the interest on the lease liability and reduced
for the lease payments. Lessees will be required
to separately recognise the interest expense on the
lease liability and the depreciation expense on the
right-of-use asset. Lessees will also be required to
remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence
of certain events, such as change in the lease term
and change in future lease payments resulting from
a change in an index or rate used to determine
those payments. Lessees will generally recognise the
amount of the remeasurement of the lease liability
as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset. Lessor
accounting under IFRS 16 is substantially unchanged
from the accounting under IAS 17. Lessors will
continue to classify all leases using the same
classification principle as in IAS 17 and distinguish
between operating leases and finance leases. IFRS
16 requires lessees and lessors to make more
extensive disclosures than under IAS 17. Lessees
can choose to apply the standard using either a full
retrospective or a modified retrospective approach.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

The Group expects to adopt IFRS 16 on 1 January
2019 and is currently assessing the impact of IFRS
16 upon adoption, and is considering whether it will
choose to take advantage of the practical expedients
available and which transition approach and reliefs
will be adopted. As disclosed in note 36(a) to the
financial statements, at 31 December 2017, the
Group had future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases in aggregate of
approximately RMB1,066,930,000. Upon adoption
of IFRS 16, certain amounts included therein may
need to be recognised as new right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities. Further analysis, however, will
be needed to determine the amount of new rights
of use assets and lease liabilities to be recognised,
including, but not limited to, any amounts relating
to leases of low-value assets and short term leases,
other practical expedients and reliefs chosen, and
new leases entered into before the date of adoption.

IFRIC 23, issued in June 2017, addresses the
accounting for income taxes (current and deferred)
when tax treatments involve uncertainty that affects
the application of IAS 12 (often referred to as
“uncertain tax positions”). The interpretation does not
apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of IAS 12,
nor does it specifically include requirements relating
to interest and penalties associated with uncertain
tax treatments. The interpretation specifically
addresses (i) whether an entity considers uncertain
tax treatments separately; (i) the assumptions an
entity makes about the examination of tax treatments
by taxation authorities; (iii) how an entity determines
taxable profits or tax losses, tax bases, unused
tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates; and
(iv) how an entity considers changes in facts and
circumstances. The interpretation is to be applied
retrospectively, either fully retrospectively without
the use of hindsight or retrospectively with the
cumulative effect of application as an adjustment to
the opening equity at the date of initial application,
without the restatement of comparative information.
The Group expects to adopt the interpretation from 1
January 2019. The interpretation is not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Investments in associates and joint ventures

QAT ERTHEME

RBEQARANSELENRE

An associate is an entity, in which the Group has BMENREAEAERBEEHE —RTIR
a long term interest of generally not less than 20% 20% 2 fE A EfE 2 K EAfEz - W A]
of the equity voting rights and over which it is in a HigMEATE 2 A - EATXEINA
position to exercise significant influence. Significant %, /\%ﬁ;ﬂﬁgﬁgz,ﬁﬁﬁﬁu@gﬁﬁm

influence is the power to participate in the financial
and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is
not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby BETEEBEER 7 P
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement HEEHIEN T B S &%
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint BEF 9 41| 45 3% RR

control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
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about the relevant activities require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.
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e
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£

HTEH — R B ERTE

The Group’s investments in associates and joint AEB 2B ERNR A ERFEZERE
ventures are stated in the consolidated statement of I u+/ﬂ£$%ﬁ§\1 F B ERER
financial position at the Group’s share of net assets AR RS A B SRR R P B o
under the equity method of accounting, less any
impairment losses.
The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results AEERGEREREGEEMEMEII
and other comprehensive income of associates = RET AHEMEE QAFAME &P E
and joint ventures is included in the consolidated WEEEERAEMEAKE - 1IN - &
statement of profit or loss and consolidated other BEERRBE  NANEeEtE 2 ERmA
comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, HBERE  AIRNEERGEREREESHRE
when there has been a change recognised directly REBEREHED - K& H B
in the equity of the associate or joint venture, the NEMELELE IR GESE BIE &
Group recognises its share of any changes, when EBefi  HHESHEUREBYHEE A
applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes AMEEREIRERR - BRIERER
in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from BB AAEE EE HIEBE o Wi
transactions between the Group and its associates BMERNANEENEELEZEBHAA
or joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of EAREBREBEARMAELELEREZ
the Group’s investments in the associates or joint — BB o
ventures, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred.
@ Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates
E or joint ventures is included as part of the Group’s
=i investments in associates or joint ventures.
CE®
mﬁm If an investment in an associate becomes an MEHBESNR 2R EEHABHEE D
E O investment in a joint venture or vice versa, the %Z&ﬁ REBMERTEFHTE - 18
Q=% retained interest is not remeasured. Instead, the R ZREDARKAER AR - &
o= investment continues to be accounted for under HaprBHBERAT ERAEHBE AR Z
= the equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of BATEH  AKELEQFERERM
o significant influence over the associate or joint control STEZRERMIRE 21X E o 1] 5 K S B
over the joint venture, the Group measures and ERNAMAEELPECERNTES AT
recognises any retained investment at its fair value. FlZEEmMEAEERBREZATFENUK
Any difference between the carrying amount of the REMMEBZENEZEEEBTPRER -

associate or joint venture upon loss of significant
influence or joint control and the fair value of the
retained investment and proceeds from disposal is
recognised in profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(continued)

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture
is classified as held for sale, it is accounted for in
accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for
Sale and Discontinued Operations.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measure
the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of net assets in the event
of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All
other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with
the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives in
host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset
or liability is measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted
for within equity.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and
any fair value of the Group’s previously held equity
interests in the acquire over the identifiable net assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair
value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on
bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill
is tested for impairment annually or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at
31 December. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the group’s
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination, irrespective of whether other
assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those
units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a
cash-generating unit and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with
the operation disposed of is included in the carrying
amount of the operation when determining the gain
or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these
circumstances is measured based on the relative
value of the operation disposed of and the portion of
the cash-generating unit retained.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its derivative financial
instruments and equity investments at fair value at
the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset
or liability, or in the absence of a principal market,
in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability. The principal or the most advantageous
market must be accessible by the Group. The fair
value of an asset or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming
that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset
takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its
highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and
best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is
measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described
as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is unobservable
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Fair value measurement (continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

D ¥ {EE 2 (&)
HRERBRRIUNBEEERRCEE
REE AEERUNAFEFEESR
BEARZE BB AERSREHR
ENHELE ABERBESRZIEZE
BHIRNEE -

Impairment of non-financial assets FEeREERE
Where an indication of impairment exists, or when WENRBERFERE  BREE (F

annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than inventories, financial assets and non-
current assets/a disposal group classified as held for
sale), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its
fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of
those from other assets or groups of assets, in which
case the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
to the statement of profit or loss in the period in
which it arises in those expense categories consistent
with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may
no longer exist or may have decreased. If such
an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss
of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if
there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of
any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it
arises.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)

or

the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person:

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of the
Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)
(i

(ii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of
the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures
of the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT QAT ESHBERE (F)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, are stated at cost or
valuation less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. When an item of property, plant
and equipment is classified as held for sale or when
it is part of a disposal group classified as held for
sale, it is not depreciated and is accounted for in
accordance with IFRS 5, as further explained in
the accounting policy for “Non-current assets and
disposal groups held for sale”. The cost of an item
of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs
of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such
as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to
the statement of profit or loss in the period in which
it is incurred. In situations where the recognition
criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of
the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts
of property, plant and equipment are required to be
replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such
parts as individual assets with specific useful lives
and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis
to write off the cost of each item of property, plant
and equipment to its residual value over its estimated
useful life. The useful lives for this purpose are as

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of
that item is allocated on a reasonable basis among
the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
least at each financial year end.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment
including any significant part initially recognised
is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building
under construction, which is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost
comprises the direct costs of construction and
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed
funds during the period of construction. Construction
in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category
of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for use.

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for
sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified
as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be
recovered principally through a sales transaction
rather than through continuing use. For this to be the
case, the asset or disposal group must be available
for immediate sale in its present condition subject
only to terms that are usual and customary for the
sale of such assets or disposal groups and its sale
must be highly probable. All assets and liabilities
of a subsidiary classified as a disposal group are
reclassified as held for sale regardless of whether the
Group retains a non-controlling interest in its former
subsidiary after the sale.

Non-current assets and disposal groups (other than
investment properties and financial assets) classified
as held for sale are measured at the lower of their
carrying amounts and fair values less costs to sell.
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
classified as held for sale are not depreciated or
amortised.
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on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible
assets acquired in a business combination is the fair
value as at the date of acquisition. The useful lives
of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are
subsequently amortised over the useful economic life
and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method
for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Lease agreement buyouts

The lease agreement buyouts represented the
Group’s payments to old tenants to buy out their
lease agreements. The lease agreement buyouts are
stated at cost less any impairment losses and are
amortised on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms of 10 to 19 years.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards
and risks of ownership of assets to the Group, other
than legal title, are accounted for as finance leases.
At the inception of a finance lease, the cost of the
leased asset is capitalised at the present value of
the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to
reflect the purchase and financing. Assets held under
capitalised finance leases, are included in property,
plant and equipment, and depreciated over the
shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful
lives of the assets. The finance costs of such leases
are charged to the statement of profit or loss so as
to provide a constant periodic rate of charge over the
lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a

financing nature are accounted for as finance leases,
but are depreciated over their estimated useful lives.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leases (continued)

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group
is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets,
and rentals receivable under the operating leases
are credited to the statement of profit or loss on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the
Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating
leases net of any incentives received from the lessor
are charged to the statement of profit or loss on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land premiums under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised
on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. When
the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and buildings elements, the entire
lease payments are included in the cost of the land
and buildings as a finance lease in property, plant
and equipment.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial
investments, as appropriate. When financial assets
are recognised initially, they are measured at fair
value plus transaction costs that are attributable to
the acquisition of the financial assets, except in the
case of financial assets recorded at fair value through
profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade date, that is, the
date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading. Financial
assets are classified as held for trading if they
are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near
term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments as defined by IAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are carried in the statement of financial position
at fair value with positive net changes in fair value
presented as other income and gains and negative
net changes in fair value presented as finance
costs in the statement of profit or loss. These net
fair value changes do not include any dividends or
interest earned on these financial assets, which are
recognised in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as
at fair value through profit or loss are designated at
the date of initial recognition and only if the criteria in
IAS 39 are satisfied.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are
accounted for as separate derivatives and recorded
at fair value if their economic characteristics and
risks are not closely related to those of the host
contracts and the host contracts are not held for
trading or designated as at fair value through profit
or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in
the statement of profit or loss. Reassessment only
occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the
contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that
would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a
financial asset out of the fair value through profit or
loss category.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. After initial
measurement, such assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for
impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and includes fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in other income and gains in
the statement of profit or loss. The loss arising from
impairment is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss in finance costs for loans and in other expenses
for receivables.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are
non-derivative financial assets in listed and unlisted
equity investments and debt securities. Equity
investments classified as available for sale are those
which are neither classified as held for trading nor
designated as at fair value through profit or loss.
Debt securities in this category are those which are
intended to be held for an indefinite period of time
and which may be sold in response to needs for
liquidity or in response to changes in the market
conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value,
with unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is
derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or
loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss in
other income, or until the investment is determined
to be impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is
reclassified from the available-for-sale investment
revaluation reserve to the statement of profit or
loss in other gains or losses. Interest and dividends
earned whilst holding the available-for-sale financial
investments are reported as interest income and
dividend income, respectively and are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss as other income in
accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments
cannot be reliably measured because (a) the
variability in the range of reasonable fair value
estimates is significant for that investment or (b)
the probabilities of the various estimates within the
range cannot be reasonably assessed and used in
estimating fair value, such investments are stated at
cost less any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and
intention to sell its available-for-sale financial assets
in the near term are still appropriate. When, in rare
circumstances, the Group is unable to trade these
financial assets due to inactive markets, the Group
may elect to reclassify these financial assets if
management has the ability and intention to hold the
assets for the foreseeable future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the
available-for-sale category, the fair value carrying
amount at the date of reclassification becomes its
new amortised cost and any previous gain or loss
on that asset that has been recognised in equity is
amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life of
the investment using the effective interest rate. Any
difference between the new amortised cost and the
maturity amount is also amortised over the remaining
life of the asset using the effective interest rate. If
the asset is subsequently determined to be impaired,
then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified to
the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from
the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to
what extent it has retained the risk and rewards
of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset nor transferred control
of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s
continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at
the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset
and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Group could be required to repay.

141

B 75 ¥ 2= B RE

Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017F12A31HILFE

QAT ESTHHERME (F)

RATBAARGERSBEE (-
TREEZ —SBOHAFRBEERHEEMR
(H@EM) 2 —a#B1n) (B REANKE 247
BHMBARARFEE)

e HEEWDAZREWEMNEE
K

s AKEBRUMEERTREMNE
Mo RIRIER EEE T | 2B R ERE
BEEALERTRE=ZT2HNE
WEBHWRERENEE  B@AE
BESREEMNBASDERKE
B} N (o) AKEY EERELIREE
ERAB D B LB R EEEERE
BEMEHIHE -

HASECEZHEBNEER G REN
BN CEANBEEFH - FHEZ
BRAEREE LREZEENAR LD
H-BEXWBERRREBEEAID AR
KB MEEREEEMNEE K&
BBEEZFES N EENEEERZ
HWEZEE -HEUHERT  NEBEKHE
RAENAGE BEcREENREBE
BARSEERE 2 82 H R R F 3%
BRERETHE -

AEBEHAERVAKEL2EEREE
B BIAZREENREEAERAEE
FEBENREHELR(UREER

3 | At
B)ETHE -

(/2]
4
4
L
off
g
D=
wawv
[ =}
2=

3]
=z
<
=z
[TH




SPRINGLAND INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED  ZE3h B B2 A 5 BR A & ANNUAL REPORT 2017 F 5

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 i a MY =

Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017F12A31HILFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT QAT ESHBERE (F)

(/2]

=

4

w
ofi
=
nE=
wwn
[~
9=
()
Z
<
4
(T

B 75 3R 3% B =

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets THMEERE
The Group assesses at the end of each reporting REHB@ NS REBHRTEEE B FM
period whether there is objective evidence that EEPRETEBECREEN —HETR

a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset have an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset or the group of financial
assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include indications that a debtor
or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that they will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and
observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
Group first assesses whether impairment exists
individually for financial assets that are individually
significant, or collectively for financial assets that are
not individually significant. If the Group determines
that no objective evidence of impairment exists for
an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics
and collectively assesses them for impairment.
Assets that are individually assessed for impairment
and for which an impairment loss is, or continues
to be, recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is
measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not yet been incurred). The present value
of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through
the use of an allowance account and the loss is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Interest
income continues to be accrued on the reduced
carrying amount using the rate of interest used
to discount the future cash flows for the purpose
of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and
receivables together with any associated allowance
are written off when there is no realistic prospect of
future recovery and all collateral has been realised or
has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
estimated impairment loss increases or decreases
because of an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting
the allowance account. If a write-off is later
recovered, the recovery is credited to the statement
of profit or loss.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
has been incurred on an unquoted equity instrument
that is not carried at fair value because its fair value
cannot be reliably measured, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Impairment
losses on these assets are not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that an investment or a
group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of
any principal payment and amortisation) and its
current fair value, less any impairment loss previously
recognised in the statement of profit or loss, is
removed from other comprehensive income and
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

In the case of equity investments classified as
available for sale, objective evidence would include

HZE2017F12 A31BILFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24T EESTHEBE (8)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
Impairment of financial assets (continued) S@MEERE (&)

REE:BEE(E)

BERESBAAHEERBRE ZAFE
HBERETREERAKZERERAN

a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value B BIRAEHBEREREZEE -[KX
of an investment below its cost. “Significant” is 18] HEERNEVBEKRAENS  ml&
evaluated against the original cost of the investment B | ThA S 28 B 2 R EER E 9h

and “prolonged” against the period in which the
fair value has been below its original cost. Where
there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative
loss — measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in the statement of profit or loss -
is removed from other comprehensive income
and recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Impairment losses on equity instruments classified
as available for sale are not reversed through the
statement of profit or loss. Increases in their fair value
after impairment are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income.
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The determination of what is “significant” or REMBBEBRIANBIKREB]IFZH
“prolonged” requires judgement. In making this o $%I{£ﬁ#\J£ﬁH¢Bﬁé%Jﬁﬁ@l%

judgement, the Group evaluates, among other
factors, the duration or extent to which the fair value
of an investment is less than its cost.

In the case of debt instruments classified as available
for sale, impairment is assessed based on the same
criteria as financial assets carried at amortised cost.
However, the amount recorded for impairment is the
cumulative loss measured as the difference between
the amortised cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Future
interest income continues to be accrued based on
the reduced carrying amount of the asset using the
rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows
for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.
The interest income is recorded as part of finance
income. Impairment losses on debt instruments are
reversed through the statement of profit or loss if the
subsequent increase in fair value of the instruments
can be objectively related to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

144

Sh - REHERE R
FrABR M 8RR -

FEEREKRAEZ

MEBILASERAHEEEA - AU
B RE IR HK AN E 2 BTGB E
FrER A& R - A - 5@%@2)\5&%%&1
E%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ)ﬂ%$£ﬁﬁiﬁﬁ AN EZEE
A 7 72 I 2 R T R Z%xéZEﬁ/ME
B8R o RRMEWMASLEE 2 B
R EE R A LA 2 R E B R R T
fﬁiﬂéfﬁﬁmiZﬂ‘—Té%ﬁ ° ﬂ%\”y)\
ARRIBWAZ —EH - WEBH TR
Z A FEE N E LR Y & AR
Tﬁﬁ%%?é%%izﬂ%ﬁﬁ%% » Bl EDRE &S
BERWERED -



ANNUAL REPORT 2017

SPRINGLAND INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED %3 B9 %

RERAT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and borrowings, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and
other payables, derivative financial instruments and
interest-bearing bank borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading
if they are acquired for the purpose of repurchasing
in the near term. This category includes derivative
financial instruments entered into by the Group
that are not designated as hedging instruments in
hedge relationships as defined by IAS 39. Separated
embedded derivatives are also classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities
held for trading are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss
recognised in the statement of profit or loss does
not include any interest charged on these financial
liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition
as at fair value through profit or loss are designated
at the date of initial recognition and only if the criteria
in IAS 39 are satisfied.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities (continued)
Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance costs in the statement of profit or
loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Derecognition of financial liabilities (continued)
Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset
and the net amount is reported in the statement of
financial position if there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments,
such as cross currency swap, to hedge its foreign
currency risk and interest rate risk, respectively. Such
derivative financial instruments are initially recognised
at fair value on the date on which a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as
assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities
when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value
of derivatives are taken directly to the statement of
profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in,
first-out basis and, in the case of work in progress
and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads.
Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to
completion and disposal.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and demand deposits, and short-term
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement
of financial position, cash and cash equivalents
comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term
deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which
are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a
past event and it is probable that a future outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the
amount recognised for a provision is the present
value at the end of the reporting period of the future
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present
value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in the statement of profit or
loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax.
Income tax relating to items recognised outside profit
or loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the amounts expected to be recovered from or paid
to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking
into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

e in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised
to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value
is credited to a deferred income account and is
released to the statement of profit or loss over the
expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal
annual instalments or deducted from the carrying
amount of the asset and released to the statement
of profit or loss by way of a reduced depreciation
charge.

Bonus point liabilities

The Group operates a loyalty point programme, which
allows customers to accumulate points when they
purchase products in the Group’s department stores
and supermarkets. The points can then be redeemed
for gifts and coupons, subject to a minimum
number of points being obtained. The coupons are
cash-equivalent when customers use them to
purchase products of the Group.

Consideration received is allocated between the
products sold and the points issued, with the
consideration allocated to the points equal to their
fair value. Fair value of the points is determined by
applying statistical analyses. The fair value of the
points issued is deferred and recognised as revenue
when the points are redeemed.
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Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017F12A31HILFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition KAER

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that WARTEAREBR TR ESKERNZS - B
the economic benefits will flow to the Group and SHEA AR EHER K NEERER
when the revenue can be measured reliably, on the N

following bases:

24T EESTHEBE (8)

(/2]

=

4

w
ofi
=
nE=
wwn
[~
2=
()
Z
<
4
(T

B 7% R MY &

when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control
over the goods sold;

commission income from concessionaire sales
is recognised upon the sale of goods by the
relevant stores;

rental income is recognised on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms;

fee income from suppliers is recognised
according to the underlying contract terms
with suppliers when these services have been
provided in accordance therewith;

interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset; and

dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Employee benefits

Pursuant to the relevant regulations of the PRC
Government, all the subsidiaries of the Group
that were established in Mainland China (the
“PRC Subsidiaries”) have participated in a local
municipal government retirement benefit scheme
(the “Scheme”), whereby the PRC Subsidiaries
are required to contribute a certain percentage of
the salaries of their employees to the Scheme to
fund their retirement benefits. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to the Scheme is to
pay the ongoing contributions under the Scheme.
Contributions under the Scheme are charged to the
statement of profit or loss as incurred.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those
assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs
ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist
of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds. Where
funds have been borrowed generally, and used
for the purpose of obtaining qualifying assets, a
capitalisation rate of 4.9% has been applied to the
expenditure on the individual assets.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when
they are approved by the shareholders in a general
meeting.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Dividends (continued)

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum
and articles of association grant the Directors the
authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently,
interim dividends are recognised immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

The Company and certain subsidiaries incorporated
outside Mainland China use Hong Kong dollars
(“HK$”) or United States dollars (“US$”) as their
functional currencies, respectively. The functional
currency of the PRC Subsidiaries is Renminbi.
As the Group mainly operates in Mainland China,
Renminbi is used as the functional currency of the
Group. Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation
of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is
treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss
on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation
difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit
or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or profit or loss, respectively).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas
subsidiaries are currencies other than Renminbi. As
at the end of the reporting period, the assets and
liabilities of these entities are translated into Renminbi
at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of profit or loss
are translated into Renminbi at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries
are translated into Renminbi at the exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into Renminbi
at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in
the future.

Judgement

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgement, apart from those involving estimations,
which has the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:
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RMB250,384,000). Further details are contained in
note 20 to the financial statements.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than
gooawill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets at the end
of each reporting period. Intangible assets with
indefinite lives are tested for impairment annually and
at other times when such an indicator exists. Other
non-financial assets are tested for impairment when
there are indicators that the carrying amounts may
not be recoverable. An impairment exists when the
carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher
of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value
in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs of
disposal is based on available data from binding sales
transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar
assets or observable market prices less incremental
costs for disposing of the asset. When value in use
calculations are undertaken, management must
estimate the expected future cash flows from the
asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value
of those cash flows.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. EXREGHE R ()
JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)
Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor AR T B e — K B E AN
The Group has entered into commercial property AREBEMEREYEMAESII L EAY
leases on its property portfolio. The Group has ¥MHE - K’ilffﬁéﬁﬁzz%?ﬂ%%’ﬂ&ﬂ%#
determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and M ERETERERELESHELHM
conditions of the arrangements, that it retains all the 2 5 ) 51 ﬁ%ﬁ’j%@j{*ﬁ 2\ Bz K (@]
significant risks and rewards of ownership of these IR o
properties which are leased out on operating leases.
Estimation uncertainty T HEEAL T
The key assumptions concerning the future and HARBEBE s EBREIMNPRBEHRZ
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the HifEst e REZ T BRRIEE
end of the reporting period, that have a significant W WEAEAR LB RE NEKF
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying ERASEEREBBEZEREEAEELHENSA
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next B EANREE -
financial year, are described below.
Impairment of goodwill B E A
The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired AREBZ)BFIERERT AR
at least on an annual basis. This requires an BE-ZE2RKEOoETHENESED
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating BT EREEETHT GtEAB
units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating B AREBZEEHAREKERS
the value in use requires the Group to make an EHETMNRESRE RAKEERE
estimate of the expected future cash flows from the LR XA EZEH S RENEE -
cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable B ER2017F12ANBEMREERS A
discount rates in order to calculate the present value R #250,384,0007T (20164 : A R #&
of those cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill 250,384,0007T )  ZE 15 87 B 76 3 2% K
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused
tax losses and deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the losses and
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that
can be recognised, based upon the likely timing
and level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies. The carrying value
of deferred tax assets relating to recognised tax
losses and deductible temporary differences at
31 December 2017 was RMB119,539,000 (2016:
RMB119,746,000). The amount of unrecognised tax
losses at 31 December 2017 was RMB306,059,000
(2016: RMB209,304,000) that will expire in one to
five years for offsetting against future taxable profits
as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been
loss-making for some time and it is not considered
profitable. Further details are contained in note 23 to
the financial statements.

Bonus point liabilities

The amount of revenue attributable to the credits
award earned by the customers of the Group’s
loyalty point programme is estimated based on the
fair value of the credits awarded and the expected
redemption rate. The expected redemption rate is
estimated by considering the number of the credits
that will be available for redemption in the future
after allowing for credits which are not expected to
be redeemed. The carrying amount of bonus point
liabilities at 31 December 2017 was RMB32,508,000
(2016: RMB38,208,000).

NET CURRENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2017, the current liabilities of the
Group exceeded its current assets by approximately
RMB3,961,039,000. The Directors have prepared
these financial statements on a going concern basis
notwithstanding the net current liability position
because the Directors expected that the Group
will generate sufficient cash inflows from the sales
proceeds on the operation of department stores
and supermarkets, and will successfully refinance
its current interest-bearing debts by various means
including but not limited to renewing its existing
loans, utilising its unused bank facilities, and issuing
new bonds, to meet its financial obligations when
they fall due.
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OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised HREEERE  AEBREBEERGEE
into business units based on their products and D BEEERERN - WD AT /MRE
services and has two reportable operating segments Gl = o

as follows:

—  Department store segment
—  Supermarket segment

Management monitors the results of the Group’s
operating segments separately for the purpose of
making decisions about resource allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance
is evaluated based on reportable segment profit,
which is a measure of adjusted profit before tax. The
adjusted profit before tax is measured consistently
with the Group’s profit before tax except that interest
income, finance costs, fair value gains from the
Group’s financial instruments, fair value gains on
disposal available-for-sale listed investments, gains
on disposal of unquoted current investments, stated
at cost as well as head office and corporate expenses
are excluded from this measurement.

Segment assets exclude the Group’s available-for-
sale investments, deferred tax assets, restricted cash,
long-term time deposits at banks, tax recoverable,
amounts due from the controlling shareholder,
derivative financial instruments, cash and cash
equivalents and other unallocated head office and
corporate assets as these assets are managed on a
group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank
borrowings, derivative financial instruments, tax
payable, medium term financing notes, corporate
bonds, deferred tax liabilities and other unallocated
head office and corporate liabilities as these liabilities
are managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with

reference to the selling prices used for sales made to
third parties at the then prevailing market prices.
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HZE2017F12A31HILFE
5. OPERATING SEGMENT 5. REDHWEHR (&)
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Year ended Department
31 December 2017 store  Super-market Total
BZ2017F12B31BLEE BEE B #st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETRT
Segment revenue pik: 1 ON
Sales to external customers HINEE PR E 1,767,320 2,676,719 4,444,039
Segment results PBEE 625,288 66,995 692,283
Reconciliation: Hk -
Interest income and unallocated gains L8 R ok 2B s 37,323
Corporate and other unallocated expenses A Bl & E 4t & 2 BB 2 (132,593)
Finance costs BERA (65,751)
Profit before tax BR 754 Al Al 531,262
Segment assets PBEE 10,094,446 1,570,634 11,665,080
Reconciliation: H
Corporate and other unallocated assets NAREMADEEE 1,005,845
Total assets BEE 12,670,925
Segment liabilities AHEE 2,880,976 812,688 3,693,664
Reconciliation: H
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities RAREMADEARE 3,726,769
Total liabilities FEN=E 7,420,433
Other segment information HttaBEH
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH 391,459 90,584 482,043
Corporate and other unallocated amounts 7 &) & 4tk 7 B2 208 3,244
Total depreciation and amortisation WEREHA 485,287 »
— z
L
Provision/(write-back of provision) WiETERE/ o b
for slow-moving inventories (BEmm) (1,938) 855 (1,083) B EE‘E
—_— i
s
Impairment of property, plant and equipment  #¥1% « BiE KR E R E 1,759 6,387 8,146 g?_t'%
. : I H b b TR A _ o
Impairment of other intangible assets HimEERE 2,838 2,838 2
<
2
Capital expenditure BARAX 752,916 79,145 832,061 i
Corporate and other unallocated amounts DNAREMEKDEFTE 1,023
Total capital expenditure* BERAT 833,084
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Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017F12A31HILFE

5. OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Year ended
31 December 2016
HZE2016F12A31B L5 E

Segment revenue 2HBBA
Sales to external customers HNFEPRHE
Segment results FHEE

Reconciliation: #Hk

RETHER ()

Interest income and unallocated gains FERADEKE
Corporate and other unallocated expenses A ] B E At R 2 BL i X2
Finance costs BMEKA

Profit before tax BR %t A& 7l

Segment assets PBEE
Reconciliation: Hk

Corporate and other unallocated assets
Assets of a disposal group classified
as held for sale

Total assets

Segment liabilities
Reconciliation:
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities
Liabilities directly associated with
the assets classified as held for sale

Total liabilities

Other segment information

Depreciation and amortisation
Corporate and other unallocated amounts

Total depreciation and amortisation

Provision/(write-back of provision)
for slow-moving inventories

Impairment of goodwill

Capital expenditure
Corporate and other unallocated amounts

Total capital expenditure*

*

RARAMKARER
EAIERERAEA
REREAE

A HAE

REAREMANEARE

BREREAEER
RANAE

BafR

Htt 2 HEH

HEREH
RAIREMAKD A

REREHA

BHEERE/
(Bfgm)

BERRX
RAREMARD KR

BERRZ

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property,

plant and equipment, prepaid land premiums and other
intangible assets including assets from the acquisition

of subsidiaries.

160

*

Department
store Super-market Total
BEE il @t
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETTT
1,620,961 2,571,762 4,192,723
601,963 85,190 687,153
66,235
(181,678)
(75,282)
496,428
9,746,224 1,691,330 11,437,554
986,777
26,400
12,450,731
2,990,995 869,004 3,859,999
3,445,531
4,769
7,310,299
347,824 86,940 434,764
4,107
438,871
783 (648) 135
54,056 - 54,056
706,864 334,523 1,041,387
11,871
1,053,258

EXRXBERNRENE BERRER

BT ESREMBETLEE (B
RERBHBRRMNEE) -
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SPRINGLAND INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED  #th BB 12 i B BR A &

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Geographical information

All of the Group’s revenue is derived from customers
based in Mainland China and all of the non-current
assets of the Group are located in Mainland China.

Information about major customers

No revenue derived from sales to a single customer
or a group of customers under common control
accounted for 10% or more of the Group’s revenue
for the year.

REVENUE

Revenue represents the net amount received and
receivable for goods sold by the Group to external
customers, less allowances for returns and trade
discounts; commission income from concessionaire
sales, net of sales taxes and surcharges; and other
revenue that arises in the ordinary course of business.

An analysis of revenue is as follows:

Sales of goods — direct sales RmiHE —B

Commission income from KERTFEZE
concessionaire sales (Note) WA (Bt

Total turnover P

Rental income Ha WA

Provision of food and beverage BB R
service

Total revenue F A ON

Note:

The commission income from concessionaire sales is
analysed as follows:

Rt EEHEME

Gross revenue from
concessionaire sales

Commission income from
concessionaire sales
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Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017F12A31HILFE

ng 1 5aj %Bﬁﬂ (mﬁ)

i 1% & B
AEBRARAREFEAMES - M
AEBEMEFRDEEMRTEAM -

ITREFNESR
RAFEEWEE —K PR HAFRIEH T HY
—HEPHHE G AR B AT10%K A
J: o

A

WABEAEESILEFPHEETM LD
Usg 0 8 U TR TR AR B N B B 3 H R
KEFFEEHEMASBMATRBEEN
KHIINE : AR —REBBERELEN
HA e

WADIT25IT -

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AR T
2,950,247 2,788,789
1,280,122 1,235,436
4,230,369 4,024,225
207,659 166,690
6,011 1,808

4,444,039 4,192,723

Bt
HHAELHEMSWADIITAOT

2017 2016
—E—tF T —RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT R ARBTIT
8,029,994 7,983,697
1,280,122 1,235,436
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ¥R 2R Y 5

Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017F12A31HILFE

7. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 7.

Other income

Fee income from suppliers
Interest income

Subsidy income

Others

Gains
Fair value gains, net:
Derivative instruments
— transactions not
qualifying as hedges
Foreign exchange difference

8. OTHER EXPENSES

H e A

KB R E e E A

B IA

R A

Hith

iy 25

NP EWRE - FE

TESRTE
—TRE 8

ERZIR S
N ERR

Other expenses mainly include utility expenses,
advertising and promotion expenses, loss on disposal
of property, plant and equipment, impairment of
property, plant and equipment, impairment of other
intangible assets, office expenses, maintenance
costs, travelling expenses, entertainment expenses,
property tax and government surcharges and other

miscellaneous expenses.

9. FINANCE COSTS

An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

Interest on short-term
financing notes
Interest on medium term
financing notes
Interest on corporate bonds
Interest on bank borrowings wholly
payable within five years
Less: Interest capitalised

8.
9.
RERE S
FHRENE
FE 25 A8
AREFAZEER

RITEFAOF B
R BEARMER B
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H AU A K WS
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARBT T
622,455 632,283
20,766 30,815
16,835 15,949
11,455 20,783
671,511 699,830
- 11,487
90 =
90 11,487
671,601 711,317

H fth 5 <

HEHRAXTIEZREKERX BEEEE
E2R -WE BEAREBENREEERE -
ME - BB LREREER  HEMEY
BEREEH BLRERX #ER
MMER ERE XBREE ME
B+ BT 0 2 PR AN EL A RETR A S e

A& AR
BEKADHTAT ¢
2017 2016
—E-tE —TAF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AREEF T
- 12,503
15,240 11,775
41,360 21,870
62,119 78,415
(52,968) (49,281)
65,751 75,282
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10. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

SPRINGLAND INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED  #th BB 12 i B BR A &

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10. BRBH

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after

charging/(crediting):

Cost of inventories sold
Provision for slow-moving
inventories
Depreciation
Amortisation of prepaid land premiums
Amortisation of other intangible assets
Impairment of goodwill®
Impairment of property, plant and
equipment®
Impairment of other intangible assets®
Loss on disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment
Loss on disposal of items of
other intangible asset
Loss on disposal of investments at
fair value through profit or loss
Minimum lease payments under
operating leases:
Land and buildings
Auditors’ remuneration
Staff costs including Directors’ and
chief executive’s remuneration
(Note 11):
Wages, salaries and bonuses®
Pension scheme contributions®
Other social security costs®
Foreign exchange differences, net
Fair value losses/(gains), net:
Derivative instruments -
transactions not qualifying
as hedges
Loss on write-off of unlisted equity
investments at cost

FEHEMA
T E

78

BT HES B

b mEER Y

AR A

nE - BERR
g

B {8 8 A

RENZ - BERE
HER

REE AR R

B E

REEATEHEAAZHIHA
RO RERR
EERETRERS

T RETF
R 2
BIRA(BREZRITH
REHW) (Hz11)

I8 He Mo
RN E BT
Hthit @RI E RO
ERERE 38
NPERS B
TESRTIA-
TIEHM TR
X5
REBMAGHERIE LT
BEREBR

@ The impairment of goodwill, impairment of property, plant
and equipment and impairment of other intangible assets
are included in “Other expenses” in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss.

©) Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to
confirm with the current year’s presentation.
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Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017F12A31HILFE

AL a2

B i A

ARE B R ATE M 2 HE/ (FEA) T
RIF

Notes

it

17
18
19
20

17
19

2017 2016
“E-tE —ERF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARET T
2,601,522 2,480,403
(1,083) 135
451,382 409,934
31,221 25,874
2,684 3,063
- 54,056
8,146 L
2,838 L
16,374 19,310
- 3,024
4,924 4
106,292 94,076
2,868 2,952
595,102 557,087
72,974 74,551
34,912 35,701
(90) 10,408
24,757 (11,487)
- 110

BEBEEE VX - BELRRERE
EEREMETLEERERFERSES
AWK EMmREX]

B

b

LEBIREEEFNOE  NERFE
WEOGHE B
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 i a MY =

Year ended 31 December 2017

HZE2017F12A31HLEFE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF 1. EE RIT AR M
EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for RIE _E AR B &S (A BHER ) 55383(1)
the year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, (a),(b),(c), NI M~ Al &l E FE280 (EEH
383(1)(a),(b),(c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies MEERE) EFkRERNEHEBMEN
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies Regulation FME S HWENT ¢

(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors), is as follows:

2017 2016
—E—tF T AF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBETT

Fees we 933 624
Other emoluments: E b B
Salaries, allowances and e RMREDH=
benefits in kind 4,968 4,722
Pension scheme contributions BRIRE FHEI K 174 151
5,142 4,873
6,075 5,497
(a) Independent non-executive directors @) BUHFHITEE
The fees paid to independent non-executive REBHESZNEBIIENTES
directors during the year were as follows: ST
2017 2016
0 —E—+tF —E-RF
E RMB’000 RMB’000
o 2 e AR¥ TR AR¥BT T
PEE
D =1
B - =
o2 Mr. Lin Zhijun MEE R E 311 208
“ox Mr. Zhang Weijiong B 4 A7 5 £ 311 208
= Mr. Cheung Yat Ming R—IS % & 311 208
[
933 624
There were no other emoluments payable to the R B HA M I FE S 48 B S FE AT
independent non-executive directors during the EFEWEMME (20165 « &) -

year (2016: Nil).
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Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017F12A31HILFE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION

(CONTINUED)

MEERITHARETMH (&)

(b) Executive directors, non-executive director and

the chief executive

(b) BITEE HHTEFERTHAEE

Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme
in kind  contributions Total
Fees =11 EKE remuneration
e RENFE TEMR &%
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ETT AR®ETT ARETR AR¥TR
2017 20174
Executive directors: HITESE
Mr. Chen Jiangiang © BRigsa 4 0 - 1,256 70 1,326
Mr. Tao Qingrong MEXTE - 2,146 16 2,162
Mr. Yu Yaoming © AU ZRA L AD - 1,255 88 1,343
- 4,657 174 4,831
Non-executive director: ERTES
Mr. Fung Hiu Chuen, John  IBEETR L A& - 311 - 311
- 4,968 174 5,142
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme
in kind contributions Total
Fees o EZH BKE  remuneration
ik REMF = SR W&
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTL AREFT ARETT ARBTT
2016 20164
Executive directors: HiTES:
Mr. Chen Jiangiang Btk - 1,071 52 1,123
Mr. Tao Qingrong © B B 5 O - 2,148 16 2,164
Mr. Yu Yaoming MERLE - 1,295 83 1,378
- 4,514 151 4,665 (7))
Non-executive director: FHTES £
Mr. Fung Hiu Chuen, John  JBEETR L A = 208 = 208 gﬁd
otk
= 4,722 151 4873 B
B
I oI®
(i) Subsequent to the end of the reporting iy RIFEHELERE  —T—N zg§
period, on 21 March 2018, Mr. Tao F=ZA-+—H HWELLE ="
Qingrong resigned as the chief executive BRERNEBITHABERBMN - & =
of the Group and Mr. Chen Jiangiang was ERERZARANEBEITHAE Fra
appointed as the chief executive of the ESA
Group.
(i) Subsequent to the end of the reporting iy MIEHEERE  —ZF—N
period, on 21 March 2018, Mr. Yu Yaoming FZA=-+—H @iZPLE
resigned as a director of the Group. BEAEBESERS -
There was no arrangement under which a RE BRI EE Bl T A F K
director or the chief executive waived or agreed Zoy B B ET A AT HE -

to waive any remuneration during the year.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R EE

Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017F12A31HILFE

12. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year
included three (2016: two) directors, details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 11 above. Details of
the remuneration of the remaining two (2016: three)
highest paid employees who are neither a director nor
chief executive of the Company for the year are as
follows:

Salaries, allowances and
benefits in kind

Pension scheme contributions RIRE T B R

The number of non-director and non-chief executive
highest paid employees whose remuneration fell
within the following bands is as follows:

e R2MEEWH S

Nil to RMB1,000,000

ARBEZE—BET

ARE—BEZ—TE
ARE—BRETER

RMB1,000,001 to RMB1,500,000

RMB1,500,001 to RMB2,000,000
ARB_BET
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ARE—BATEZ T

12. E U & = & & Fr i

REBHK  AAmaHEEHFTIRE
£ (20167F : 2R EF) HFMFBR A L
BiEE11 o g% (20164 : 3%) BE T~ =
SEEMFARITHER - A HRE A B
SHBWT :

2017 2016
—g—t% T A%
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTE  ARMTE
2,625 4,368

74 95

2,699 4,463

FIBREFEMFITRESRTSFHIESR
B BRFE T 51 5 B 0 B 1T 51 R

Number of employees

BEH
2017 2016
—B—tF —E-RF
1 2
E
1 1
2 3




ANNUAL REPORT 2017 3R

SPRINGLAND INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED  #th BB 12 i B BR A &

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13.INCOME TAX

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity
basis on profits arising in or derived from the tax
jurisdictions in which members of the Group are
domiciled and operate. The Group and the Company
are not liable for income tax in Hong Kong as they
did not have assessable income sourced from Hong
Kong during the year.

The Company is a tax-exempted company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands.

Under the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law (the
“New CIT Law”), the income tax rate became 25%
starting from 1 January 2008. Therefore, provision
for the PRC income tax has been made at the
applicable income tax rate of 25% (2016: 25%) on
the assessable profits of the PRC Subsidiaries.

Current — PRC corporate income
tax charge for the year X
Deferred (Note 23)

Total tax charge for the year

167
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Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017F12A31HILFE

13. FT 5%

AEBANERELERANEERKE QA
REEM LK LEMERDEERMELESK
MEHEANMAER - ARERAR
BIBABMETEMEN ARERAH
HIR Y R B BB ERTUA -

ARARRFASESEMKILIARET A
7 o

RIEFBEEBRE((FEEMSH
s51)  B2008F1A1RHFFEBEH X A
25% * Eit - HHREB AR ERT G
R3R 58 B P 15 5% R 25% (20164 : 25%)
ETPBFTS R B -

B —F AR B EMREH

2017 2016
—g—tF —FAF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFE  ARBTR
180,069 178,980
12,698 (4,939)
192,767 174,041
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Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017F12A31HILFE

13.INCOME TAX (CONTINUED) 13. Fr 5% (&)
AR A E R E A S5 KB A T ST A
BRI K T R R 5 WO R B AT % R BT
EROBER S RN ERR R EOR

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit
before tax at the statutory rate for the jurisdiction in
which the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to

the tax expense at the effective tax rate is as follows: BHRXBERNAT :
2017 2016
—e—tF —FxE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT T ARETT
Profit before tax B %52 BT i A 531,262 496,428
Tax at the statutory tax rate of 1235 TE B R 25% 5T B K Fi IE
25% (2016: 25%) (20164 : 25%) 132,816 124,107
Expenses not deductible for tax AT HELE F S 22,762 19,630
Effect of withholding tax on TR H P BB A R A 2K
the distributable profits of i ) ) 2 2
the PRC Subsidiaries 11,608 10,983
Tax losses not recognised KRR IEEE 25,581 19,321
Tax charge at the Group'’s RASBEERFETED
effective rate FRIEF X 192,767 174,041
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Year ended 31 December 2017

EZE2017F12A31BLEFE
14. DIVIDENDS 14. RE
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZTE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBTT
Interim — HK$3 cents B — R AR B OB 3L
(2016: HK$3 cents) (20164 : BH31l)
per ordinary share 58,640 61,238
Proposed final - HK$5 cents R REAR B — Tl
(2016: HK$5 cents) BB 5L
per ordinary share (20164 : B#51L) 88,890 103,332
147,530 164,570
The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to AEFHEKERAREANERERRE
the approval of the Company’s shareholders at the FRE EFARRIREHRE -
forthcoming annual general meeting.
The amount which the PRC Subsidiaries can legally FERBARIAEBREEGEDIK &
distribute by way of dividend is determined by BEH2EZEREBEFEAR ST RAGER
reference to the distributable profits as reflected in 7 H [BY)% TE B 5 R 3% BT IR R A9 AT £ 9 R

their PRC statutory financial statements prepared in i M EESE °
accordance with the accounting rules and regulations
in the PRC (“PRC GAAP”).
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Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017F12A31HILFE

15.

16.

EARNINGS PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share
amount is based on the profit for the year
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent
of RMB340,019,000 (2016: RMB325,058,000), and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
2,289,041,027 (2016: 2,383,042,762) in issue during
the year.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares
in issue during the years ended 31 December 2017
and 2016.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The PRC Subsidiaries participate in defined
contribution retirement benefit plans organised by the
relevant government authorities for their employees
in Mainland China and contribute to these plans
based on a certain percentage of the salaries of the
employees on a monthly basis, up to a maximum
fixed monetary amount, as stipulated by the relevant
government authorities. The government authorities
undertake to assume the retirement benefit
obligations payable to all existing and future retired
employees under these plans.

The Group has no further obligation for post-retirement
benefits beyond the contributions made. The
contributions to these plans are recognised as
employee benefit expenses when incurred.
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BAREERESEARGERE
JR 72t A

ERELAENDIERFEST A A
TREBREFBEABRMLGRNARK
340,019,0007 (20164 : AR
325,058,0007T) Al 4 A E & 17 & 8 Ik
HNHE 5 82,289,041,027 /% (20164 :
2,383,042,7620%) 5t & -

B E2017%12A31H Kk2016F 12431
BIEFE ASRERZFTHEBREE
EBEERENESRTA -

B SR KA
RETRAREZROAE  TEMEA
AIE2BAEHFERNKGE - 2RFE
MEBARESHAEZERENELRAK
B HI& 12 5 08 &0 P 7E 30 [ 73 B0 1 25 3 B
SEMETELL P FRERAKSE - EILETE
T HEARFREYMERA LRKE
ReyE B A ERNNEERKEF -

B Lt s - AR EYEE R E A
BARESBAMK - AZFEOHERR
BERBASEEEANAS -
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31 December 2017

At 31 December 2016 and
at 1 January 2017:
Cost or valuation
Accumulated depreciation
and impairment

Net carrying amount

At 1 January 2017, net of
accumulated depreciation
and impairment

Additions

Depreciation provided during
the year

Impairment

Transfers

Disposal

At 31 December 2017, net of
accumulated depreciation
and impairment

At 31 December 2017:
Cost or valuation
Accumulated depreciation

and impairment

Net carrying amount

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT

0175124318

1201612731 H
R2017E1A1R
A fEE
2HTERAEER

FEFE

201741 R1A
AR ZENE
RAEER

AE

EREZHHE

HEER
Bg
RE

R2017E12A318
AR EHNE
RAEER

20175124318
AAG[EE
ZHERHEES

REFE

SPRINGLAND INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED  #th BB 12 i B BR A &

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017F12A31HILFE

17. 9% - BERRE

Renovation Furniture

Land and and leasehold Motor  and office  Construction

buildings improvements  Machinery vehicles  equipment in progress Total
BRR

tHREF  BEREE Be RE BAERG HBIE )
RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB’000  RMB’000
ARETRT  ARBTR AR%Tn AR%Trn AR%Tn AR ARETR
8,840,804 913,314 740,254 12,670 232,552 219,114 11,018,708
(1,260,601) (471,826)  (353,911) (8,980)  (151,195) - (2,246,513
7,580,203 441,488 386,343 3,690 81,357 279,114 8,772,195
7,580,203 441,488 386,343 3,690 81,357 219,114 8,772,195
142,185 59,400 47,219 1,812 23,219 585,971 829,806
(246,726) (99,827) (66,585) (992) (37,252) - (451,382)
- (6,387) (1,759) - - - (8,146)
481,856 81,554 102,355 - 4,037 (669,802) -
(2,354) (6,645) (6,450) (2,006) (953) - (18,408)
7,955,164 469,583 461,123 2,504 70,408 165,283 9,124,065
9,462,700 1,017,280 876,938 9,736 248,272 165,283 11,780,209
(1,507,536) (547,697)  (415,815) (7,232)  (177,864) - (2,656,144
7,955,164 469,583 461,123 2,504 70,408 165,283 9,124,065
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Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017F12A31HILFE
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

17. 9%~ BE k& (&)

B 7% R MY &
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Renovation Furniture
Land and and leasehold Motor and office  Construction
buildings improvements  Machinery vehicles  equipment in progress Total
FHR
THREF BHREE BE A2 BAERE  ERIE @it
RVMB'000 ~ RVMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETR AR%ETn ARETR ARETRT ARETn ARETR
31 December 2016 20165128318
At 31 December 2015 and R2015%12A31R
at 1 January 2016: Reo16%1A18
Cost or valuation A 713,173 832958 693,626 13,585 188597 1,260,126 10,102,085
Accumulated depreciation ZHTERAEER
and impairment (1,007,303) (408,204) (349,770) (9,318) (128,114) - (1,902,709)
Net carrying amount BEFE 6,105,870 424754 343,856 4,267 60483 1260126 8,199,356
At 1 January 2016, net of #R2016F1A1A -
accumulated depreciation R EHIE
and impairment RAEER 6,105870 424754 343856 4967 60,483 1260126 8,199,356
Additions WE 348,912 43,490 20,909 1,485 33,556 553,731 1,002,083
Depreciation provided during ~~ £EZ3tirE
the year (253298 (92348 (36,864) (1457)  (25,967) - (409,93
Transfers g 1,378,719 78,468 67,606 - 14,950 (1,534,743 -
Disposal RE - (7,876) (9,164) (605) (1,665) - (19310
At 31 December 2016, netof 120165123318 -
accumulated depreciation R EHITE
and impairment RAEER 7580203 441488 386,343 3,690 81,957 279114 8,772,195
At 31 December 2016: R2016%12A31H
Cost or valuation AR 8,840,804 913,314 740,254 12670 232,552 279,114 11,018,708
Accumulated depreciation ZiTE LA EER
and imparment (1,260,601)  (471,826) (358,911) (8,980)  (151,199) - (2,246,519)
Net carrying amount BEFE 7580203 441488 386,343 3,690 81,357 219,114 8,772,195

At 31 December 2017, the application for converting
the land use right certificate to the property
ownership certificate for the Group’s land and
buildings amounting to RMB1,470,441,000 (2016:
RMB1,645,975,000) was still in progress.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2017

EZE2017F12A31BLEFE
18. PREPAID LAND PREMIUMS 18. ATt HES

2017 2016

—E—+HF —E—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®Tx ARBTT

Carrying amount at 1 January M1A1EREREER 1,676,148 1,680,781

Additions NE - 41,014
Amortisation capitalised as property, EE#EEN (L BHE -

plant and equipment for the year BB & & (17,339) (19,273)

Recognised as expenses HRAEFERXZ
during the year (31,221) (25,874)
Carrying amount at 31 December R12A31 B EREEE 1,627,588 1,676,148

The leasehold land is situated in Mainland China and

HETHERFBERER  TREEAHE

is held under a long-term lease. A o
19. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19. Hith B EE
2017 2016
—E—+F —ZE-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARET T
Lease agreement buyouts THE 7= B
Carrying amount at 1 January M ATERMEREEE 29,199 35,286
Additions NE 3,278 -
Impairment VERIERA (2,838) 7
Disposals BRE - (3,024)
Recognised as expenses BREBFERX
during the year (2,684) (3,063)
Carrying amount at 31 December M12A31BWEREEE 26,955 29,199

& % B i 15 AN S B ) R P A 3UA
BEUEEwR  YRESKZEHEHRN

The lease agreement buyouts represented the
Group’s payment to old tenants to buy out lease
agreements, and were amortised over the lease terms
on the straight-line basis.
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Year ended 31 December 2017

HZE2017F12A31HLEFE
20. GOODWILL 20. &
RMB’000
ARET T
At 1 January 2016: M2016F1H18 :
Cost B R 329,440
Accumulated impairment (Note) BErmEERE (i) (25,000)
Net carrying amount BREF(E 304,440
Cost at 1 January 20186, #2016F1 A1 H KA ¢
net of accumulated impairment R R EHRE 304,440
Impairment during the year (Note) B E () (54,056)
Cost and net carrying amount 1201612 H31H
at 31 December 2016 B K BR ENHRE 250,384
At 31 December 2016: R2016%F12H31H :
Cost B 7R 329,440
Accumulated impairment RETBEER (79,056)
Net carrying amount RHEFE 250,384
Cost at 1 January 2017, 201781 A1RBK A -
net of accumulated impairment R R ETRE 250,384
Cost and net carrying amount M2017F12 4318
at 31 December 2017 BN & BR B 250,384
»
£
w At 31 December 2017: 2017912 A31H -
o Cost P& 329,440
m%#kﬁ Accumulated impairment R2EHREERE (79,056)
=t
o2k
o= Net carrying amount BREFE 250,384
2
[T
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Year ended 31 December 2017

EZE2017F12A31BLEFE
20. GOODWILL (CONTINUED) 20. & (&)

Impairment testing of goodwill EmERERE
Goodwill acquired through business combinations is BREBAHEANHEDIEZEE
allocated to the department store cash-generating EREEEBMERE®RD  BIEE
units for impairment testing, including Wuxi Yaohan NEHFEFRLBRAR ([EHNA\AE
Commerce & Trade Center Co., Ltd. (“Wuxi Yaohan”), ) - ETEEEMAER AR ([ET
Zhenjiang Baisheng Commercial Co., Ltd. (Zhenjiang BRDAEBNEEEHERDERAR
Baisheng”) and Nantong Yaohan Commerce & Trade (EENAEHE]) - BEEEBMMHATK
Joint Stock Company Ltd. (‘Nantong Yaohan”). The EleREBEFEABETEETE - A&t
recoverable amount of the cash-generating units have H24% eREBESREEABILE
been determined based on a value in use calculation HMERLFHREMNYBREERGRIRERE
using cash flow projections based on financial TEEl - TEFERSRERABEARE
budgets covering a five-year period approved by R 513.5% (20164 : 13.5%) °
senior management. The discount rates applied to all
cash flow projections are 13.5% (2016: 13.5%).
The growth rates used to extrapolate the cash flows FTEEERANEIBREERLLE
of the cash-generating units beyond the five-year IR eESLAENNRS REMFER
period from the end of the reporting period are 2% MR R A2%  ZIEEREPIBEI0E
for all years. The growth rates are below the average ZETENTITHERR AR AR E
growth rate of the retail industry for the past 10 years. IBABMHE FAREKMNIERRIZRA
Senior management of the Company believes that BEERmS TV RF R A SEHYIRIE -
using a lower growth rate is a more conservative and
reliable choice for the purpose of this impairment
testing.
The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each of BEEEEI K ESRARSEHEMNEY
the cash-generating units is as follows: mE

Wuxi Yaohan Zhenjiang Baisheng Nantong Yaohan Total

EHNEH gIRa HRNEH @it
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016

S i = T A S L T e St S
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARMTE ARMTE ARMTE ARMTE ARMTR ARMTRE ARMTE ARMTR

Camyingamount ~ EERAE E
of goodwil 87,122 87,122 122,945 122,945 40,317 40,317 250,384 250,384 w
|-I;:E
Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation BREW AR E2017F12A31H & P w
of the department store cash-generating unit for 2016F12A31HEBEEEH S RELE Sjg
31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016. The - ATHIERBEANTEBRERD S
following describes each key assumption on which B EERK - E
management has based its cash flow projections to E

undertake impairment testing of goodwill.

Store revenue: BEERA :

the bases used to determine the future earnings BRETAKRBINEHNHNEELSFSB
potential are average historical sales and expected FHELHEARFTEAMTE HISHTE
growth rates of the retail market in Mainland China. HAB R K o
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the basis used to determine the value assigned to the
budgeted gross margins is the average gross margins
achieved in the year immediately before the budget
year, increased for expected efficiency improvements,
and expected market development.

Expenses:

the basic factors used to determine the values
assigned are staff costs, rental expenses and other
expenses. Values assigned to the key assumptions
reflect past experience and management’s
commitment to maintain the Company’s operating
expenses at an acceptable level.

HZE2017F12A31HLEFE

20. GOODWILL (CONTINUED) 20.7 2 (&)
Impairment testing of goodwill (continued) SR ER R (8)
Gross margins: EFIE :

AUNBEREENXEENEERER
BEFEN — FRERNFHENE
EIREH KRR T R IR 5 R B Mg A0 o

FX

ARETETEENEARRSETK
A MERLLREMAX - DETEE
R BB E [ bR 3B 1 A8 B o B 38 FE 742
RARB L ERMIBRNATEZKE -

Discount rates: AL 3R &

the discount rates used are after tax and reflect FTAMREEGRE  UREEEENE
management’s estimate of the risks specific to the EAReBEMNEAEREHN G HEE
cash-generating units. In determining an appropriate NETAHENBEXE BEZEEHEFE
discount rate for the unit, regard has been given to ZEANWBEREER -

the applicable borrowing rate of the industry in the
current year.

The values assigned to the key assumptions
on discount rates are consistent with external
information sources.

Sensitivity to changes in assumptions

With regard to the assessment of value in use of the
department store cash-generating unit, management
believes that no reasonably possible change in any of
the above key assumptions would cause the carrying
value, including goodwill, of the cash-generating unit
to materially exceed the recoverable amount.

Note:

As at 31 December 2014, as the progress of an extension
and renovation of existing property of Yangzhou Fengxiang
Commerce Co., Ltd. (“Yangzhou Fengxiang”) did not meet
management’s expectation, management recognised an
impairment charge of RMB25,000,000 against the carrying
amount of RMB56,728,000. As at 31 December 2016, the
operating outcome continued not to meet management’s
expectation, and management recognised a full impairment
against the net carrying amount of RMB31,728,000.

As at 31 December 2016, as the operating result of
Nanjing Yaohan Commerce & Trade Co., Ltd. did not meet
management’s expectation which relates to municipal
reconstruction of Hunan road in Nanjing, management
closed the department store and recognized a full
impairment against the carrying amount of RMB22,328,000.
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BREIHHBE
EHPEEReEABMUEREEED
AR BEEERE LAENERRR
AREHENSEES TS HERSESL
BUNEEEE(EERE) EBREA
Yeml g %8 e

Hrst

R2014F12A831H ARG MNEFEFES
RAR ([HBMEH])) NEELRREEREEYD
ERETHEERY TEERATHERE
B A R#56,728,0007T B 2 ERREARE
25,000,0007T © FA20164E12 A31H » & & B
REBRNERERY EEEYERMFE
AR¥31,728,0007c BB 2B HERRE °

R20165F12 4318 + A F 78 /B i B =
BEEHmR  AEEEERARNLEE
MRAAEZNERENEY  SEEERAZE
EEE R T IREEE A R 22,328,000
TR E 2 ERERARME -



ANNUAL REPORT 2017 3R SPRINGLAND INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED  #th BB 12 i B BR A &

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 ¥R 2R Y &

Year ended 31 December 2017

HZE2017F12A31HILFE
21. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE 1. EERE
INVESTMENTS
2017 2016
—E—4t & —TE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARETF T
Unlisted equity investments, at cost 3 E M IR #EIRE » K AFHE 5,188 2,550
Total non-current available- MBI A HERERE
for-sale investments 5,188 2,550

As at 31 December 2017, certain unlisted equity
investments with a carrying amount of RMB5,188,000
(2016: RMB2,550,000) were stated at cost less
impairment. The Directors are of the opinion that their
fair value cannot be measured reliably.

MR2017F12831B - REEE A A
K #%5,188,0007T (20164 : AR
2,550,000t ) #) JE £ T AR 1% & DA Bk
WMEEHKARINER EFRBZETRE
HAFETRERFEE ©

22. LONG-TERM PREPAYMENTS 22 EHIFEATFh1E
2017 2016
—E—+tHF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBT T
Rental prepayments FENES 12,942 19,371
12,942 19,371
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Year ended 31 December 2017

HE2017F 128318 LLFE
23. DEFERRED TAX 23. IEER 18
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities REBHRMNELHEEERBENE
during the year are as follows: R
Deferred tax assets BEEBEEE
Losses
available
for offsetting
against future Loss on Accrued Bonus
taxable profits disposal rental point
MEEHERR  ofassets  expenses liabilities
FERH R A REEE Eitfe g8 Others® Total
il 3 F# Bx EPER H {0 @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR ARETR ARBTr ARETRE ARET:R
Gross deferred tax assets 1201651A1E
at 1 January 2016 ERREEESLR 42,036 11,239 17,810 8,788 13,483 98,356

Deferred tax credited/(charged) % MztA/ (41)
to the statement of profit or W RMELRE (13

loss during the year (Note 13) (543) 12,028 (2,156) 764 16,297 26,390
Gross deferred tax assets R2016%12A318

at 31 December 2016 and R2017E1R1BH)

1 January 2017 ERHEEELS 41,493 23,267 15,654 9,552 29,780 119,746

Deferred tax crecited/(charged) ~ £MEtA/ (1)
to the statement of profit or WERNELHE

loss during the year (Note 13) (Wi#13) 9,300 (1,323) 3,490 (1,425) (10,249) (207)
Gross deferred tax assets 201741231
at 31 December 2017 EXHARELE 50,793 21,944 19,144 8,127 19,531 119,539
Note: /;/915}- .
(i)  Others mainly arise from temporary differences caused () HiETBRaLENMAY  BARAXR
by pre-operating expenses, accrued expenses and FERBEHRNERER

inventory provision.

B 7% R MY &
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Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017F12A31HILFE

23. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED) 23. IF fE 1 (48)

Deferred tax liabilities EEHEEE
Fair value
adjustments
arising from
acquisition of
subsidiaries
KEKE  Withholding
AREEN taxes® Others® Total
DNTEAE EHHO 2 @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBFT ARETT ARETT
Gross deferred tax liabilities 120161 A1H
at 1 January 2016 ELHBARAR 415,792 128,828 561,230
Realisation during the year EREER - - (12,600)
Deferred tax charged/(credited) FRZA/ (NK) K&k
to the statement of profit or loss B BB (M 2213)
during the year (Note 1) (11,421) 21,889 21,451
Gross deferred tax liabilities 12016512310
at 31 December 2016 and %2017 1 A1R K
at 1 January 2017 ELHEARES 404,371 150,717 570,081
Realisation during the year FREER - - (14,451)
Deferred tax charged/(credited) EREA/ IR KE R
to the statement of profit or loss MIEIER B (f2213)
during the year (Note 13) (17,919) 18,802 12,491
Gross deferred tax liabilities 20175612310
at 31 December 2017 WETHEEBEE 386,452 169,519 568,121
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SPRINGLAND INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED  ZE3h B B2 A 5 BR A &

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 i a MY =

Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017F12A31HILFE

23. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax liabilities (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i

For presentation purposes,

Pursuant to the New CIT Law, a 10% withholding tax
is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors
from the foreign investment enterprises established
in Mainland China. The requirement is effective
from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after
31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may
be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland
China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors.
For the Group, the applicable rate is 5% according
to management’s’ best estimation. The Group is
therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in
Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from
1 January 2008.

In the opinion of the Directors, it is not probable
that these subsidiaries will, in the foreseeable
future, distribute earnings with an aggregate amount
of temporary differences of RMB1,634,814,000
(2016: RMB1,402,636,000) associated with
investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China for which
deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised at 31
December 2017.

Others mainly arise from temporary differences caused

by capitalised interest and accelerated tax deduction
of property, plant and equipment.

certain deferred

tax assets and liabilities have been offset in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The
following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances
of the Group for financial reporting purposes:

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 F 5

23. EIERH 18 (4F)
EEBIEEE (8)
Kraz -

(i)

(i

25BN E

RIBEFT D ERBHE £ B A
MINE D EAIINRIEEEME RS
ABZ10%TEF » I 18 E 5200841
BA1H 4% - @ B R2007412A31H
BREF| o fiw e B A ER AN 3% & By
BrRIZEHEBRBHE - Al RRIE
REBZTENE - RASEM S @ BT
e. EEEMAEGTERMRERS% - E

AN B A B B A A ST RO BT B A
75/\2008¢1 A1BRATEZF SRR
BEEZIEMH o

MR20175FE12 8318 * EERABEFERA
HWITE MK B ARER B RNERA A
REENE 2t A AR1,634,814,000
7t (20164 : A R #1,402,636,0007T)
MEEkRD  HEEREEEELENE
EFBHAEDRR FRER -

Hix ZEREAMEH L3I AR =8
K% - BENREO BRI TESL

CETEEHRBEEER

BEERNGEEMBHRRKREE - UTR

Y HEERE NE AR ENELTH RS
PRETTZ DT

Net deferred tax assets RERE SRR R ER
recognised in the consolidated B IR AE A IE & B SRR
statement of financial position

Net deferred tax liabilities Ny %Aﬁﬂkﬂﬂ:ﬂ%ﬁ&?w

recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position

180

BN IA B EFRE

2017 2016
—E-t& —TAF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARET T
111,151 111,290
(559,733) (561,625)
448,582 (450,335)
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SPRINGLAND INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED  #th BB 12 i B BR A &

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVENTORIES
Store merchandise, at cost or net JE R R AR
realisable value o A &30 FEFTE

EEHER

Low value consumables

At 31 December 2017, the Group’s inventories
with a carrying amount of RMB5,172,000 (2016:
RMB6,152,000) were carried at net realisable value.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

All of the Group’s sales are on a cash basis except
for certain bulk sales of merchandise which are credit
sales. The credit terms offered to customers are
generally one month.

None of the balances of the trade receivables at each
reporting date is either past due or impaired.

An aging analysis of the trade receivables at the

reporting date, based on the invoice date, is as
follows:

—@AR

Within one month

181

24.

25.

B 75 ¥R 2R Y &

Year ended 31 December 2017

HZE20175F12 A31HIEFE
K
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARETF T
350,654 416,694
454 952
351,108 417,646

R2017F12831H A& EEAEEE
A ARBS5,172,0007T (20164 : ARE
6,152,0007T) M F & « Ty E R Al # 3/ )%
EFffE -

FEW & 5 7R
RETARERBEREEHEN &
EEMAHEORRSEERT - ET
EFMEES-—RA—AEA -

REHRE B ROAERIKE 5 R RE
WEBH - JEHRRE -

SEHERESKRREZEH
OMRERITAT

2017 2016
— —T-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETT
6,412 10,663
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Year ended 31 December 2017
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HE2017F 128318 LLFE

26. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND 26. AR E -RERHEMEWR

OTHER RECEIVABLES g
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®B TR AR T T
Value-added tax recoverable AT U [B] 32 (B Fi 89,927 1,133
Prepayments to suppliers ) £k P 7 TR S RRIE 14,754 14,505
Other receivables from suppliers 1) 45 P 7 EL b FE UK IR 109,577 136,930
Prepaid rental and deposits EANES kRS 46,458 55,135
POS receivables POSFE YR IE 92,146 64,804
Interest receivables JE WL F B 35,839 507
Other deposits and receivables H g & & IR IE 42,091 43,931
430,792 316,945

PR EEYEBMIORE o 5FA Ll is
R RO B A BT HY I M e R RO B8R Y
FEWRIAE 7 -

None of the above assets is either past due or
impaired. The financial assets included in the above
balances relate to receivables for which there was no
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recent history of default.

27.CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AND RESTRICTED CASH

Cash and bank balances
Time deposits

Less: Restricted cash with maturity
over one year
Long-term time deposits at
banks

Cash and cash equivalents

Be MRITHER
EHER

B —FREHRR
FRI]ITHORD
EHFR

RekReFEY

182

7. RERBEEBYNZIREY

2017 2016
—E-tE  —TAF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARET T
275,731 337,394
348,625 351,085
624,356 688,479
(113,158) (108,908)

- (177,979)

511,198 401,592
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27.CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AND RESTRICTED CASH
(CONTINUED)
The Group’s cash and bank balances and time

deposits at the reporting date are denominated in the
following currencies:

RMB AR
us$ X7
HK$ BT
SGD 703 T
EURE BT

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based
on daily bank deposit rates. Time deposits are made
for varying periods of between one month and five
years depending on the immediate cash requirements
of the Group, and earn interest at the respective time
deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with
creditworthy banks. The carrying amounts of the cash
and cash equivalents and time deposits approximate
to their fair values.

Pursuant to the relevant rules and regulations
issued by the Ministry of Commerce of the People’s
Republic of China, the Group was required to deposit
bank balances (or through issuing the letter of bank
guarantee to deposit) in the Group’s designated
accounts, which amounted to no less than 30% of
the balance of advances from customers for sales
of prepaid cards. As at 31 December 2017, certain
of the Group’s cash amounting to RMB113,158,000
(2016: RMB108,908,000) represents the above
balances in the Group’s designated accounts.
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Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017F12A31HILFE

7. BERBEEBYNZREHN

&% (#)

AEEREHRE BHNRE RRTER
NEREFERZTIEEFE :

2017 2016
—E—tF —TEARF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARBETT
523,391 601,695
47,297 61,621
51,884 21,997
1,777 3,166

7 a2

624,356 688,479

$0 1777 R 18 5 B 4R 4T 77 3K Bl K BR AR
FBFE - W ERE—AAEHEY
RAZ BT AREMEE RS F KT
R B MR 1 ROF R BRERA
B WIABBEARSBRT - BER
BeSEY  HEANEDEERYL
AT EAE -

REFE AR LTRGBS HEENE
BER AEBEFFTANBAESR
TRAANEREETLVRIEERNE
TR AN FIEHEI0NNEEIET
BRP - R2017%12A31H » K&EE A
R #113,158,0007T (20164 : A R ¥
108,908,0007T) HEBE L EFALHE
WIEERP -
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Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017F12A31HILFE

28.INTEREST-BEARING BANK

28. 5t SR 1T B XK

BORROWINGS
Bank loans: RITE
Unsecured R

Bank loans repayable: JEEERITER

Within one year or on demand — & AR 3k B B

Over one year but within two years ~ —F N EERFER

Over two years but within five years MF N EEBRFR
Total bank borrowings IRITERAERR

Less: Portion classified as current
liabilities
Long-term portion REIE o

Bank loans bear interest at fixed rates or floating

B BRRBRENED

2017 2016
—g—tfE —2-A%
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARET T
1,863,948 1,739,204
1,863,948 1,739,204
1,467,948 1,739,204
3,000 -
393,000 N
1,863,948 1,739,204
1,863,948 1,739,204
(1,467,948) (1,739,204)

396,000

BB E MR FGFEBFI KRGS -

rates.

The Group’s bank loans bore interest at effective
interest rates ranging from 2.5% to 4.8% per annum
as at 31 December 2017 and 1.8% to 4.8% per
annum as at 31 December 2016.
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SPRINGLAND INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED  #th BB 12 i B BR A &

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTEREST-BEARING BANK
BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

The Group’s interest-bearing bank borrowings at
the reporting date are denominated in the following
currencies:

RMB AR
us$ ETT
HK$ BT

MEDIUM TERM FINANCING NOTES

The aggregate principal amount of up to RMB2.0
billion was approved by the National Association of
Financial Market Institutional Investors and the Group
issued its first tranche of medium term financing
notes at par value of RMB300 million to domestic
institutional investors in the PRC on 25 March 2016.
The nominal interest rate is 4.78% per annum and
the effective interest rate is 5.13% per annum. The
term of the medium term financing notes was 3 years
from the date of issuance. The interest shall be paid
on an annual basis. In March 2017, the Group paid
the interest of first year in the amount of RMB14.34
million.

CORPORATE BONDS

The aggregate principal amount of up to RMB2.0
billion was approved by the China Securities
Regulatory Commission and the Shanghai Stock
Exchange in May 2016 and the Group issued its first
tranche of corporate bonds at par value of RMB800
million to public qualified investors in the PRC on 21
June 2016. The nominal interest rate is 4.87% per
annum and the effective interest rate is 5.22% per
annum. The term of the corporate bonds was 3 years
from the date of issuance. The interest shall be paid
on an annual basis. In June 2017, the Group paid
the interest of first year in the amount of RMB38.96
million.
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Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017F12A31HILFE

T ERITER (E)

AKERN SIS H S RITERIEZ
THE®EHE -
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT R ARETIT
649,000 310,000
1,122,493 1,366,589
92,455 62,615
1,863,948 1,739,204
RERIE

AEBRSRITEMSER S E g it
HEETARSBETNBBARB20ETH
FREIZE  WR2016F3A25B X B
HASEEANREIETHHEEMNE
T oREREFNREL78%  BERFX
£5.13% o R HAZIE M HIR B3F 8 - A
BIRES o 2017E38  REB X
TE—FHNFEARE 4348 T ©

AEES

MR2016F58  AEERBHFEBZES
Lk EBBERGNAEEIT RSB
THBBARB20ETIHATES TR
2016F6 H21IHEN EHACHBEAR
EBIETL A RMEF R ETT o« IRFRBFFIE
B4.87% @ BBEFEE5.22% - RNRIEH
R EAPR B3F 8 - I B IR F 1+ ° 2017
F6H AREINTE-—FMNFBEAR
#3,89068 JT °
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Year ended 31 December 2017

HE2017F12A31HILFE
31. TRADE PAYABLES 1.ENESZRE
An aging analysis of the trade payables at the REREAHENBE S RBIREZAHN
reporting date, based on the invoice date, is as BRER D ATLA T -
follows:
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARET T
Within three months “@EAR 1,024,983 1,101,521
Over three months but =@ A EEREAR
within six months 150,185 90,563
Over six months but NEANK EE—FR
within one year 57,989 55,075
Over one year —F X E 45,698 42 974
1,278,855 1,290,133
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are [ENEBSZEYARE BREHECORA
normally settled on terms of up to 60 days. "B e
32. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS R2.HMWENRERETER
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AREET T
Payables to suppliers’ employees FEfT L FE RS B B 518 15,187 15,793
Deposits from suppliers HERIZS 163,374 131,327
Value-added taxes HE 20,423 14,612
Other tax payable b fE SR IR 37,145 34,586
Payable for capital expenditure ERTE AR 546,017 594,482
Payable for staff costs JEfF B TR A 241,551 202,699
Bonus point liabilities 28RN AE 32,508 38,208
Advances from customers RPEMEMRE 1,248,544 1,307,149
Payable for acquisition of I B8 — RS B B A B FE A<F FRIE
a subsidiary 19,753 20,971
Interest payable FEASF B 2,106 2,033
Payable for cancellation of FTSHMT B A R R 3R
a subsidiary - 601
Other payables H b B FRIB 122,993 109,202
2,449,601 2,471,663

The above balances are unsecured and non-interest-

bearing.
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Year ended 31 December 2017

HZE20175F12 A31HIEFE
33. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL 3B.TESRMT A
INSTRUMENTS
2017 2016
—E—4t & TR
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBETT

Cross currency swap RXE¥EHR (13,270) 11,487
34.LONG-TERM PAYABLES 34. REIEMAFIE

2017 2016

—E— & —T—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARBETT

Long-term portion of accrued EErHEER &
rental expenses KEE D 77,107 62,614
35.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED B.REHEeRERWTE
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Changes in liabilities and equities arising from ARt EREol A ERERE S

financing activities

Medium
term Non-
Interest- financing  Corporate Interest Treasury Share  controlling
bearing bank notes bonds payables shares premiums interests

TERARR  HHRE MR ENER ERR B HERRR
RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMB'O00  RMBI00
ARBTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARMTr  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARETR

2
&
At 1 January 2017 W017E1A1R 1,739,204 309,074 814,670 2,083 (112) 728,151 169,066 o E b
Changes from financing BEEBRL DAY » E %
cash flows 198,867 14300 (3890  ([2046) ©y (298129 T L
Foreign exchange movement EiEy (74123) - - - - - - g g E
Intrest expense Hlam - 16,240 41,360 82,119 - - z
Repurchase and cancellston ~~ RZEE R g
of shares = = = = 981 z =
Profit for the year EFaA - - - - - 1 (1,524)
At 31 December 2017 R2017F12A31R 1,863,948 309,974 817,070 2,106 (54) 430,023 165,088
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Year ended 31 December 2017

HZE2017F12A31HIEFE
36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES, 36.RARAE KEHELTHERE
OPERATING LEASE ARAEE

ARRANGEMENTS AND CAPITAL
COMMITMENTS

(a) Operating lease arrangements (a) REHERH
Group as lessee NI E (E AN
The Group leases certain of its land and AEEKBELCEHELHHEESR T
buildings under operating lease arrangements TiREF AEBAE—E=_F+F-
with lease terms ranging from one to twenty
years.
At 31 December 2017, the Group had total R2017F12A318 » AEERET
future minimum lease payments under AIRGEEEHEN R REEESE
non-cancellable operating leases falling due as RATEWNT
follows:
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARBTT

Within one year —F R 90,658 98,701

In the second to fifth years, FE_EFRF
inclusive (BEEEMSF) 408,813 477,113
After five years AFEHE 567,459 1,000,362
1,066,930 1,576,176
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36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES,
OPERATING LEASE
ARRANGEMENTS AND CAPITAL
COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

(@) Operating lease arrangements (continued)
Group as lessor

The Group leases out certain of its land and
buildings under operating lease arrangements
with lease terms ranging from one to twenty
years.

At 31 December 2017, the Group had total
future minimum lease receivables under
non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants
falling due as follows:

Within one year —FR

In the second to fifth years, EZEFRF
inclusive (BREEEMF)

After five years AFEME

(b) Capital commitments

Contracted, but not provided for: 22 5T R B
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BWERE&E

189

B 75 ¥R 2R Y &

Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017F12A31HILFE

36. AAREE  CEHELZHKE

ARAEYE ()

(a)

(b)

REHERH (8]
A& [ E /1A
AEERELEMEZHHEET
T BT HHES—E_TF-

MN2017512A31 8 - KEEBER
AU AC 2 R E /) R R K FE U AR
SHREEIMT ¢

2017 2016
—g—tfE —F-AF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARETT

170,228 155,754

279,828 264,617

139,962 143,662

590,018 564,033
EARELE

2017 2016

—EB—tF —E-RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARB T ARETT

399,850 757,304
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Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017F12A31HILFE

37.ISSUED CAPITAL AND OTHER

RESERVES

(a) Issued capital

Issued and fully paid
2,217,185,000
(2016: 2,330,760,000)
ordinary shares

A summary of the movements of the Company’s

issued capital is as follows:

At 1 January 2016

Shares repurchased
and cancelled

At 31 December 2016, and
1 January 2017

Shares repurchased
and cancelled

At 31 December 2017

(a) BEETRAR

7.8 BITRARGEE

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 F 5

2017 2016
—E—tF —EB—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T AREET T
BEEITRARE
2,217,185,000
(20164 : 2,330,760,000)
AR 19,146 20,127

ARFEHTRAHSDHEEMT

No. of
shares at
HK$0.01 each
BREE
0.017%8 T
B EE
Thousands RMB’000
T h% ARET T
R201641 A1H 2,421,050 20,907
% 2= 88 B & 7t 44
(90,290) (780)
MR20165FE12A8318 K&
20171 H1H 2,330,760 20,127
[i% 2 B8 B & ¥ 58
(113,575) (981)
2017412 H318 2,217,185 19,146
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Year ended 31 December 2017

EZE2017F12A31BLEFE
37.I1SSUED CAPITAL AND OTHER 7.ERITHRAR#E (&)
RESERVES (CONTINUED)
(@) Issued capital (Continued) (a) SEBITHRAE(E)
During the year, the Company repurchased its RAREE » NN FHEFEZED
own shares through the Stock Exchange as PN s N
follows:
No. of
shares at
HK$0.01 each Price per share
SREE ERKRE Aggregate
0.018 T H Highest Lowest consideration  Equivalent to
RAEE B& &1 BRE %
Month of repurchase Thousands HK$ HK$ HK$'000 RMB’000
BEA R T BT BT THT AREFT
March 2017 201738 2,750 1.43 1.35 3,858 3,425
April 2017 20174 4R 3,000 1.44 1.40 4,257 3,771
May 2017 201757 8,123 1.87 1.41 13,301 11,702
June 2017 20176 3,900 1.88 1.84 7,324 6,357
August 2017 201748 A 10,168 1.50 1.41 15,176 12,768
September 2017 2017%9A 24,892 1.50 1.36 35,923 30,522
October 2017 2017%10A 12,410 1.46 1.40 17,725 15,063
November 2017 2017118 22,450 1.64 1.45 34,817 29,397
December 2017 2017%12R 19,130 1.90 1.60 32,523 27,186
106,823 164,904 140,191
The Company repurchased 106,823,000 shares HZE2017F12A831BLFE K
during the year ended 31 December 2017. The A7) #8 [8106,823,000% i & -
nominal value of approximately HK$1,068,000, % 75 E B %) &1,068,0007% 7T * 48 ”
equivalent to RMB923,000 (2016: B R A R #923,0005T (20164 : E
HK$1,033,000, equivalent to RMB892,000) 1,033,000 L - HE RARK Eﬁ
was credited to issued capital account, and 892,0007T) B st A B B TR AR EEE
the premium paid or payable and the related F RERRERODEMKEMNGE :@5%
costs incurred for the share repurchase of X 18 7 & A #£163,836,000/% 7T - g?_t'%
approximately HK$163,836,000, equivalent to FBE N AR#139,269,0007T (2016 o=
RMB139,269,000 (2016: HK$119,118,000, F:119,118,000/8 7T - HER AR ‘z‘
equivalent to RMB102,483,000) was charged #5102,483,0007T) B 5T AR R RIAR =
against share premium account of the Company. MBERP -
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Year ended 31 December 2017

HE2017F 128318 LLFE
37.I1SSUED CAPITAL AND OTHER 7.2 BITRARREE (&)

RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(a) lIssued capital (Continued) (a) BETRA(E)
Included in the repurchased shares, B ZE2017F12H31BIEFE - B
113,575,000 shares were cancelled during EEEEREFR118,575,000
the year ended 31 December 2017. The IR M #EsE ERAEELNA
nominal value of approximately HK$1,136,000, 1,136,000 7C ' HE R AR &
equivalent to RMB981,000 (2016: HK$903,000, 981,0007t (2016: 903,000/ JT °
equivalent to RMB780,000) was credited to HE N ARET780,0007T) @ HIEE
issued capital account from treasury shares GFREEFPETARRAE ZEITRAKR
accounts. P o
The remaining 6,235,000 shares were not MR2017F12HA318 % T K
cancelled and still recognised as treasury shares 6,235,000/% fx 0 )8 B M sE 85 - 13
as at 31 December 2017. The nominal value WHERBETR ERABENA
was approximately HK$62,000, equivalent to 62,000/% 7T - 18 E K A K #54,000
RMB54,000 (2016: HK$130,000, equivalent to 7L (20164F : 130,000/ 7T * HE R
RMB112,000). AR#112,0007T) °

(b) Contributed surplus (b) EHEER
Contributed surplus represents the difference BEHEBIBOARQRERE B H
between (i) the Company’s cost of investments ZAIBIB RIS ER S GIER
in the subsidiaries that were acquired via a B8 A A B9 3% & K A B (ii) Uk B B 5%
business combination under common control EMEBARNEBRAEERTED
in the prior year and (i) the aggregate of the =% o

nominal values of the paid-up capital of these
subsidiaries upon acquisition.

(c) Statutory surplus reserve (c) ZELAESR
In accordance with the Company Law of the RIERERQRERFPEKEA TS
PRC and the respective articles of association ERAESER  PENBARAR
g of the PRC Subsidiaries, each of the PRC HEBRFEEREMNA10% (REPEA
Eﬁd Subsidiaries is required to allocate 10% of its REFEANEE) PREEEATE
ggé profit after tax, as determined in accordance & (EELESR])  BEEZERLE
o with PRC GAAP, to the statutory surplus reserve SENHEZEFMEARMNS0% o
E;tlg (the “SSR”) until this reserve reaches 50% of its
zg§ registered capital.
3
= The SSR is non-distributable except in the ETEANEEBR N IEE B RINTA S
event of a liquidation and, subject to certain K EEEBTEBPBREARTEHAN
restrictions set out in the relevant PRC ETREITTARNKEZTEEN
regulations, can be used to offset accumulated BARCREBER - BIREHZFEH
losses or be capitalised as paid-up capital. B ZET A ABLERARESR
However, the balance of the statutory reserve D EFMHEARA25% °

fund must be maintained at a minimum of 25%
of the registered capital after these usages.
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Year ended 31 December 2017

HZE2017F12A31HILFE
37.ISSUED CAPITAL AND OTHER 7.8 BITRARRE (E)
RESERVES (CONTINUED)
(d) Discretionary reserve (d) BI1EFEHE
In accordance with the Company Law of the BEFRARERFBENE AR
PRC and the respective articles of association BERAZKER  ETHPHHEAQF
of the PRC Subsidiaries, certain of the PRC EEHGREENNEERE DL (A
Subsidiaries transferred a certain percentage ZEXeRBEET) ENEHE - BB
of their profit after tax, at the discretion of the ETARIREBEFEANEIEK
PRC Subsidiaries’ boards of directors, to the WINFEMER o
discretionary reserve. The discretionary reserve
can be utilised to offset prior years’ losses or to
increase the registered capital.
38. ASSETS OF A DISPOSAL GROUP BB.ERUEREXB I EAETEF
CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE EEENREEEHEERE
AND DIRECTLY ASSOCIATED
LIABILITIES
At the acquisition date of Yangzhou Fengxiang in the R2012F WIBH M B2 Bt - A&
year 2012, the Group decided to dispose of certain BREREA TR ARNEBAHHES
non-current assets and a subsidiary acquired from B EAREEFEEKERA - FER
that business combination, which are not relevant BENM—FRFAT] o KIERKRBEHRE
to the principal operation of the Group. According ERIESiFE 1T EIETEEERELIE
to IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and LR REBBZZIERHEER
Discontinued Operations, the Group classified these MEBARRWEREI D A IEFEEE
non-current assets and the subsidiary as held for sale WIZAFEREERNETE -
at the acquisition date and measured them at fair
value less costs to sell.
During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group HZE2017F12A31BILFEE - XEEE
disposed of the assets of a disposal group classified RECRIIREXEBGHOEABEFESR
as held for sale and directly associated liabilities. ENEEHEBHNEE -
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Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017F12A31HILFE

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances
disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, the
Group had the following material transactions with
related parties during the year:

(a) Transactions with related parties

On 15 April 20183, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, Jiangsu Springland
International Holding (Group) Ltd. (“Jiangsu
Springland”) purchased a financial product (the
“Financial Product”) from China Construction
Bank Corporation Wuxi Chengbei Branch at
RMB200,000,000 maturing on 17 April 2014.
However, a balance of RMB180,000,000
remained outstanding under the Financial
Product after the maturity on 17 April 2014. In
the course of enquiries with the bank, it was
discovered that a pledge had been registered
on a one year fixed deposit of RMB100,000,000
with China Construction Bank Corporation Wuxi
Yingbin Branch, which was placed in January
2014, by an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, Wuxi Xishan Yaohan Lifestyle
Center Co., Ltd. (“Xishan Yaohan”), with an
interest rate of 3.25% per annum (the “Deposit”),
payable upon maturity.

On 30 April 2014, to prevent possible losses
and incurrence of further time and costs by the
Group, Jiangsu Springland and Xishan Yaohan
as sellers entered into an agreement with Mr.
Chen Jiangiang (the “Controlling Shareholder”)
as purchaser, whereby Jiangsu Springland
agreed to dispose of the Financial Product to the
Controlling Shareholder for a cash consideration
equal to RMB180,000,000 and Xishan Yaohan
agreed to dispose of the Deposit to the
Controlling Shareholder for a cash consideration
equal to RMB100,000,000. The considerations
were determined after considering the costs paid
by Jiangsu Springland for the Financial Product
and Xishan Yaohan for the Deposit, respectively.
The considerations were to be paid by the
Controlling Shareholder on/before 31 December
2014,
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Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017F12A31HILFE

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(@) Transactions with related parties (a)

90.BELRZ (&)

HRELNXS (&)

(continued)

On 16 December 2014, Jiangsu Springland,
Xishan Yaohan and the Controlling Shareholder
entered into a supplemental agreement
whereby the outstanding consideration
became interest bearing at a rate of 3.5%
per annum from 1 January 2015 to 31
December 2016. And On 1 December 2016,
this agreement was extended to 31 December
2019. The Controlling Shareholder repaid
RMB98,000,000 of the considerations in the
year of 2014 and RMBG64,000,000 in the year
2016 and RMB18,000,000 in the year 2017.
The outstanding consideration due from the
Controlling Shareholder was RMB100,000,000
as at 31 December 2017 (31 December 2016:
RMB118,000,000).

Up to 31 December 2017, the interest
generated from the receivables amounting to
RMB3,797,000 (2016: RMB5,528,000). The
Controlling Shareholder had paid the interest
before 31 December 2017.

In the year of 2017, the Group did not purchase
chocolate (2016: RMB557,000) from AMEDEI
S.R.L, a company of which Mr. Chen Jiangiang
is a controlling shareholder. The directors
consider that the purchases were made on
credit terms similar to those offered to the major
customers of the supplier. The balance prepaid
to the supplier as at 31 December 2017 was nil
(2016: RMB896,000).
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FOREREBREESAEHEARKE
98,000,0007T * 20164 * B X ¥
8 AR #64,000,0007T * 201752
4B A R #18,000,0007T ° B
2017412 A31H » FE U IR AR
B #& & A A R #100,000,0007T
(2016512 H31H : 118,000,000
JL) °

E2017F12A31H » ZEE KK
THE 4 F) B E A R %3,797,0007T
(20164 : AR#5,528,0007T) ° 4%
AR B R2017F12 A31H Z Al X
HTZFE -

20174  ANEBRUERERIATEE
BERBERERNGESFAREELR
71 (20164 : A R¥557,0007T) °
BERAURET AR BN R
LILERETEER - R2017F12
A31R - EGEEANGEAT
(20164 : AR #896,0007L) °
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Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017F12A31HILFE

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Outstanding balances with related parties

0.BELXZ (&)

(b) ERBAETF HVAEER

31 December 31 December

2017 2016
20175 20164
12A31H 12H318
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Hat AR¥ETR ARET T

Due from the Controlling R i 2 5 % BR R 3R
Shareholder (i) 99,984 117,974
Due from a related party JRE LIk 8 B (i) - 896
99,984 118,870

Notes: Kt -

(i)  The Group had an outstanding balance due from iy ANEBERKR2017F12H31H E
the Controlling Shareholder of RMB100,000,000 WERRRRBLER: ARK
as principal and RMB16,000 as interest 100,000,000t & F8 1+ Kl & A R &
prepayment as at 31 December 2017 (2016: 16,0007C (20164 : "& A R #&
RMB118,000,000 as principle and RMB26,000 118,000,0007T & FA 1+ Kl & A R #
as interest prepayment). This balance is 26,0007T) ° |t I8 Jh K A
unsecured, bearing interest at a rate of 3.5% B201741 818 8 LA F ) &3.5%
from 1 January 2017 and shall be repaid on/ B I EE2019F12A31H
before 31 December 2019. R ATER -

(i)  The balance due from a related party, AMEDEI iy AEER2017F12A318 E K
S.R.L, was nil as at 31 December 2017 (2016: AT e A REBERAES
RMB896,000). (20164 : AR%896,0007T) °

(c) Compensation of key management (c) XEBEEXEZEE ABEN SN

personnel of the Group

AEEE = ROIF A S FH B este

—E—tF —TEAF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ TR AR¥BT T

Short-term employee benefits E HE 8 H 8,527 9,714

Post-employment benefits 5y NG 248 245

Total compensation paid to SHGEEFEEEAR

key management personnel ORI FCE 8,775 9,959

Further details of directors’ and the chief FH BRI EmRMI 11 HEE o

executive’s emoluments are included in note 11
to the financial statements.
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting

period are as follows:
31 December 2017

Financial assets

Available-for-sale investments

Trade receivables

Due from the Controlling
Shareholder

Financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits
and other receivables

Restricted cash

Cash and cash equivalents

Financial liabilities

Trade payables

Financial liabilities included in
other payables and accruals

Corporate bonds

Medium term financing notes

Derivative financial instruments

Interest-bearing bank borrowings

ﬂﬁtﬁ’%&;ﬁ
JEU & 5%
i grez Hﬁﬂ&%m

SABMSE B2
R4 1R
WEmAE
FREWES
B4 RBLZEY

WIE

24 e
I & ¢
Eiﬁ

?a )
\m%

A

%

=
1

E‘I\_
O 2 S S Om = No

B>
S HF 3% DI & > =T
S5 kD SIBl omR = Ol g

= H
i m
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Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017F12A31HILFE

20175612A31H

ERMEE
Available-
for-sale
Loans and financial
receivables assets
EFR e Total
FE W R IE SREE et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R AR¥ETR AR¥ETR
- 5,188 5,188
6,412 - 6,412
99,984 - 99,984
279,653 - 279,653
113,158 - 113,158
511,198 - 511,198
1,010,405 5,188 1,015,593
SREE
Financial
liabilities at
Held for amortised
trading cost
REBHRAK
ATEH Total
BERS cRas et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETR AR¥ETR
- 1,278,855 1,278,855
- 869,430 869,430
- 817,070 817,070
- 309,974 309,974
13,270 - 13,270
- 1,863,948 1,863,948
13,270 5,139,277 5,152,547
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Year ended 31 December 2017

HE2017F12A31HILFE
40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 0. ZERIETHEMI A (&)
CATEGORY (CONTINUED)
31 December 2016 2016512 A31H
Financial assets EtMEE
Available-
for-sale
Loans and financial
Held for receivables assets
trading 15794 e Total
BERS MR tREE @
RMB’000 RMB'’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT
Available-for-sale investments RHELE - = 2,550 2,550
Trade receivables BB 5508 - 10,663 - 10,663
Due from the Controling JE Yt R R R 508
Shareholder - 117,974 - 117,974
Financial assets included in SABMRE &
prepayments, deposits R E th fE YR IR
and other receivables NemiE = 246,172 = 246,172
Derivative financial instruments fTEERMIE 11,487 = - 11,487
Restricted cash XRE®ES - 108,908 - 108,908
Long-term time deposits at banks ~ FRFETHRIAT HER - 177,979 - 177,979
Cash and cash equivalents RekReZSEM = 401,592 = 401,592
11,487 1,063,288 2,550 1,077,325
Financial liabilities cRAaE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
b E i PN
FTEMN Total
@ cRMERE @t
= RMB’000 RMB’000
S ARETTT AREFTT
1H
CEe
B Trade payables FEfTE 5 5 1,290,133 1,290,133
5 &'g Financial liabilities included in other EJr)\ﬁWEH B R
255 payables and accruals EAERANERAE 874,409 874,409
Z Corporate bonds NAElfESH 814,670 814,670
z Medium term financing notes PHRE 309,074 309,074
= Interest-bearing bank borrowings STEIRITER 1,739,204 1,739,204

5,027,490 5,027,490
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41. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values
of cash and cash equivalents, available-for-sale
investments, trade receivables, trade payables,
financial assets included in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables and financial liabilities included
in other payables and accruals approximate to
their carrying amounts largely due to the short term
maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The
following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

The fair values of medium term financing notes,
corporate bonds and interest-bearing bank
borrowings have been calculated by discounting
the expected future cash flows using rates currently
available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk
and remaining maturities, which also approximate
to their carrying amounts. The Group’s own non-
performance risk for interest-bearing bank borrowings
as at 31 December 2017 was assessed to be
insignificant.

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments
with a licensed bank. Derivative financial instruments,
including currency swap and interest rate swap,
are measured using valuation techniques similar to
forward pricing and swap models, using present
value calculations. The models incorporate various
market observable inputs including the credit quality
of counterparties, foreign exchange spot and forward
rates and interest rate curves. The carrying amounts
of cross currency swap are the same as their fair
values.

199

B 75 ¥ 2= B RE

Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017F12A31HILFE

MEBMITENLAFERATFES

e

BEEEEFERERRASEEY AR
HERE BUKEZRE EBNESHK
I/~ P ATRNFOR - 2 R b YK
BNEMEE  FFAHEMENTIELE
AAERAMQTER  ARERR®KE
ZEEEXRENATERERAEE
&

BRE-LREUNRXZIAEEERH -
E-—REBNRST REENEH
BENREEERR T AFEEES -
THNDERRERZA KGR FE :

REIER - ARIEHMETERITERD
AFEFESBREHE RN S KA
REME 2ERHABEUTAMER
B ZHERBRMIPAREE AEER
2017F 12 A1 HEF BRITIERNBEE IE
BEREREREETEALN -

AEERFENRITRIITESRTA
- TEECRTABRREEHEREHR
MAEFH - FRBRLUEREERIM
AR 5 AR A B (B £l A0 PAR B
B NBRUBRZEMEHERNZERE
BHEREE NSRRI SREE
REHEHR - EREBSONREE
BEEAQAFE-H-
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Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017F12A31HILFE

41. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 41.

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Fair value hierarchy

The following table illustrates the fair value
measurement hierarchy of the Group’s financial
instruments:

Assets measured at fair value
There were no assets measured at fair value as at 31
December 2017 (2016: RMB11,487,000).

As at 31 December 2016:

Quoted prices

EMITANAFERQIFES
e AE Y

DFESRER
NTERBIRASESRTANRFE
FRAEE

HRFEGTENEE
M2017F12/8318 » N & B IF & 1%
AREBEFENEE (2016F : AR
11,487,000) °

R2016F12H31H -

Fair value measurement using
A a5 E TR
Significant Significant

in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
R BT 5 ERA ERAT
MEE BRBAE BEHGAE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(F—%) (B=4) (B=8) e
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#TE ARBTT AR¥TE ARETR
Derivative financial instruments ~ $T4£ &I A = 11,487 - 11,487
Liabilities measured at fair value R TG EEE
As at 31 December 2017: Roo17E12H31 8 -

Quoted prices
in active
markets

E I
BB E
(Level 1)
(B—R)
RMB’000
ARETTT

Fair value measurement using
AF{EHEHEA
Significant Significant
observable  unobservable
inputs inputs
BAA BEANT

BREAE BEGAE
(Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(E=H) (5=%4) nE

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL  ARBTLE ARBTRL

Derivative financial instruments TESRMTAE -

13,270 = 13,270

There were no liabilities measured at fair value as at
31 December 2016.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and
transfers into or out of Level 3 for financial assets
(2016: Nil).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other
than derivatives, comprise bank loans, short-
term financing notes medium term financing notes,
corporate bonds, cash and short-term deposits. The
main purpose of these financial instruments is to
raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group
has various other financial assets and liabilities such
as trade receivables and trade payables, which arise
directly from its operations.

The Group also enters into derivative transactions,
including principally currency swap and interest rate
swap. The purpose is to manage the interest rate and
currency risks arising from the Group’s operations
and its sources of finance.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency
risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of
directors reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarised below.
The Group’s accounting policies in relation to
derivatives are set out in note 2.4 to the financial
statements.
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Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017F12A31HILFE

2. KEREEEERBE

AEENETZ2RIA  BRITERI
BRERRITER EBHAESF THE
B RAfESF HAeEBHENX - ZF
ERTENTIEREERAGEESRE
BET AKBEBAREBHEMAZER
RELTNESREENABE WEKRES
SIAMEN & 5 50R -

AEBEETTNERR S TE2BH
MEEHMMEREE RN -BENERT
EERNKEEL RBEREELNHNE
0 BE R @B o

AEBSRTEELNTERBRERN X
Rk SNERR EERBERBE S
R EFSFEHNIREERE LEKE
BBREOBER - BT - ARERER
ITERmME S BRR P B HRME2.45
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 42 BEEREEEEERBCE (&)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Interest rate risk F 2= [ fx
The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in RNEBEFFRASTHTISHNRESE S EE
market interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s BEAREFIZZENERT ENETERES
bank loans with floating interest rates. 7 -
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to TERFAAEBBNBRT ISR CEBYZ
a reasonably possible change in interest rates, with BEERNTE)NEEAEED (EMA
all other variables held constant, of the Group’s HBHEBZTENBLT) OKE -
profit before tax (through the impact on floating rate
borrowings).
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in in profit
basis points before tax

EEEm B B A1 8
(R4 & ORd)

RMB’000
AR¥ET T
Year ended 31 December 2017 HZE2017512A31B L FE
Us$ ETT 50 (1,588)
HK$ BT 50 (29)
us$ ETT (50) 1,588
HK$ BT (50) 29
(/2]
£
gm Year ended 31 December 2016 HZE2016F12A31H IEFE
ole )
mag Us$ E=oT 50 (6,861)
O3 HKS BT 50 (261)
Z_
o=
‘Z‘ US$ ey (50) 6,861
i HK$ BT (50) 261
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s businesses are located in Mainland
China and all transactions are conducted in RMB.
Most of the Group’s assets and liabilities were
denominated in RMB, except for certain bank
balances denominated in US$, HK$ and SGD as
disclosed in note 27 and bank loans denominated in
US$ and HK$ as disclosed in note 28.

Certain of the Group’s cash and bank balances,
time deposits and bank loans are denominated in
US$ or HK$ or SGD which expose the Group to
foreign currency risk attributable to the fluctuations
in the exchange rates of US$/HK$ against RMB, the
functional currency of the respective group entities.

Management monitors foreign exchange risk
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity
to a 3% (2016: 3%) increase and decrease in RMB
against the relevant foreign currencies 3% (2016:
3%) which is the sensitivity rate used when reporting
foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary
items and adjusts their translation at the end of the
reporting period for a 3% (2016: 3%) change in
foreign currency rates.
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Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017F12A31HILFE

2. BBREREEEERBE (&)

0 L B

AREBENEBHYRNFPEAMLERER
ZHERARE o BRRH 277 3 E /Y
ETRITEBRARIT - BT RN TT
FHE MM 28 B RITEFTIAT TR
BILEHEN ARBARZHEENER
AANREEHE

AEBEETRITEHBREAS  RITEXK
TyPAETT BT/ FETEHE - A
SERZT/ BLTEARE (HHERE
BOEER) 2 HNEKKE - AZI
R o

EEEERIERR IRARERE
B 3 B RSN L B

o

TRAMLAEEH AR N ARBINEE
RFHE N E7 E3% (201645 : 3%) KBRS
E-REEBTEABRNITZHRINER R
I BT {55 F O SRR JE LE 3R B3% (20164 -
3%) REBEEEHIINEEXRAEEE
WA TE - MEEDNERIBUINE
STEMAREEERIER WHARSHM
KRBT I23% (20164F : 3%) HMNE [E K &
BAEEKBE -
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
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OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

42. IEEBEEEEREE (&)

Foreign currency risk (continued) S B (48)
US$ Impact HK$ Impact
Y7 B
2017 2016 2017 2016
ZE-tE —ZR% “E-tF NS
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTL AREF T AR%ETR ARETT
Increase/(decrease) in profit BaTFImsE i/ Chd) -
before tax:
If RMB weakens against EARBEHINET I
foreign currency (32,298) (39,490) (1,746) (1,136)
If RMB strengthens against HAREHINE L3R
foreign currency 32,298 39,490 1,746 1,136

The sensitivity analysis above only analysed the
Group’s year end inherent foreign exchange risk
exposure and does not represent the exposure during
the year as the value of the monetary items and the
exchange rates fluctuated during the year.

Credit risk

The Group has no concentration of credit risk.
The Group’s cash and cash equivalents are mainly
deposits with state-owned banks in Mainland China.
The credit risk of the Group’s financial assets,
which comprise cash and cash equivalents, trade
receivables and other receivables, arises from default
of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal
to the carrying amounts of these instruments.
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of
funds using a recurring liquidity planning tool.
This tool considers the maturity of both its
financial instruments and financial assets (e.g.,
trade receivables) and projected cash flows from
operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance
between continuity of funding and flexibility through
the use of bank loans, medium term financing notes
and corporate bonds. Pursuant to the credit facility
intention letters provided by certain banks, the
banks had agreed to provide additional loans up to
RMB1,137,000,000, subject to available facilities,
upon the Group’s request. Pursuant to the official
approval from the Inter-bank Dealers Association
and the China Securities Regulatory Commission,
the Group can obtain additional loans up to
RMB4,900,000,000, upon the Group’s request.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities
as at the end of the reporting period, based on the
contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:

B 75 ¥R 2R Y &

Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017F12A31HILFE

2. BBREREEEERBE (&)

REBE SRR
AEENABERADAETARNES

RROEAR ZTEAEEEEBTAR
TREE (WEWESFIE) W HE R
KERLEHHHAFHESRE -

AEEMBEERSERRITER  THE
BRAGES  URFESHEERE
EEMENEE - BEBEAEEFRK B
REFERITNERERE - RITBERAE
12t A B #1,137,000,0007T #) & X 58
E-RERTHARZEHE MNP BB
SHHE  AEER AHBZETEING
1= AR #4,900,000,0007T °

BREARENK AREOLHE E)
B (B A R ITR A R ) BRI T &
Bt

3to 12 1t05 Over5

Less than months years years
2017 On demand 3 months zE -E g3 Total
017E REXK AR TR ik:3 WLt ag
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AE®Tn  AR®Tn  AR®Tn  AR%Tn  ARETn  ARETR
Interest-bearing bank borowings 3T BT R - 891,146 623,207 433,715 - 1,948,158
Medium term financing notes kPSS - - - 309,974 - 300,974
Corporate bonds A - - - 817,070 - 817,070
Trade payables ERES7E 253,873 1,024,982 - - - 1,278,855

Financial liabilities included in STARMEMNFER

other payables and accruals EHERANERAR 869,430 - - - - 869,430
1,123,303 1,916,128 623,207 1,560,759 - 5,023,487
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OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk (Continued) REBESER (&)
3012 1105 QOver 5
Less than months years years
2016 On demand 3 months =z o= RE Total
20165 REXE =REAR TZfaR k3 WE %
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARBTT ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
Interest-bearing bank borrowings ~ 3f BRI - 1,162,149 592,137 - - 1,754,286
Medium term financing notes hHZE - - - 343,830 - 343,830
Corporate bonds NAlfEH - - - 914,720 - 914,720
Trade payables ENEA7E 265,203 1,024,930 - - - 1,290,133
Financial liabites included in SHARBERFER
other payables and accruals EHERNEREER 874,409 - - - - 874,409
1,139,612 2,187,079 592,137 1,258,050 = 5,177,378
Capital management EAREE
The primary objectives of the Group’s capital REFBEAEENTETEARER
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to EBEEERYL  THIBBRENEAL

continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

T L/{S‘Z%E%ﬁ%é’éﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁfﬁﬂ%
KﬂﬁT& :

The Group manages its capital structure and makes AREFRELSERINESMEBH
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic BAREBWGEL AL - SpF AR
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, BN GE S AN @jz/\uﬂﬁmﬁziﬁ-%ﬁxﬁ
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to HIPE B - MR EIR B E AN TR o

shareholders, return capital to shareholders or
issue new shares. The Group is not subject to any
externally imposed capital requirements. No changes
were made in the objectives, policies or processes
for managing capital during the years ended
31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio,
which is net debt divided by capital plus net

ﬂi%lﬂib%?&ﬁjﬂ\%ﬁﬁ@ﬂumiéfmﬁ
E o B E2017912A318 K20164F12
AB1BLEFE  BEAEEBE K=K
BATEELSE -

AEBUNEERBRLIEREN - ME
ERBELEE i‘%%%ﬁﬁl«xé{$ﬂu1}§ﬁ

debt. Net debt includes medium term financing SEEE o BFRFEAERHEE A AE
notes, corporate bonds and interest-bearing bank £ CHBRTED . J%fﬁﬁ%%'ﬂlﬁ CH

borrowings, trade payables and other payables
and accruals, less restricted cash, long-term time
deposits at banks and cash and cash equivalents.
Capital represents equity attributable to owners of
the parent. The Group’s policy is to keep the gearing
ratio at a reasonable level. The gearing ratios as at
the end of the reporting periods were as follows:
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Year ended 31 December 2017

HZE20175F12 A31HIEFE

42. ,H\ZI.i%HBﬁMIE E E&BZ% (mﬁ)

(CONTINUED)
Capital management (continued) EAREME(E])
2017 2016
—E—+fF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARBT T
Corporate bonds RNAfEFH 817,070 814,670
Medium term financing notes hHEIZ B 309,074 309,074
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FFESRITER 1,863,948 1,739,204
Trade payables B E 53R 1,278,855 1,290,133
Other payables and accruals H fib S 5B K B AT B 2,449,601 2,471,663
Less: Restricted cash B XRERES (113,158) (108,908)
Long-term time deposits at banks ERETHREHEHER - (177,979)
Cash and cash equivalents RekBAeEEYD (511,198) (401,592)
Net debt B F 6,095,092 5,936,265
Equity attributable to owners NAHEE AEEER
of the parent 5,085,404 4,971,367
Equity and net debt BaRERFE 11,180,496 10,907,632
Gearing ratio BEARLX 54.5% 54.4%

43. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING 43. REHEREE
PERIOD
Subsequent to 31 December 2017 and up to the R2017F12A31B B EAHKE B HH
date of this report, the Company repurchased a total A2 A& E A $£10,950,0000% B 15

R {8 520,457,000 7T ° 17,1 85,00on
[0 BE B 19 B 20183 A st sl - A A
REEAREAHZEHTRNOEE A
2,200,000,0008% °

of 10,950,000 shares at an aggregate consideration
of HK$20,457,000. 17,185,000 repurchased shares
were cancelled during March 2018. The number of
issued shares of the Company as at the date of this
report is 2,200,000,000.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 i a MY =

Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017F12A31HILFE

44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position
of the Company at the end of the reporting period is

44, K 7) B 7 AR 00 &

RI|EBAR - RRRAFBMAKE SN
S ¢

[

=

Z

w
o
=
nE=
won
B
2=
o
P4
<
=
'S

B 7% R MY &

as follows:
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AREEF T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS EMEBEE
Investments in subsidiaries NG E 391,056 721,625
Total non-current assets EREEELRE 391,056 721,625
CURRENT ASSETS MENEE
Dividends receivables FEW AR B 1,295 1,287
Prepayments, deposits FERTRIE - me Rk
and other receivables H th & W5k IB 243 258
Cash and cash equivalents HBeEMREEED 3,917 7,833
Total current assets mENE EERE 5,455 9,378
Net assets FEE 396,511 731,003
EQUITY 1 a
Issued capital B e TR AR 19,146 20,127
Treasury shares JERER S (54) (112)
Reserves (Note) R (B at) 377,419 710,988
Total equity it AR KR 396,511 731,003

Chen Jiangiang

Tao Qingrong

= P B &
Director Director
Ea EFE
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44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY

45.

(CONTINUED)

Note:

A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:

At 1 January 2016

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Final 2015 dividend declared

Interim 2016 dividend

Repurchase and cancellation
of shares

At 31 December 2016 and
1 January 2017
Total comprehensive income
for the year
Final 2016 dividend declared
Interim 2017 dividend
Repurchase and cancellation
of shares

At 31 December 2017

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 ¥R 2R Y &

Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017F12A31HILFE

44, KN B BF AR R 3= ()

Hitiz -
ARAB K FEFEERBAT ¢
Exchange
Share fluctuation Retained
premium reserve earnings Total
Ex
B4 EE RE e RERLH kel
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR%®Tr AR®Tr ARETR
1201641718 1,034,204 (215,248) 148,839 967,795
FEXENERE
- 52,956 (3,720) 49,236
BEM2015F KA S (142,332) - - (142,332)
2016 Hft 8 (61,238) - - (61,238)
% 22 08 [0 Rk 5t 4
(102,483) = = (102,483)
2016128318 K
201741 A81H 728,151 (162,292) 145,119 710,988
FEZHNERE
- (34,736) (695) (35,441)
BE#2016F KR 2 (100,220) - - (110,220
2017 R HE 8 (58,640) - - (58,640)
R RO K
(139,268) - - (139,268)
2017%12A318 430,023 (197,028) 144,424 377,419
45. B I | R/ AR A

APPROVAL OF THESE FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

These financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on

21 March 2018.
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FIVE YEARS SUMMARY
TFEHBERE

Year ended 31 December

BZt-R=t-HILEE
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
“E-CF 2N —“E-nf ZT-RF ZE-t%
RMB million
(\REEET)
FINANCIAL RESULTS BEEE
TSP HEMBHIELE 11,135 11,049 10,696 10,889 11,188
Revenue A 4,162 4276 4,168 4193 4,444
Profit from operation R 1,026 983 788 687 692
Profit for the year FERF 737 646 490 322 338
Profit attributable to SINGE 2PN Ly
owners of the parent 730 634 480 325 340
Eamings per share SRELERER
attributable to ordinary BEAEGER
equity holders of the wEHARESD)
parent (RMB cents) 29 26 20 14 15
As at 31 December
W+=B=+-H
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
—E-ZF “Z-NE “Z-hE —E-RE ZE-tf
RMB million
(AREBER)
SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ~ BBEHRRBE
POSITION
Non-current assets ERPEE 8,235 9,065 10,662 11,266 11,371
Current assets HBEE 3,897 2,537 1,580 1,184 1,300
Total assets BEE 12,132 11,602 12,242 12,450 12,671
“ E% Current liabilities k=L 5,344 3,330 5,513 5,562 5,261
é ggg Non-current liabilities ¥RBAaR 1,762 3,075 1,511 1,748 2,160
wsS =
=24
SN Total liabiltes BEE 7,106 6,405 7,024 7310 7,421
Net assets EEFE 5,026 5,197 5218 5,140 5,250
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Chen Jiangiang

Tao Qingrong

Fung Hiu Chuen, John*

Lin Zhijun**

Zhang Weijiong**

Cheung Yat Ming**

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Lin Zhijun (Chairman)

Zhang Weijiong

Cheung Yat Ming

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Zhang Weijiong (Chairman)

Lin Zhijun

Cheung Yat Ming

Fung Hiu Chuen, John

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Zhang Weijiong (Chairman)
Lin Zhijun

Cheung Yat Ming

Fung Hiu Chuen, John

COMPANY SECRETARY
Hon Yin Wah, Eva

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive
P.0O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

. Non-executive Director
ol Independent Non-executive Director
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
IN HONG KONG

Suite 1508, 15/F, Cityplaza Four
12 Taikoo Wan Road
Taikoo Shing, Hong Kong

HEAD OFFICE

26/F, Wuxi Jinling Hotel
No.1 Xiangian East Street
Wuxi City, Jiangsu, PRC

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17/F

Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young, certified public accountants

STOCK CODE
1700

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.springlandgroup.com.cn
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